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ELEMENTIS PLC

We are a global specialty chemicals company serving
customers in North and South America, Europe and Asia
In a wide range of markets and sectors.

The Company has a premium hsting in the UK on the London
Slock Exchange and 1s a member of the FTSE 250 and
FTSE4Good Indices.

In 2016 we set out on a 3 year pragramme to Reignite Growth
In our business.

2016: Completed a business wide strategic review

2017: Reignite Growth:
Strengthening the foundations

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

CONTENTS

Total revenue

$830.3m°
+26%

2016: $659.5m¢

Revenue

$782.7m
+27%

2016 $616.6m

Profit after tax

$117.6m
+73%

2018. $68.1m

Adjusted operating profit

$128.1m*
+32%

2016 $97.0meat

Basic EPS

25.4c°
+73%

Adjusted diluted EPS

19.5¢*
+12%

2016 14.7c® 2016. 17.4¢ct
Ordinary dividend Adjusted operating
per share cash flow

8.80c¢
+4%

2016: 8.45¢

$107Am*
+12%

2016: $96 Omea

Net cash/(debt)

$(291.1)m

2016° $77.5m

¢ Total operations {both centinuing and discentinued)
A After adjusting items - see note 5,
1 Restated —see note 33

Cautionary statement:

The Annual report and accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
as contained in this documant {‘Annual Report'), contains information which
viswers or readers might considar to be forward looking statements relating

16 or in respect of the financial condition, results, operations or businesses of
Elementis plc. Any such statements involve risk and uncertainty because they
relate to future events and circumstances. There are many factors that could
Cause actual results or developments to differ materially from those expressed

or implied by any such forward looking statements. Nothing in this Annual Report
should be construed as a profit forecast.
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REIGNITE GROWTH - INTRODUCTION

REIGNITE GROWTH:
STRENGTHENING
THE FOUNDATIONS

1 Elementis ple Annual report and accounts 2017

Our Reignite Growth strategy goes through every aspect of
our business. [t examines, challenges and clanfies actions that
need to be taken to help us build a high performing Group.

2017 has seen us strengthen the foundations of Elementis by
facusing on our 4 strategic pnarities. As a result we are now
better placed to Reignite Growth and we look forward to
maintaining this momentum during 2018.

PAUL WATERMAN
CEQ

OUR 4 STRATEGIC PILLARS

PURSUE BEST GROWTH
OPPORTUNITIES

What we did in 2017:
Acquired SummitRehas,
implemented global key
account management and
developed Asia Coatings.

Gotopage 4

INNOVATE FOR HIGH
MARGINS AND
DISTINCTIVENESS

What we did in 2017:
Improved our innovation
capabilities, focusing on fewer
and bigger opportunities.

Go to page 8

PURSUE SUPPLY CHAIN
TRANSFORMATION
What we did in 2017:
Agreed the sale of the US
Colourants business and
Surfactants segment, and
improved productvity.

Go topage 7

CREATE A CULTURE

OF HIGH PERFORMANCE
What we did in 2017:
Invested in our pecple,
structure and performance
management processes

Go to page 11
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OUR BUSINESS AT A GLANCE

GROUP

Elementis plc 1s a global specialty chemicals company that
delivers Enhanced Performance Through Applied Innovation.
Harnessing our expertise in high performing ingredients to
refine and iImprove stability and flow, we enhance our
customers’ product performance.,

In 2017, we operated across 3 business segments. Specialty
Products, Chromium and Surfactants.

INVESTMENT PROPOSITION

Unique value chain

We combine the only high grade commercial hectorrle mine in
the world with our global asset base to serve customers in the
Americas, Europe and Asia. We are a market, technology and
innovation leader 1n rheology modifiers and a leading producer
of chromium chemicals in the United States.

Robust organic growth

We focus on mission critical products that deliver enhanced
performance to our customers n attractive growth sectors
such as Personal Care, Energy and Coatings.

Attractive margins

Qur operating margins are sustained through the quality of
our products and the delivery to our customers of Enhanced
Performance Through Applied Innovaton,

Strong cash flow

A robust balance sheet, strong operating cash flow generation
and capital expenditure discipline fund cur Reignite Growth
strategy while providing healthy and growing dividends.

Value creation

We are a growing and sustainable business. The
implementation of our Reignite Growth strategy will further
create value by consistently exceeding our cost of capital.

ENHANCED PERFORMANCE THROUGH

APPLIED INNOVATION

At Elements we apply innovation to all parts of cur business.
Through operations, research and development, sales and
marketing we apply Innovation with purpose to provide value
to our customers, With the application of our unique expertise
and premium ingredients, we enhance our custemers' product
performance and enable distinctiveness in the market,

Revenue (from
continuing operations)

$782.7Tm
$782.7m +27%

$616.6m

2016 2017

Profit after tax

$117.6m
$117.6m +73%

$68.1m
2016 2017
Ordinary dividend
per share
8.80c
449
sasc  HB0c 4%
2016 2017

Revenue split by
business segment?

72% T Specilty

Products
22% Chromium
&% Surfactants

Total revenue

$830.3m°
$830.3m +26%

$659.5m

2016 2017

Adjusted operating
profit

$128.1m%2
$128.1m +32%

$97.0m
2016 2017
Adjusted operating
profit margin
15.4%*
A
17y 1A% +70bps
2016 2017

Revenue split by

geography*
3% Asia
28% Europe
41% Amerncas

¢ Total operations (both connuing and discontinued)

4 After adjusting items - see note 5.




SPECIALTY PRODUCTS

Through the application of cur expertise in high performing
ingredients that improve stabiity and flow we provide high value
additives that enhance our customers’ product performance.
We deliver Enhanced Performance Through Appled Innovation
to the Personal Care, Coatings and Energy markets

CHROMIUM

We are a leading producer of chromium chemicals with

a strong posttion in North America. We provide chromium
chemicals that make our customers’ products more durable.

Revenue $611.0m Revenue $186.7m
Adjusted operating profit $109.0ma Adjusted operating profit $30.1ma
Adjusted operating margin 17.8%~ Adjusted gperating margin 16.1%»

Revenue

$179.3m

Personal Care

A leading global supplier
of rheclogical additives
and antiperspirant

active ingredients

Revenue

$372.9m

Coatings

A leading suppher of
rheological modifiers and
speciality additives to
decorative and industrial
coatings markets

Revenue

$58.8m

Energy

A leading suppler of
rheological modifiers

10 enhance the performance
of drilling mud over a wide
range of conditions

Our Specialty Products value chain

SURFACTANTS
in December 2017, we agreed the sale of the Surfactants
business 1o Kolb Distribution AG for €39m.

This business manufactures a wide range of surface active
ingredients and products used as intermediates in the
production of chemical composthions

Revenue $47.8m
Adjusted operating profit $5.4msa
Adjusted aperating margin 11.3%»

As part of our Specialty Products business segment value chain, we own and operate In Califernia a mine that 1s the world's largest
source of high quality rheology grade hectorite clay. This raw matenal, combined with our global manufacturing footprint, puts usin
a position to add value to our customers in the Personal Care, Coatings and Energy sectors on an international scale.

Combined with our 14
global manufacturning bases
and technical expertise.

The only high quality
rheology grade hectorite
mine in the world.

A global 14
leader sites

Enables our customers Personal Ceatings Energy
to create innovative, high Care
performance praoducts
More on More on More on
page 16 page 16 page 17

3 business
sectors




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ANDREW DUFF, CHAIRMAN

The positive results and significant strategic
progress made in 2017 are strong evidence
that the Group is strengthening the

foundations to Reignite Growth at Elementis.

2 Elementis plc Annual report ang accounts 2017

As | reflect on the first year following the launch of the new
strategy to Reignite Growth at Elementis, | am pleased to report
a year of strong strategic progress, solid earnings growth and
goad cash flow generaticn.

The acguisition of SummitReheals, disposal of the Surfactants
business and far reaching supply chain initiatives are a few
examples of the significant change taking place at Elementis.

| continue to be mpressed by the cornmitment and hard work
of all our employees. They are focused on enhancing our
customers' product performance through the application of
expertise and innovation. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to thank the entire team at Elementis.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

In 2047, revenue from continuing operations rose 27% to
$782.7m and revenue from total cperations, including the
discontinued Surfactants business, increased 26% from
$659.5m to $830.3m?. Operating profit for the year ncreased
by 7% from $85.1m to $91.4m, however this excludes the impact
from discontinued operations and adjusting items. Adjusted
operating profit for the year grew 32% to $128.1m% compared
to $97.0me4t in 2016, and profit after tax grew 73% from $68.1m
m 2016 to $117.6m in 2017, reflecting the contribution from the
newly acquired SummitRehers business and underlying growth
across all of our 3 business segments. Group adjusted diluted
earnings per share rose 12% from 17.4 cents%t in 2016 to

18.5 cents®d,

BALANCE SHEET

Following the acquisition in March 2017 of SummitRehels

for $362m, Elementis has moved from a net cash position of
$77.5m at the end of 2016 to a net debt position of $291.1m at
the end of 2017. One of the Group’s core strengths 15 its cash
flow generation and 2017 was no different, with adjusted
operating cash flow of $107.1m%2, up 12% on pnor year.

The IAS 19 deficit, on the Group’s post retirement benefit plans,
dechned from $30.1m at the end of 2016 to $10.5m at the end
of 2017. This was driven by the UK pension plan, which moved
further into surplus, The scheme accounts for the majority of
the Group's pensicn obligations.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy introduced in 2012, the Board
undertock to pay approximately one third of earnings, after
adjusting items, each year in a combination of intenm and final
dividends. In addition, a special dividend was paid each year
of up to 50% of the net cash balance at the end of the year,
provided there were no immediate investment plans for that cash.

Following the acquisition of SummitReners in 2017, and the

movement from a net cash to a net debt position, the Board has

revised its dividend policy to reflect our view of the long term

earnings and cash flow potenhal of the Group Going forward:

— Itis our intention to pay progressive ordinary dividends,
normally with a dividend cover of at least 2 tmes
adjusted earnings

— The interim dividend paid each year will normally be one
third of the prior full year dividend

— We look to maintain balance sheet flexibiity and strength in
the context of the Company’s investment pians. Taking that
into account, when net debt 1s structurally below one times
earmings (EBITDA) we will seek to make additional returns
to shareholders.




Thus year the Board is recommending a total ordinary dividend
of 8.80 cents per share {2016° 8 45 cents per share), reflecting
its confidence in the Group's business model and ability to
generate cash, the medium term prospects and the levels of
nvestment required over the short to medium term to deliver
the Reignite Growth strategy.

The final dividend will be paid on 1 June 2018 in pounds sterling
at an exchange rate of £1.00:$1.4035 {equivalent to a sterling
amount of 4.3463 pence per share) to shareholders on the
register at 4 May 2018. The Board declared an intenm dividend
at the time of the Intenm Results announcement of 2.70 cents
per share (2016: 2.70 cents).

GOVERNANCE

In February 2017 and March 2017, the Board appointed Sandra
Boss and Dorathee Deuring respectively as Nan-Executive
Directors. Therr appointments have contributed strongly to

the quality of Board discussions and, reflecting their areas of
expertise, brought new insights and a diversity of perspective
to the strategic conversations taking place. Andrew Christie
resigned from the Board at the AGM in May 2017, having
served for 9 years, | would like to thank Andrew for his
contribution both as a Non-Executive Director and as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, Steve Good has succeeded
Andrew as the Remuneration Committee Charman,

The interactions and communication flows between executives
and Non-Executive Directors have been strong and as a result
the new Board 1s well placed to challenge, guide and support
the executives in the delivery of cur Reignite Growth strategy.

The Board considers that it has appled fully all of the principles
and prowvisions of the UK Corporate Governance Cade during
2017. More information is provided in the Corporate
governance report.

In January 2018, we welcomed our new Company Secretary,
Laura Higgins, replacing Wai Weong who has stepped down
after 10 years’ service. Laura bnings significant company
secretarial expenence to us gained from roles in UK and
internaticnally guoted companies. | would personally like to
thank Wal for his contnbution and commitment over many years.

PEOPLE

Ensuring that we have the right people and talent for the future
needs of our business 1s critical to our continuing success.

As a Board we spend considerable time on succession
planning, and taient development across our business. Led
by Paul Waterman, there have been extensive changes in the
structure and composition of the Executive Leadership team
and we now have a strong executive team in place 1o take the
Reignite Growth strategy forward.

CUTLOOK

The positive results and significant progress made by the Group
in 2017, combined with a strong financial posttion, are strong
evidence that the Group 1s adopting the night strategy and
strengthening the foundations to Reignite Growth at Elementis,

Our priorities in 2018, the second year of the strategy, are o
maintain this momentum, We have seen encouraging signs in
2017 and are confident of delivering continued progress in 2018,

ANDREW DUFF
Chairman

¢ Total operations {both continuing and discontirued).
& After adjusting lems - see note 5
t Restated - see note 33
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Related material
Corporate governance report - page 45
Corporate social responsibility report — page 26

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
Q

What does a good Board culture mean to you?
A.
As Chairman | am responsible for developing a high performing
Board to drnve effectiveness and Company performance.

The Board culture that | foster 1s founded on the principles

of Integrity, respect, transparency and openness. | expect
Directors to demanstrate exemplary standards of propriety,
diigence and accountability sc that this permeates throughout
the organisation.

Q.

How has the Board enhanced its understanding
of the SummitReheis business?

A.
Following the acquisition of SummitReheis in March 2017,

the Board visited our SummitRehers sites in New York, US
and In Ludwigshafen, Germany. We met with members of the
SummitRehes leadership team and staff. Engaging with both
leadership and the front ine employees helps myself and the
Non-Executive Directors understand the operations and any
challenges staff may face so that we can best support them
in the Boardroom.

Q.

What are the Board’s 3 key priorities for 20182

A.

1. To recewe regular updates from Paul and Ralph and the
Executive Leadership team on the Reignite Growth strategy
and to consider progress being made against the 4 strategic
piltars, supporting and challenging as required

2. An external Board evaluation will be held during 2018 and
I will be warking with members of the Board on both the
evaluation approach and the improvement areas ident/fied
durning the 2017 internally held evaluation.

3. Enhancing relationships with our investors, including holding
a governance roadshow with our top investors.

Jodes afejens
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REIGNITE GROWTH - 2017 HIGHLIGHTS

PURSUE BEST GROWTH
OPPORTUNITIES

Why this is important
tor Elementis

Qur strategic chorces focus
an the best, most material
opportunities.

Bentone® gel and two tone lipstick

Bentone® ge!l s a sought after technology for the personal
care industry and is used in products such as two tone hpstick
produced by South Korean cosmetics brand Laneige. This
highly innovative and successful product uthises Bentone® gel
technology to keep the 2 colour layers discrete while allowing
for easy applicaton and an elegant blend of colour on the lips.

4 Elementis plc Annual report and accounts 2017

What we achieved in 2017

Key account management

Key account management 1s about accelerating and
deepening how we work and grow with our most important
global customers to become their chosen partner. In 2017, we
implemented key account processes with our fargest Personal
Care, Coatings and Energy customers. These processes
include anline account managemaent tools, relationship maps
and account specific strategies linked to our new innovation
pipeline process. As a consequence we have improved our
dialogue with our key customers and are better placed to
deliver Enhanced Performance Threugh Apphed Innovation

Personal Care global growth

In Personal Care we have a unique advantage by owning the
only commercial grade hectorite mine in the world. Hectonte
organaclay is all natural and pure white in colour, and 1s an
important ingredient to give products the nght viscosity.

In September 2017, we completed the Bentone® gel
production capacity expansion at our Livingston site in
Scotland. Combined with investment in our salesforce this has
supporied the geographic expansion and product penetration
of our unigue hectorite based personal care products.

In March 2017, we completed the acquisition of
SummitRehers, a global leader in the antiperspirant actives
sector. The integration of SummitRehers was completed in
December 2017 and the acquisihion 1s deflivering a Personal
Care business of scale with attractive growth opportunities.

Coatings Asia

in Asia, the opportunity is clear expanding our Coatings
presence, iIncluding bullding cur decorative coatings activities
in China and beyond In 2017, we separated our organisation
in Asia into 2 regions, India, Taiwan and South East Asia
(ITSEA) and China and North Asia (CANA). This will allow

us to build on our strong position In China whilst at the same
time increase our presence and focus on the burgeoning
econaomies in ITSEA. In September 2017, we appointed a
new Managing Director of ITSEA who is located in Mumbai
and leads our business development in this region.
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$179m

Personal Care revenue in 2017
2016: $63m

Jlodal siferens
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REIGNITE GROWTH - 2017 HIGHLIGHTS
CONTINUED

€39m

Anticipated proceeds from
Surfactants sale

6 Elementis plc Annual report and accounts 2017



PURSUE SUPPLY CHAIN
TRANSFORMATION

Why this is important

for Elementis

Elementis has a number of quality
manufacturing assets, however,
some are disadvantaged. We are
transferming cur suppky chan to
unfock cash and deliver increased
financial perfermance.

Sale of Surfactants

In December 2017, we reached an agreement to sell the
business to Kolb Distribution AG for a cash consideration of
€39m. The sale simplifies our supply chain and allows us to
reallocate capital to higher margin growth opportunities

7 Elementis ple Annual repart and accounts 2017

What we achieved in 2017

Address disadvantaged assets

In March 2017, we anncunced the sale of our US Colourants
business to Chromaflo Technelogies and, in December 2017
we agreed to sell the Surfaciants business, including the
Delden facility in Netherlands, to Kolby Distribution AG for €39m.
By exiing these strategically disadvantaged businesses we
have generated cash, simplified our supply chain and are able
to reallocate capital to higher margin growth opportunities.

In addition, we have progressed the sale of the Jersey City land,
the previous site of our US Calourants business, and are
explonng strategic options for the Dental business that we
acquired as part of SummitRehels.

Manufacturing productivity

Production within our network of assets is being optmised

1o mprove efficiency and reduce cost, During the year we
invested in the relocation of our flash dryer asset from St Louis
1o Charlesten, a prgject with significant returns.

In 2017, we completed a working capital review and identied
$18m of efficiencies to be achieved by the end of 2020.
Implementation in 2018 cnwards will see improved demand
planning, consistent service level agreements, new inventory
management tocls and product rationalisation. As the project
1s rolled out we anticipate an improved underlying working
capital performance.

Pursue procurement savings

In 2017, we have continued to focus on procurement savings

by diversifying our raw matertal suppliers, looking at different
geographies and lower cost suppliers. As at the end of 2017
just 25% of our raw material supples were from single supohers,
compared to 36% at the end of 2016 This has helped mitigate
cost increases and assure long term supply stability.

In addition, we have taken steps to improve our logistics
capabiltes with iInvestments in our own Infrastructure and
engagement with new third party logistics firms. This has
improved service levels, data visibility and lowered costs

yiodes nBajens
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REIGNITE GROWTH - 2017 HIGHLIGHTS

CONTINUED

INNQVATE FOR HIGH
MARGINS AND
DISTINCTIVENESS

Why this is important
for Elementis

Innovation 1s at the heart of what
we do. Focusing on the significant

innovation opportunities will
continue to enhance our
customers' performance.

Customer focused innovation in 2017

Customer Problem

Personal Care company unable
10 bring volat|e rheology modfier
inte production site

Coatings customer unable to find
suitable thickener for waterborne
paint arrless application

Significant demand from
Personal Care companies for
an additive that provides
emulsification as well as
rheological centrol

Efementis Sofution

Elemsnus developed anon
valatile modifier within 4 weeks
- no change to product labels

and customer product able

to move forward

Elementis created a thickener
to provide superior Goating
performance under arless
applcation — product able

to move forward
to commarcialisation

Launched Bentone® Luxe in
mid 2017 wath first sales already
registered - customers able to
gan rheclogy modification
and emulsification benefit
from single product

8 Elementis plc Annual report and accounts 2017

What we achieved in 2017

Sustain innovation leadership

For our customers we deliver Enhanced Performance Through
Appled Innovation. To sustain cur innovation leadership
position we made several changes in 2017 to how we operate.

Personal Care I1s now a matenai business for Elementis

and as a result we have Increased our resources In this area
o support new product development. The acquisition of
SummitReheis also brings a new, market leading technology
and mnovation opportunity 0 the business.

Implementation of a global research and development
function, and alignment with key account initiatives, mean
we are how better pasitioned to be innovation partners

to customers,

In addition, we have improved our decision making systems,
implemented stage gate processes and installed a new
pipeline management tool. These changes ensure that

we focus on the most attractive and matenal mnovation
opportunities available to us.

Deliver new product pipeline

In 2017, we launched several new praducts. In Persoenal
Care, our new multrfunctional next generation Bentone®
Luxe gel realised its first sales. This product combines
emulsification with rheolegical control and opens up new
opportunities for our Persenal Care business. In Coatings,
new acryhc thickeners for decorative applications are
delivering cost effective performance to customers in
emerging markets, and our organic thixotrepes in Europe
and North America continue to generate momentum,
with revenue growth of 13% in the year.

Our preduct pipeline is healthy with a range of active
projects in late stage development, reflecting the vanety
of global customers' formulations and needs. We cornitinue
to expand the utilisation of our hectorite resources across
Personal Care applications, mcluding skin care, and
leverage our technological capabiiies from Coatings.

In Coatings, trends such as the reduction of VOC content
and emerging market functional requirements continue

to shape our Innovation pipeline.
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3,431

New Personal Care retail products
launched globally containing
Bentone® gel in 2017

(Source Mintel)
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REIGNITE GROWTH - 2017 HIGHLIGHTS
CONTINUED

10

1,840

Hours of safety leadership
training completed in 2017
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CREATE A CULTURE OF
HIGH PERFORMANCE

Why this is important

for Elementis

All of our employees are very
impartant to us. Achieving the nght
organisation Is essential to grow
the business.

Elementis Code of Conduct

Dunng 2017, we refreshed and relaunched our Elementis
Code of Conduct. The Code reflects the spint of the 5 key
principles at Elementis and the relaunch has been supported
by new online training.

11 Elementis plc Annual report and accounts 2017

What we achieved in 2017

Structure

In 2017, we completed the restructuring of our business from
a divisional to a functional organisation. The )Implementation
of glebal functions across the Group means we are better
ahgned ta support strategy execution.

Investment in capability 1s key to enable our Reignite Growth
strategy. As part of this we have established a new global
Coatings team, which will be led by Luc van Ravenstein.
This will enable Elementis to pursue growth opportunities
more quickly and in an integrated way.

We are moving towards a flatter and more transparent structure.

Reflective of this we will intreduce 4 clear reporting segments
in 2018: Personal Care, Coatings, Chromium and Energy.

Process

During the year, we have implemented new performance
management processes to ensure optimal resource allocation
and strong execution.

The introduction of standardised management information
across the business provides more robust perfermance review

The implementation of workday®, a standardised and
automated human resources system means we have the
appropriate levels of employee management and evaluation
tools within the arganisation

Quarterly key account management reviews and innovation
pipeline reviews between the CEQ, marketing and sales ensure
that we, as an organisation are focusing on the most material
and commercially relevant epportunities.

All of these process iImprovements mean we are creating
a culture that focuses on transparency, delivery and, where
necessary, imely interventions.

yodas o1Beyens
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CEQO’'S STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

PAUL WATERMAN, CEC

2017 was a good start, but there is much
more to do in 2018 and beyond to realise
our aspirations.

12 Elemeantis ple Annual report and accounts 2017

In 2017, we have delivered profit growth across all 3 business
segments and strong cash flow generation. In the first year of
our Reignite Growth strategy implementation we have made
matenal progress. There is still however a lot to do. We as a
management team are convinced of Elementis’ growth potential
and look ferward to mantaining the momentum in 2018.

RESULTS

Locking back on 2017, | will start with the Group's financial
performance. Revenue from continuing operations rose by 27% on
the prior year from $6816.6m to $782.7m, with strong organic growth
and a first contribution from the recently acquired SummitRehers.
Operating profit for the year increased by 7% from $85,1m to
$91.4m, however this excludes the iImpact from discontinued
operations and adjusting items. Group adyusted operating profit
rose from $97.0mo4t 1o $128.1m¢4 and profit after tax increased
73% to $117 6m Group diluted adjusted EPS mcreased from

17.4 cents®at in 2016 to 19.5 centsa.

A hallmark of Elementis is its strong cash generation and In
2017 we delivered adjusted operating cash flow of $107.1m?ea,
Following the acguisition of SummitReheis in March 2017 for
£362m, Elementis moved from a net cash position of $77.5m In
2016 to a net debt position of $291.1m. The strong underlying
cash generation of the Group combined with portfolic changes
will enhance our future free cash flow and continue to
strengthen our balance sheet.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safety remains our top priority and we take our responsibilities
to our employees, customers, suppliers and visitors very
sericusly. While we continue to deliver safety performance that
1s amongst the industry leaders, we will not be satisfied until we
achieve our goal of no one getting hurl while working at Elementis.

In 2017, we made several improvements to our health and safety
pregramme. We established and communicated cur 10 Life
Saving Rules, upgraded our online health and safety training
programme and iImplemented a safety recognition programme
for recognising manufactunng locations that achieve significant
milestones in safety performance. All these changes reflect our
desire to reinforce safety as a value and to reduce ar eliminate
our workforce's exposure to occupational hazards

COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS

During 2017, we refreshed and relaunched our Code
of Conduct {the 'Code’). This reflects the spirit of the
5 key principles at Elementis:

— Behaving with honesty and integrity

— Following the letter and spirit of the law

— Treating each other fairly

— Acting in the best interest of Elementis

— Prolecting Elementis’ property and documents.

The relaunch of the Code has been supported by new cnline
training encompassing areas including farr dealing.
confidentiality and privacy, insider trading and fair disclosure,
bribery and other anti-corruption practices. All new employees
are required to undertake training on the Code and refresher
training Is given to all emplayees periodically. This 1s supgorted
by comprehensive whistleblowing procedures and an anti-
retaliation policy. The Board and Executive Leadership team
consider the Code to be cntical to the Group’'s continuing
success and in how it meets its corporate responsitilifies.

PEOPLE

Every person counts at Elementis. Enabling the organisation
to operate efficiently 1s essential for successful execution of
our Reignite Growth strategy. In 2017, we completed the
implementation of global functions across the Group and
invested in key leadership team capabilities required to deliver
the strategy. | have taken the decision o create a global




Coatings team that will be led by Luc van Ravenstein, This wilk
enable Elementis to pursue growth oppoertunities in Coatings
more quickly and n a more Integrated way. In addition,

Marci Brand will lead our Personal Care business. Marci is an
experenced leader who has recently joined Elementis from BP

After a career with Elementis spanning 40 years, Dennis
Valentino, President Chromium, has anncunced he will retire at
the beginning of July 2018 | would like to thank Dennis for the
substantial contribution he has made to Elementis. His impact
on the business will be long lasting. While we must say goodbye
te Dennis, | am pleased to announce that Eric Waldmann has
been appeinted Vice President, Chromium and will join the
Executive Leadership team. Eric 1s a proven leader who has
deep expenence in all aspects of our Chromium business.

REIGNITE GROWTH - STRATEGY UPDATE

In November 2016, we launched our new strategy to Reignite

Growth at Elementis. As outlined earlier in the Annual report,

we have made matenal progress In the first year of our strategic

implementation Key milestones duning the year included

— The successful acquistion of SummitRehers, the global leader
In antperspirant and pharma actives has transformed the
materiality of our Personal Care business and we completed
the integration by the end of 2017 as expected

— 23%" revenue growth in our legacy Perscnal Care business,
driven by both geographic expansion and deeper penetration

- Implementation of global key account management to include,
training, acceount loolkits and plans and performance
management

— The successful exit of our non-core US Colourants business
and a sale agreed to exit our Surfactants business

- The identification of $18m of working capital efficiency
measures that will be pursued in 2018 and beyond

OUTLOOK

In 2018, we will lagk to buld on the momentum we have created.
In terms of growth opporturities, we will continue to grow our
Personal Care business via continued geographic expansion and
deepened product penetration throughout our customer base.
The Coatings team will prioritise growth initiatives at global key
accounts and In key geographies such as China, South East Asia
and Latin America, In addition, we expect solid performance from
both the Chrormium and the Energy businesses to continue through
2018, In the global supply chain we will continue to oplimise our
asset base, dnve productivity improvements and pursue
working capital efficiency. Our inhovation pipeline is focused on
material opportunities that address the formulation objectives of
our customers and balances resources appropriately between
new product opportunities in Personal Care and Coatings.

SUMMARY

At Elementis we will maintain focus on actiens that will create
sustainabte value gver time. We start with an emphasis on safe,
relable operations that enable our employees to return home safe
at the end of each day. Our Code must be understood and
followed by everyone to ensure we do what 1s right, all the time,
and to create a place where people love to work. The Reignite
Growih strategy 1s clear and we must ensure all of our resources
are allocated to the most compelling value creating
opportunities and that our execution 15 excellent. We are fortunate
to have a talented team of people who are dedicated 1o the
success of Elemenns and for that | am very grateful 2017 was

a good starl, but there 1s much more to do in 2018 and beyond
to realise our aspirations, We are excited about the future.

PAUL WATERMAN
CEC

¢ Total operations (both continuing and discontinued)
A After agdjusting items —sea note &

1 Restated - see nole 33

* Constant currercy
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Related material

Reignite Growth — 2017 highlights — page 4

Our business segments’ performance — page 20
Corporate social responsibility report — page 26

Focus on health and safety

Training and empowering our people

Our Life Saving Rules were launched in 2017. All our
employees have ‘Stop Work Authority’ if they see unsafe
working conditions.

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
Q

How does the acquisition of SummitReheis help the
Reignite Growth strategy?

As part of our strategy we are focused on pursuing the best
growth opportunities, including growth of our Personal Care
business. The acquisition of SummitRehels creates a Personal
Care business of scale at Elementis with an improved customer
proposition and a stronger position in a high growth segment.

Q.

Are you confident you have the right people to deliver
this strategy?

Investment in talent 1s key to enable our Rergnite Growth
strategy. We have made strnides in this area throughout 2017
and will continue to do so as the business develops.

Q.

What improvements have you made to Health and
Safety in 20177

A

Durning 2017 we mplemented several new safety initatives
including Safety Leadership Training and Life Saving Rules.
These programmes were primarily implemented to motivate
employees to become mora engaged with safety and be more
proactive indentifying and addressing potential hazards in the
waork environment.
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OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We measure our performance aganst our Reignite Growth
strategy through both financial and non-financial key
performance indicators (KPIs).

We report on these KPIs on a monthly basis. We consider that
our KPIs represent meaningful and relevant measures of our
performance and are an important illustration of our ability to
achieve our objectives under each of our strategic pillars.

Link to remuneration

Our short term performance related pay incentives include
targets against the annual operating plan for adjusted Group
profit before tax, adiusted operating profit and average trade
working capital fo saies ratic.

Our long term incentives include targets against EPS and total
shareholder return which are a subset of the Group's financial
KPls. Further details can be found in the Directors' remuneration
report on page 57.

FINANCIAL KPIs
Return on operating capital employed

29% 22%
22% -fbps

RCCE including goodwill

S 12%
-2bps

2016 2017

Description

The return on operating capital employed ( ROCE") 1s defined as
operating profit after adjusting stems divided by operating capital
employed, expressed as a percentage. Operating capital employed
comprises fixed assets {excluding goodwill), working capital and
cperating provisions. Cperating provisions include self insurance and
environmental provisions but exclude retirement benefit chligations.

Performance in 2017
| The Group's ROCE was 22%9% for 2017 (2016: 29%%t), ROCE for the
Group including goodwill was 12% in 2017 (2016: 14%).

Link to strategic priority

Adjusted Group profit before tax

sram $115.2m
+25%

$92.5m

2016 2017

Description

Adjusted Group profit before tax 15 defined as the Group profit
pefore tax on total operations (continuing and discontinued) after
adjusting items, excluding adjusting items refating to tax,

Performance in 2017
In 2017, the adjusted Group proft before tax was $115.2moa
{2016 $92.5moes1),

Adjusted operating cash flow

107 $107Am

$96.0m +12%
2016 2017
Description

Adjusted operating cash flow 1s defined as the net cash flow from
adjusted EBITDA plus changes in working capital, provisions and
share based payments, less net caprtal expenditure,

Performance in 2017
In 2017, the adjusted operating cash flow was $107,1m?oa
(2016 $96.0 moat),

Link to strategic priority

Contribution margin

A47% 47% 47 0/0

No change

2016 2017

Description

The Group's contribution margin, which 1s defined as total revenue
less all vanable costs, divided by total revenue and expressed as
a percentage.

Performance in 2017
In 2017, the coniribution margin was 47%¢ (2018 47%9),

Link to strategic priority

Average trade working capital to safes ratio

22% 1 9%
19% +3pts

2018 2007

Description

The trade working capital to total revenue ratio 15 defined as the
12 month average trade working capital divided by total revenue,
expressed as a percentage. Trade working capital comprises
nventories, trade recewvables and trade payables. It specifically
excludes prepayments, capital or interest related recervables

or payables, changes due to currency movements and items
classified as other receivables and other payables.

Performance in 2017
The Group's 12 month average trade working capital to sales ratic
at 31 December 2017 was 19%¢ (2016 22%¢).

Link to strategic priority
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Link to strategic priority




Adjusted operating profit/adjusted operating margin

$128.1m

$128.1m
+32%
$97.0m
Operating margin
0
1477 154% 15'4 A)
+0.7pts
2016 2017
Description

Adjusted operating profit 1s the profit derived frem the normal
operations of the business after adjusting items Ad|usted operating
margin 15 the ratio of adjusted operating profit, to total revenue,

Performance in 2017

The Group achieved an adjusted operating profit of $128 1méa

for 2017 (2016. $97.0meat), The Group's adjusted operating margin
was 15 4% compared to 14.7%%t in 20186,

Link to strategic priotity

NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

Environmental impact

Tier 3 0 Ter 2 0

0 o No change o 0 No change
ncidents  incidents incidants  incidents
2016 207 2016 2017
Description

We record and categorise environmental ncidents into tiers based
on the seventy or actions taken by regulatory authonhes Tier 3
incidents are those that have a significant impact on the environment
and require reporting to an external authority and where enforcement
action 1s ikely Tier 2 incidents have a minor impact and require
notrfication but are likely to result in mimmal acton by the authorities

Performance in 2017
Far the year ended 31 December 2017 there wereno Tier 2 and 3
incidents (2016, also the same}

Link to strategic priority

¢ Total cperations (both continuing and discontinued)
& After adjusting ilems —see note 5
t Restated —see note 33
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Total recordable incident rate (TRIR)

110
1.03 7%

0.88 including SummiiReheis
0.88
+15%
excluding SummitiReheis
2016 2017
Description

Elementis uses the US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OHSA) definition for recordable iyuries and ilinesses.
TRIR I1s the total number of recordable incidents multiphed by
200,000, divided by total hours worked by all employees during

the year,

Performance in 2047

The TRIR for the year ended 31 December 2017 was 1.10

(2016 1.03). The main contributing factor to the increase in 2017
was the acquisition of SummitRehers, excluding SummitRehers
performance was 0.88.

Link to strategic priority

Lost Time Accidents (LTA)

2
+60%

reduction

2016 2017

Description
LTA)s an injury or iliness that requires greater than 3 days away from
work not Including the day of incident.

Performance in 2017
The LTA for the year ended 31 December 2017 was 2 days
{2(16° 5 days).

Link to strategic priority

Key:
Link to strategic priority

Pursue best growth opportunities

Drive supply chain transformation

Innovate for high margins and distinctiveness

Create a culture of high performance

Related material

Our business segments — page 16

Our business segments' performance — page 20
Corporate social respensibility report — page 26
Directors’ remuneration report — page 55
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OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

SPECIALTY PRODUCTS

We provide high value functional additives 1o the Persenal
Care, Coatings and Energy end markets that improve the flow
characteristics and performance of cur customers’ products
and produclion processes.

2017 revenue

$179.3m

PERSONAL CARE
Business model

Competition
Elementis s a leader in

Our Personal Care business
supplies rheology modifiers
based on organcclay,
synthetic and natural
Ingredients to Personal Care
manufacturers. Through our
recently acquired
SummitReheis operations,
we also supply the active
Ingredient for the production
of antiperspirant deodorants

Customers

Qur customers include
global and local Personal
Care manufacturers.

For more information

organcclay based rheclogy
modifiers and antiperspirant
active ingredients.
Competitors include BYK,
Gulbrandsen and others.

Compettion in these
segments 1s based on
formulation capabtlities,
customer service leveals
and price.

Market drivers

Demand for Personal Care
products 1s driven primarily
by disposable income
levels, product innovation
and consumer trends.

www.elementisspecialties.com
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2017 revenue

$372.9m

COATINGS

Business model

Our Coatings business
supplies rheclogy modifiers
and additives to
manufacturers of decorative
and industnal coatings

Customers

Our customers are
manufacturers of decorative
and industriat coatings

Competition

Elementis s a leader in the
global rheology modifiers
and additives segment.
Our competitors include
BYK, Ashland, Arkema,
Dow Chemicals and cthers.,

Competition is based

on quality of service,
technological capabilities
and price.

Market drivers
Demand for decorative
coatings is influenced
by disposable income,
maintenance spend,
housing transactions
and construction acgtivity.
Demand for industnal
coatings 1s driven by
general macroecanomic
actvity levels and sector
specific (e.g. automotive,
marine) factors.




2017 revenue

$58.8m

ENERGY

Business model

Qur Energy business
supplies rheological
medifiers and additives
primarily for oil and gas
driling and stimulation
activities. These products
are formulated to lubncate
the drill bit, centrol formatian
pressure and remove
cuttings in drilling fluids.

Customers

Our customers are typically
the global and large
regional independent
ollfield service companies
who use cur products in
varicus ol and gas
producing regrons around
the warld

Competition

Elementis 1s a leader in
organoclay based rheology
modifiers for energy
applications. Technical
capability and supply

chain footprint are top

of the buyer crieria.

Competitors in this market
include BYK and multiple
regional companies.

Market drivers

The ail price 1s the primary
anver of drilling nig activity
levels and the number of
wells drilled However, there
are also other important
dnivers such as well head
breakeven cost, the number
of wells per rng, the length
of lateral driling and the
drilled and uncompleted
well count (DUC)
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CHROMIUM

We are a leading producer of chromium chemicals. We provide
chromium chemicals to customers that make their products
more durable and which are used Iin a wide range of sectors

and applications.

2017 revenue

$186.7m

Business model

We supply a range of
chromium chemicals
ncluding dichromate,
chrome axide, chromic
acid and chrome sulphate.
These products are used
by customers across a
wide range of sectors and
applcations to make their
praducts mare corrosien
resistant and durable.

We are the only domestic
producer of chromium
chemicals in the US.

Customers

Qur customers span a
range of iIndustries including
pigments, chrome metal,
refractory, metal finishing,
timber treatment and
leather tanning.

For more information

www elementischromium.com

Competition

Fiementis has approximately
a 10% share of the glebal
chromium chemicals market.

Competitors range from
multinational companies to
privately owned businesses.

Market drivers
Across our 3 man product
categories, the demand
drivers are as follows.

— Chrome oxide:
coenstruction, coatings
and aircraft engine
demand

— Chromic acid
construction and
infrastructure demand

— Chrome sulphate
beef consumption.

SURFACTANTS

In December 2017, we agreed the sale of our Surfactants
business to Kolb Distribution AG for €39m.
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OUR FOCUSED BUSINESS MODEL

WE ARE A GLOBAL SPECIALTY CHEMICALS BUSINESS
SERVING CUSTOMERS IN THE AMERICAS, EUROPE AND ASIA
ACROSS A WIDE RANGE OF MARKETS AND SECTORS.

Inputs:
Capital, customers, innovation, peopie, assets, supply chain.

The way we
work helps
us create
sustainable
value
Business Health
conduct
and ethics and safety
Chromium
Specialty
Products:
Personal Care
Coatings
Energy
Surfactants
Risk Product
management stewardship
Innovation

and product
development

Value for our stakeholders:
Shareholders. employees, custemers, communitias and the environment.

Driven by our Reignite Growth strategy:
Pursue best growth opportunities, Pursue supply chain transformation,
Innovate for high margins and distinctiveness and Create a culture of high performance.
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INPUTS WE NEED TO CREATE VALUE

Capital

We operate within a disciplined financial framework to invest
In the best opportunities.

Customers

Through our global key account management team, we builg
and maintain ¢lose relationships with cur customers to meet
their needs.

Innovation

New product development and innovation pipeline is supportied
by technical service and expertise. Our techrical service
laboratories work closely with our customers to deliver
Enhanced Performance Through Applied Innovation.

People
We have a committed and highly skilled workforce focused
on customer collaboration

Assets
We have a distinctive and unique asset base and own the only
high quality rheclogy grade hectonite mine in the world.

Supply Chain
We have a global manufacturing footprint of 20 sites where
safety 1s aligned to operational performance.

CREATING SUSTAINABLE VALUE

Risk management

We have strong governance and risk management controls
in place. Effective risk management supports the successful
delivery of our strategic chjectives. We have an established
risk management framework to dentify, evaluate, miigate
and monitor the nsks we face as a business.

Health and safety

We are committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace
for employees, contracters and site visitors and minimising
our impact on the environment from our operations

Product stewardship

Comprehensive product safety and product stewardship
processes are in place which support product safety and
regulatory compliance — we strive to provide innovative
products that create value for customers that are safe for people
and the environment when used for therr intended purpose.

Business conduct and ethics

QOur Code of Conduct sets out our core values and the
standards of conduct expected of everyone who works
for Elementis in any of its worldwide operations, including
compliance with all applicable laws and regutation.

Innovation and product development

We have a global R&D function focused con strengthering
the pipeline of new customer focused preduct development
and innovation.
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HOW OUR BUSINESS CREATES VALUE

FOR CUSTOMERS
Specialty Products

Provides functional additives that enhance customers’
products in applications such as cosmetics, paints and

oll and gas exploration

Chromium

Provides chemicals to customers that make their products
more durable such as aerospace alloys, timber treatment

and leather producticn.

Surfactants

Provides surface active ingredients which can be used in
textiles, leather, water treatment and construction chemicals.

THE VALUE WE CREATE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Shareholders

Strong balance sheet and
cash generation delivering
sustainable returns to
shareholders

Dividends paid in 2017

$77.8m

Employees

Qur total global workforce
of around 1,600 15 cntical for
the delivery of our Reignite
Growth strategy

2017 employee salaries

$126.9m

Customers

Improving dialogue with
our key customers ensures
we are betler placed to
deliver the best growth
oppertunities

Total revenue from
customers

$830.3m°

Communities

Acting responsibly as

a company better serves
the communities where
we operate —we are rated
against stringent social
and environmental criteria

A member of

FTSE4Good

Environment

We place a great emphasis
on protecting people

and operating responsibly

Total recordable incident
rate of injuries and
illnesses {excluding
SummitReheis)

0.88

Number of Tier 2 or
Tier 3 environmental
incidents

Zero

¢ Total eperations (both continuing and discontinued)
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OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS’ PERFORMANCE

SPECIALTY PRODUCTS

Headlines

~ Revenue up 33%" to $611.0m, driven by organic revenue
growth and first ime contribution from SummitRehers

~ Persgnal Care revenue up 186%™ to $179.3m driven by
geographic expansion and market penetration of hectorite
based preducts and SummitRehels impact

— Coatings revenue up 4%, excluding impact of US
Cofourants disposal, to $372.9m with growth across all
regions

—~ Energy up 65%* to $58.8m due to global demand recovery

— Operating profit up 34%t to $109.0ma with strong organic
growth and pricing responses.

Financial performance

in Speciaity Products, revenue was $611.0m compared
with $460.4m in the same pericd last year, representing
an increase of 33% on a constant currency basis driven
by strong organic grawth and a first contribution from
SummitRehers. Unless stated otherwise, the remainder of
this commentary refers to constant currency movements.

Adiusted operating profit was $109.0ma, compared wath
$81.6mt In the previous year, representing a 28% mcrease
Adjusted operating margin for the period was 17.8%4,

up on 17.7%4 in the prior year, due to growth of our high
margin Personal Care business and pricmng actions taken
in the period.

PERSONAL CARE

in Personal Care, revenue rose by 186% to $179.3m, dniven
by our existing hectorite based operations and the imitial
contribution from SummitRehels. Our existing Personal Care
business grew 23% in the period with rapid sales growth In
our Bentone® gel product range, strong performance in Asia
and growth at pur key global accounts. This was supported
by the completion in September 2017 of the expansion of
aur Bentone® gel capactty i Livingston, Scotland.
SummitRehels performance in the period was resilient

with safes of $102.0m as price increases were activated

in response to raw material price inflation,
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COATINGS

Excluding the impact of the US colourants business
disposal, Coatings revenue rose 4% to $372.9m, with growth
in all regions. Coatings Amerca (excluding cofourants) had
arecord sales year and finished 7% above 2016 with strong
perfarmance in North America, and market share gains in
Latin America, supported by the continued ramp up of our
New Martinsville plant. Coatings Asia mproved by 4% with
solid growth i our largest market of Chuina and improved
demand in Australasia and South East Asia. In EMEA,
Coatings finished up 2% with good performance in
continental Europe. Across all regions (excluding colourants)
our second half performance was much improved with 7%
growth compared to 2% 1n the first half.

ENERGY

in Energy, revenue rase by 65% to $58.8m due ta a strong
market recovery, geographic expansion of our customers
and progress with our global key account. Sales were
notably strenger in North America where shale activity
levels and efficiency gains are encouraging.



Group performance

Revenue
Effect of Increase/
Revenug exchange {decrease) Revenue
2016 rates 2016 2017
$million Smilien Smilion $million
Specialty Products 460.4 0.5 1501 611.0
Chromium 168.8 - 17.9 186.7
Inter-segment (12.6} - (2.4) {15.0)
Revenue from continuing operations 616.6 0.5 165.6 782.7
Discontinued operations — Surfactants 4341 0.7 4.0 478
Inter-segment from discontinued operations (0.2) - - (0.2}
Total revenue from continuing and discontinued operations® 659.5 1.2 169.6 830.3
Adjusted operating profit
Effect of Increase/
Operating profitt exchange {decrease) Qperating profit
20168 rates 2018 20178
$million Srmilion Smilign $million
Specialty Products 81.6 34 24.0 109.0
Chromium 271 - 3.0 301
Central costs {11.1) 0.5 {5.8) {16.4)
Ad)usted operating profit from continuing operations 97.6 38 212 122.7
Discontinued operations — Surfactants (0.6} 0.1 59 5.4
Total adjusted operating profit from centinuing
and discontinued operations® 97.0 4.0 2741 1281
CHROMIUM SURFACTANTS
Headlines Headlines

— Revenue up 11% to $186.7m, driven by strong global
volume recovery and improved pricing In response
to raw matenal inflation

— Adjusted operafing profit up from $27.T1mé in 2016 fo
$30.1m2 with organic sales growth partially offset by
higher vanable and fixed costs

Financial performance

Chromium revenue In 2017 was $186.7m compared

to $168.8m in the previous year, an increase of 11%

on a constant currency basis. As a result of improved
macroeconomic fundamentals volumes rose 9% on 2016
with streng demand in both Narth America and the rest

of the world The business experienced an increase In
demand in the following markets: North America refractory,
North America pigments, Spanish tile and rest of the world
metal firishing and timber treatment [n response to higher
chrome ore pnces, average selling prices in 2017 were
higher than the previous year

Adjusted operating profit rose by 11%4 to 530.1ma with
streng organic growth and stable contribution margins
partially offset by unplanned mantenance costs at the
Corpus Christ and Castle Hayne facilities.

¢ Total operations (both continuing and discantinued)
A After adjusting items —see note 5

+ Restated - see note 33

* Constant currercy
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— Revenue up 9%" on prior year to $47.8m and operating
performance significantly mproved due to increased
sales In the first half of the year

— Deterioration in performance in second half of 2017
due to the loss of a significant customer

— Sale of Surfactants business to Kolb Distribution AG
{'Kalb"} for €39m agreed in December 2017.

Financial performance

Revenue in 2017 rose 9% on a constant currency basis to
$47.8m as a resuit of favourable sales achieved in the first

& months of the year that did not sustain throughout the year.
Volumes were 20% lower than 2016 due to the loss of a key
customer in the second half of the year that significantly
reduced capacity utiisation at the plant.

Operating performance rose from a loss of $0.6ma in 2016
1o a profit of $5.4mé due to the Increased sales in the first
nalf of the year

In December 2017, we agreed the sale of the Surfactants
business, ncluding the Delden facility, to Kolb for a
consideration of €39m. In addition to all of the Surfactants
products, the Delden facility also manufactures a range of
oroducts sold by the Specialty Products segment. As part

of this transaction Elementis will enter inte a long term supply
agreement with Kolb for continued sourcing of a limited
number of Coatings products. This will cost Elementis
approximately $8m per annum

Related material
Qur business segments — page 16
Finance reporl — page 22
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FINANCE REPORT

RALPH HEWINS, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

In 2017 we made progress across key
earnings metrics with underlying growth
across all 3 business segments, along
with the acquisition of SummitReheis.
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GROUP RESULTS

In 2017, revenue from continuing operations was 27% higher at
$782.7m compared with $616.6m last year, Constant currency
revenue in our Specialty Products segment increased by 33%,
with strong performances in Personal Care and Energy. Personal
Care benefited from the first tme contribution of SummitRehers
and strong growth in our legacy operations, while Energy
expenenced a strong market recovery. Ceatings achieved
steady growth as constant currency revenue grew 4% to

$372 9m. In our Chromium segment, revenue increased 11% as
a consequence of global demand growth and price increases
implemented in response to raw materal cost increases.

Operating profit for the year increased by 7% from $85.1m to
$91.4m, however this excludes the impact from discontinued
operations and adjusting items. Adjusted operating profit for the
year was $128 1med, compared to $97.0meat in 2016, an increase
of 32%, or 27% excluding currency movements. Group adjusted
operating margin ncreased from 14.7%02t ta 15.4%%4, due to
growth in cur igh margin Personal Care secter and pricing
actions taken in the period. Profit after tax rose from $68.1m in
2016 to $117.6m, driven by underlying earnings growth and a
one off tax credit as result of changes to US tax legislation.

ADJUSTING ITEMS

A number of items have been recorded under ‘adiusting items’
In 2017 by virtue of their size and/or one time nature, in order to
provide a better understanding of the Group's resuits. The net
impact of these items on the Group profit before tax for the year
1s a charge of $30.9m¢ {2016: $17.0m?t) of which $31.3m relate
to continuing cperations. The items fall into a number of
categories, as summansed below,

Restructuring
In 2017, restructuring costs relate to the IFRS 2 cost of buyouts
associated with the new CEQO and CFQ appointed in 2016.

Business transformation

Curing the year, the Group continued the business
transformation started in 2016. Costs were incurred in 2017

in delivery of key account management and working capital
improvement phases of the transformation. The costs of these
exercises were $3.4m.

Environmental provisions

The Group's enviranmental provision is calculated on a
discounted cash flow basis, reflecting the time penod over
which spending is estmated to take place. Assessments with
our external advisers at the end of 2017 have resulted in a2 $2.1m
provision increase. As these costs relate to non-operational
facilities the costs associated are classed as adjusting items.

SummitReheis acquisition costs

In March 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of
SummitReheis and as a cansequence incurred acquisition
related costs of $9.7m. These include financing costs, legal
fees and retention ncentives for key SummitRehers employees.

Uplift due to fair value of SummitReheis inventory

In accordance with IFRS 3, inventory held within SummitRehels
was revalued to fair value on acquisition, representing an uplift
of $4m over the book valug, As all stock acquired with
SummitRehels was sold by the year end, the additional expense
recognised n cost of sales due to this far value upift has been
classed as an adjusting rtem.



REVENUE

2017 2016
$million $millon
Specialty Products 611.0 460.4
Chromium 186.7 168.8
Inter-segment {15.0) (12.6)
Revenue from continuing operations 782.7 616.6
Discontinued operations — Surfactants 47.8 431
Inter-segment from discontinued operations {0.2) (0.2)
Total revenue from continding and discontinued operations® 830.3 659.5
OPERATING PROFIT
2017 2016
Adjusted
Adjusted operating
Qperating Adjusting operating Operaung Adjusting profit
profit items profit profit items restated!
$millions $million $miillion $mulligha Smillion $milhon
Specialty Products 93.5 15.5 109.0 775 4.1 81.6
Chromium 28.8 1.3 301 23.6 3.5 274
Central costs (30.9) i4.5 {16.4) {15.7) 4.6 (11.1)
Operating profit from continuing
operations 91,4 31.3 122.7 85.1 12.2 97.3
Discontinued operations — Surfactants 5.8 (0.4) 5.4 (0.6) 0.3 (0.3)
Operating profit from continuing and
discontinued operations® 97.2 30.9 1281 84.5 12.5 97.0
ADJUSTING ITEMS
Specialty Central Continuing Discontinuad
Products Chremium costs operations operations Tetal
Credil{charge) $million $million $mullion $millien $million $million
Restructuring 0.3 - (0.9) {0.6) - (0.6)
Business transformation - - (3.4) (3.4) - (3.4)
Environmental provisions - (1.1 (1.0) (2.1 - (2.1)
SummitReheis acquisition costs (2.6) - {7.1) (9.7) - (9.7)
Uplift due to fair value of SummitReheis inventory 4.0) - - {4.0) — 4.0)
Sale of Colourants business and closure of Jersey City site 2.5 - - 2.5 - 25
Release of legal provision - - - - a7 0.7
Disposal costs (0.9) - 21 (2.2) (0.3) (2.5)
Amortisation of intangibles ansing en acquisition (11.6) 0.2) - (1.8) - (11.8)
Total (15.5} (1.3) {14.5) (31.3} 0.4 {30.9)

Sale of Colourants business and closure

of Jersey City site

In March 2017, Elementis dispased of its US Colourants
business and closed the Jersey City site, The $2,5m profit

on sale of the business and costs associated with the closure
of the site are classed as adjusting item. The site 1s planned
to be disposed of in 2018

Release of legal provision
Dunng 2017, the Group released $0.7m from a provision
set up (n 2015 relating to a regulatory case in Europe

Disposal costs

In 2017, Elementis incurred a number of cos(s associated

with the sale of the Delden facility and Surfactants business
{ptanned for 2018). As the profit on sale of the assets and
business will be treated as an adjusting item In 2018 the $2.5m?
one-off associated costs are being classed similarly in 2017.
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Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition

In previous years, Elements has not adjusted operating
profit for the amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition.
Following the acquisiticn of SummitReheis, the Directors
reviewed this polcy and concluded that excluding such a
charge from the operating profit would provide readers of the
accounts with a better understanding of the Group's results
on its operating activities. As such, this charge of $11.8m s
included within adjusting tems

CURRENCY HEDGING

Althcugh a large part of the Group's business 1s transacted

in US dollars, the Group alsg transacts in other currencies, in
particular euros, pounds sterling and Chinese renminb. In order
to reduce earnings volatility from these currency expaosures, the
Group takes out cash flow hedges each year where these are
readity available In 2017, overall currency mavements were
such that the net impact of these hedge transactions was a
charge to aperating profit of $0.3m (2016: loss of $5.0m),

¢ Total operations (both continuing and driscontinued)
& After adjusting ilems — see note 5
t Restated - see note 33
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FINANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

CENTRAL COSTS

Central costs are those costs that are not identifiable as
expenses of a particular business and comprise expenditures
of the Board of Directars and corporate office. In 2017, central
costs were $16.4m, up $5.3m on the previous year due to an
increase in variable remuneration and investment in capability.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses are administration costs incurred and paid by
the Group’s pension schemes, which relate primarily to former
employees of legacy businesses, and were $1.2m n 2017
compared to $1.4m In the previous year.

NET FINANCE COSTS

2017 2016
Smillion $ruthon
Finance income 0.2 01
Finance cost of borrowings {9.7) (0.8)
(9.5) {0.7
Change in discount rate used
for environmental provisions - {4.5)
Net pension finance costs (1.1) {1.0)
Discount unwind on provisions (1.1} (1.4)
11.7) (7.8)

Net finance costs increased by $4.1m to $11.7m driven by
increased net borrowing ¢osts resulting from the acquisition of
SummitReheis. Net borrowing costs include the cost of the debt
used fo finance the acquisibion and amortised arrangement and
commitment fees on unutiised borrowing facllities, as well as
net interest on deposits and borrowings. Pension finance costs,
which are a function of discount rates under IAS 19 and the
value of the schemes' deficit or surplus positions, were broadly
similar with the previous year at $1.1m (2016: $1.0m), The
discount unwind on provisions relates to the annual ime valus
of the Group's environmental provisions, which are calculated
on a discounted basis and at $1.1m was $0.3m lower than the
previous year, a result of the reduction at end 2016 of the
discourt rate used.

TAXATION
Tax charge

2017 2016
Effective Effective
rate rata”
Smillion per cent $milkont  percent
Reported tax charge (34.2) (43.8) 7.2 9.5
Adjusting tems 56.7 - 37 -
After adjusting items 225 20.5 10.9 1.7

The tax charge on profits excluding discontinued operations
represents an effective rate after adjusting tems for the year
ended 31 December 2017 of 20.5% (2616 11.7%). The Group
1s International and has operations in several junisdictions ang
benefits from cross border financing arrangements. Accordingly,
tax charges of the Group in future periods will be affected by
the profitability of operations in different jurisdictions, changes
to tax rates and reguiations in the jurisdictions within which the
Group has cperations, as well as the ongeing impact of the
Group's funding arrangements. In 2017, the Group's tax rate
was significantly impacited by the reduction in US tax rates

as a result of the Tax and Jobs Act which made several major
changes fo the US 1ax code including a reduction in the US
Federal tax rate to 21% from 35%. This change gave nse toc a
$51.0m tax adjusting item and should enable ihe Group tax rate
to remain at around 20% n the medium term.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Note g to the 'Consolidated firancal statements' sets out

a number of calculations of earnings per share. To better
understand the underlving performance of the Group, earmings
per share reported under IFRS 1s adjusted for tems classified
as adjusbing and includes profits from both continuing and
discontinued operations

Diuted earnings per share, after adusting items, was

19.5 cents® compared to 17.4 cents®t in the previous year.
The year on year Increase was a result of higher operating profit
which more than cffset the impact of a higher tax rate in the
current year. Basic earnings per share before adjusting stems
was 25.4 cents® compared o 14.7 centset in 2016. Adjusting
iterns reduced basic earrings per share by 5.6 cents in 2017
{increase by 2 9 cents in 2016). Adjusting items In 2017 are
descnbed eariier in this report.

DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS

Durning 2017, the Group paid a fmal dividend in respect of

the year ended 31 December 2016 of 5.75 cents per share
{2016 5.75 cents) and a special dividend of 8.35 cents per
share {2016: 8.00 cents). An intenim dividend of 2.70 cents per
share (2016: 2,70 cents) was paid on 29 September 2017 and
the Board 1s recommending z final dvidend of £.10 cents per
share which will be pard on 1 June 2018.

ADJUSTED CASH FLOW?A
The adjusted cash flow 1s summansed below.

2017 2016
fsmillion smillion
EBITDA! 156.0 122.2
Change In working capital 0.4 134
Capital expendriure (41.6) {35.3)
Other 7n 4.3)
Operating cash flow 1071 96.0
Pension deficn payments (6.3) 4.7
Interest and tax {17.0) (35)
Adjusting items {10.5) 5.1}
Other (1.4) {0.2)
Free cash flow 7.9 825
Dividends paid (77.8) (76.2)
Acqguisitions and disposals {361.8) -
Currency fluctuations 0.9} {2.8}
Mavement in net cash (368.8) 3.5
Net cash at start of year 775 74.0
Net cash at end of year {291.1) 775

1 EBITDA - earnings before interest, tax, adjusting items, depreciation and
amortisation.

The Group delvered adjusted operating cash fiow of $107.1m
representing a 12% increase on 2016. This improved
performance was driven by increased EBITDA partially offset by
a reduced warking capital inflow and higher capital expendiure.
Working capital performance was a $0.4m inflow with an
improved position n trade payables offset by deterioration in
trade recewables and inventories. Capital expenditure of $41.6m
In 2017 was $6.3m higher than in 2016 as the Group continued
to invest in growth opportunities including the Bentone® gel
capacily expansion in Scotland.




Free cash flow fell from $82.5m to $71.9m as a result of
increased interest payments following the acquisiion of
SummitReheis for $362m. Pension payments increased from
$4.7m in 2016 to $6.3m due to timing differences on payments
made under the funding agreement concluded with the UK
Trustees in 2015,

As a result of the SummitReheis acquisition in March 2017
the Group moved from a net cash position of $77.5m in 2016
to a net debt position of $291.1m at the end of 2017.

within environmental provisions, which decreased by $3.6m

in 2017, there was a $6 1m utlisation in the year which more
than offset the $2 3m proviston Increase. The self-insurance
provision represents the Group's estimate of rts liability arising
from retained liabilities under the Group's Insurance programme,
Within the restructuning and other provisions categories, the
$2.7m balance ncludes the remaining hability under a nght of
first refusal agreement, a provision for an engoing regulatory
case In Europe and future payments relating to recrganisation
measures taken during 2016.

BALANCE SHEET PENSIONS AND OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS
2017 2016 2017 2016

$million $milon $million Smilban
Intangible fixed assets 717.2 359.9 Net (surplus)/liability:
Tangible fixed assets 219.5 217.3 UK (21.9} 4.3
Working capital 151.4 118.0 us 211 294
Net tax llabilities (86.8) {(76.3) Other 1.3 5.0
Provisions and retirement 10.5 301
benefit obligations {43.2) (69.3)
Net cash {291.1) 77.5 %T( IPL»'lN Hhe G | he UK defined

_ e largest of the Group's retirement plans 1s the efine

Asset held for sale 35.3 benefit pension scheme {'UK Scheme'} which at the end of 2017
Total Equity 702.3 6271 had a surplus, under IAS 49, of $21 9m (2016: $4.3m). The UK

Group equity increased by $75.2m in 2017 {2016. decrease

of $26.7m). Intangikle fixed assets increased by $357.3m with
intangibles and goodwill associated with the SummitReheis
contrbuting $159.1m and $203.0m respectively on acquisition.
Working capital increased by $33.4m driven primarily by
underlying growth of the business and the acquisition of
SummitReheis. Net tax habilites increased by $10.5m, as the
tax charge on profits for the year after adjusting items and
Including discontinued operations of $23.4m and currency
translation adjustments exceeded actual cash tax paid. The
addrional tax habiities ansing on the acguisition in the year
were largely offset by the reduction in US tax rates (which has
been recorded as an adjusting item). Movements in provisions
and retirement benefit obiigations are discussed elsewhere in
this report. The Group moved from a net cash to a net debt
positien as described in the previous section.

ROCE has fallen from 29% in 2016 to 22% in 2017 due to the
increase In capilal employed {(excluding gocdwill) ansing on
the acquisition of SummitRebers.

The main dollar exchange rates relevant to the Group are set
out below.

2017 2016

Year end Average  Yearend Average

Pounds stering 0.74 0.78 0.81 0.73
Euro 0.83 0.89 0.95 0.90

PROVISIONS

The Group records a pravision in the balance sheet when it has
a present obligaton as a result of past events, which 1s expected
to result in an cutflow of economic benefits in order to settle the
cbligation The Greup calculates provisions on a discounted
basis. At the end of 2017, excluding provisions within Labilities
classified as held for sale, the Group held provisions of $32.7m
{2016° $39.2m), consisting of environmental provisions of
$27.8m (2016: $31.4m), self insurance provisicns of $2.2m
{2016 $2.5m) and restructuring and other provisions of $2.7/m
{2016 $5.3m).
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Scheme 1s relatvely mature, with approximately two thirds of

its gross labilities represented by pensions in payment, and 1s
closed to new members. Positive asset returns in the year of 6%
(2016: 19%} partially offset the $18 4m financial cost of labiliies
(2016: $24.2m) and other hability adjustments of $12.9m

(2016: $110.8m) which arose due to lower discount rates based
on real corporate bond yields. Company contributicns of $7.3m
reflect the funding agreement reached with the UK Trustees in
2015 following the September 2014 tnennial valuation. The £5.2m
contnbution far 2017 under this agreement is currently not
required to be paid. This is a result of the earlier than anticipated
mprovernenl in the funding status of the UK scheme.

US PLANS

In the US, the Group reports 2 post retirement plans under
IAS 19: a defined benefit pension plan with a deficit vaiue at
the end of 2017 of $14.9m (2016 $23.1m), and a post retirement
medical plan with a lability of $6.2m (2016: $6.3m}. The US
pensicn plan i1s smaller than the UK plan, in 2017 the overall
deficit value of this plan reduced by $8.2m as the benefit of
the improved asset returns of 16% (2016 improvement of 8%),
actuaral gains from demographic assumption and employer
contributions of $2.6m {2016; $2.2m) exceeded the financial
cost of the liability for the year of $5.2m (2016: 55 4m) and
actuarial iIncreases on the liabitity of $5.5m {2016: $3.1m).

OTHER PLANS

Cther liabihties at 31 December 2017 amounted to $11.3m
{2016: $5.0m) and relate to pension arrangements for a
relatively small number of employees in Germany, certain
UK legacy benefits and 2 pension schemes acquired as
part of the SummitRehers transaction.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.

RALPH HEWINS
Chief Financial Officer

& Total operations {both continuing and discontinued)
A After adjusting nems - see note 5
1 Restated - see note 33,
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CORPORATE SOCJAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Qperational performance and acting
responsibly go hand in hand. Our
behaviours make our business more
efficient, protect the value of our assets
and escalate the delivery of our Reignite
Growth strategy.

We are a member of
FTSE4Good

We only use RSPO
products in our
Personal Care sector

We received a silver
award from EcoVadis
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PEOPLE

We recogrise that cur people are critical for the delivery of

our Reignite Growth strategy. We are committed to creating an
environment that promotes accountability and high performance
that 15 underpinned by a strong satety culture

Diversity

As a Company operating imnternatienally with a global customer
base, the character of our communities I1s diverse. We consider
diversity of our peaple iIntrinsic to strong operational
performance. Appointments are always made on ment and we
seek to leverage the benefits of a wide and diverse talent pool.

A summary of our emplayment policies appears on page 77 of
the Directors’ report. Further information about what the Board
15 doing about gender diversity at Board level 1s set out in the
Corporate governance report on page 46.

Our total number of employees 1s circa 1,600 and the table
below shows the breakdown by gender diversity for different
managerial groups.

Gender diversity statistics

31 December 2017

Male Female
Board 5 62% 3 38%
Executive leadership
team (ELT} 12 92% 1 8%
Senior management? 47 84% 9 16%
Senior manager3 18 90% 2 10%
All employees 1,198 77% 366 23%
26 February 2018

Male Female
Board 5 62% 3 38% ‘
Executive leadership ‘
team (ELT} 8 73% 3 27%
Senior management? 46 84% 9 16%
Senior manager3 17 85% 3 15%
All employees 1,198 T7% 368 23%

1 Excluding the CEQ and CFO.
2 Defined as grade 10 and above, excluding CEQ and CFO and the ELT.
3 Dehined under the prescribed régulations.,

Employees Employee turnover .
c.1,600 6.2%
2016: ¢.1,400 2016:6.3% '




Employee locations

31%
located
in Europe
A1%
located
in Americas
28%
located
in Asia

Investment in our people

We continue 1o recognise the impertance of investing in our
people. We have intreduced a talent management programme
to develop management succession plans. We encourage
training opportunities for potential candidates to further develop
and be considered for internal opporiunities as they anse. We
have also invested in the level of management below the ELT,
who have receved the DISC personality training and attended
workshops on how the business has shifted from a divisional
to a functional organisational structure, in order that they can
deliver the Group's sirategic pnorities Throughout our sites,
we continue to Invest In a range of wellbeing initiatives,

2017 people highlights
— Implemented a fermal talent management programme
to develop succession plans for all key roles
- Adopted a performance management system globally
where employees have accountable goals at all levels
in the organisation
- Implemented workday® to effectively manage human capital,
talent and recrutment throughout the Group
- Integrated SummitRehers LS employees into Group systems
- Improved fermale representation on the ELT from 8%,
al 31 December 2017 to currently 27%
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BUSINESS CONDUCT

Business conduct and ethics

Our Code of Conduct (the ‘Code’) sets out our core values
and the standards of conduct expected of everyone who works

for Elementis.

Relaunch of our Code of Conduct

During 2017, the Code was refreshed and relaunched jointly
by the CEQ and the General Counsel and Chief Compliance
Officer. A new online traning course encompassing the spint
of the 5 core principles was given to all employees.

To help employees understand and adopt these values,
principles and standards in their daily work life, information
and training is provided, supported by comprehensive
whistleblowing procedures and an anti-retaliation policy.

The Code is translated into 6 languages and supported with
interactive cnline training to help employees stay up to date
with their respensibilities. All new employees are required to
undertake training on the Code and refresher traimng 1s given
to all employees perodically. The Board and ELT cansider the
Code to be critical to the Groug's continuing success and In
haow it meets its corporate respensitilities.

Training hours

2,000

2,000 hours of compliance
training completed by
employees in 2017

The areas covered under
the Code include:
— Fair dealing
- Confidentrality and privacy
— Record keeping
— Communications
— Trade prachces and
anti-trust cecmpliance
- Insider trading and
farr disclosure
— Bribery and other
corrupt practices
— Product liability
- International business
dealings
— Political contricutions
and activities

Languages

6

To help employees
understand and adopt our
values, the Code 1s translated
into 6 languages.

— Maintaining a safe, healthy
and affirmative workplace

— Equal opporiunities

- Anti-harassment

— Offensive matenals

— Alcohol and drugs

— Conflicts of interest

— Gifts and hospitalty

— Theft and misuse of
Company assets

— Corporate opportunites,

- Intellectual property,
and network use

— Integnty and secunty

jiodes ai6emens
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

CONTINUED

Underpinning our Code is a compliance training
programme

Training courses assigned Audience
to employees in 2017

Code of Conduct All employees

Respect in the workplace All employees

Global trade sanctions ELT, management and

professional grades

Data privacy (GDFR) Trialled to GDPR warking
group (HR/IT/Legal/
Company Secrelariat)

Trademark basics Marketing

Anti-trust ELT

Eliminating forced labour,
slavery, and human
trafficking

Initial rolt out 1o ELT,
management, professional
and sales grades

Human rights

We support the statements in the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights, as well as the International Labour Organization’s
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, the
latter being freedom of asscciation and the effective recognition
of the nght to collective bargaining, the ebmination of forced or
compulscry labour, the abolition of child labour and the
elimination of discnmination in respect of emoloyment and
occupation We also support the pnincipies of the UN Global
Compact which includes those on fundamental human nghts.
We prohibit the use of child and forced labour and are committed
to the principles of equalty of treatment and non-chscnmination.
Collective bargaining arrangements and union arrangements
exist at a number of our locations.

Business practices are in place with our contractors,
customers and suppliers in relation to human nights, privacy
and safety matters,

Modern slavery

The Modern Slavery Act came inta force in 2015 We have taken
steps to make sure our employees and supply chain partners
are aware of the Act and its requirements. In April 2017, we
1Issued our first statement explaining how we have addressed
the risk of slavery and human trafficking in our business.

An updated Madern Stavery Act compliance statemerit will

be published on our corporate website, www.elementisplc.com,
later in the year.
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Bribery and corruption policy

We have a zero tolerance policy for bribery and corruption of
any sort. Our Code covers bribery and corruption and is further
supporied by an anti-corruption policy. Employees are required
to report breaches of the policy to a supervisar or the General
Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer, and processes are

in place to prevent retaliation against any employees who
communicate geod faith concerns relating to bribery and

other business conduct.

Product stewardship

We strive to provide innovative products that create value for
our customers and that are safe for people and the environment
when used for therr intended purpose. An integral part of this
process 1s our commitment to excellence in product safety and
global compliance and these core values drive our global
product stewardship programme,

To support the highest levels of preduct safety and regulatory
compliance we have comprehensive product safety and
product stewardship processes in place {o ensure the following
— The hazards of our products are fully understood and
communicated to our customers
— Any risks are managed to minimise potential impacts
to people and the envircnment
— Qur products are sold In comphance with all applicable
local and country laws and regulahions.

within this contexl, we regularly review the risks of the chemicals
we manufacture, recommend risk management where
appropriate, menitor changes in regulations, and make health,
safety, and complance information available to customers,
government authonties and the public.

Notable preduct stewardship accomplishments dunng 2017,
were the successful completion of the EcoVadis Corporate Social
Respansibibties assessment, the integration of SummitRehers
into our product stewardship and export control systems and

a favourable compliance audit by the US authorities.

EU REAChH {Registration, Evaluation, Authonsation and
restriction of chermicals} as well as the new REACH programmes
in China, Korea and Taiwan, were well managed to allow the
successful glebal registration of new innovative products

We continue to invest In the scientific and regulatory expertise
needed to maet the market demands for safer and more
sustainable products in an environment of ever increasing
number and complexity of chemical regulations. In 2017,

we made a significant upgrade in our hazard commurnications
and compliance software to better meet the challenge of new
global regulations.




HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

At Elementis, we place a great emphasis on protecting people
and operaling responsibly. Our Health, Safety, and Environment
Policy and Values provides the fundamental basis of how we
develop, manufacture and distnbute our products around the
world. This policy 1s manifested throughout our global HSE
programme which 1s comprised of management systems and
internal procedures that define our regulatory obligations, the
Industry best practices that we employ, nsk management and
the various programmes that drive continuous improvement.

Global HSE programmes

Job safety
analysis
Incident Internal
investigation auditing
Corporate
policies and
procedures
External Process
risk hazard
assessments analysis

Environmental
sustainability
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Safety remains our top priority and we take our commitment

to safety for our employees, contractors, and all visitors to our
facilites seriously We continue to invest in safer technology
and reduce our employees’ exposure to eccupational hazards.
We recognise that creating an injury free work environment
requires engaging employees to proactively identify
opportunities to improve safety and eliminate risks. All employees
understand that they have ‘Stop Work” authority and will take
achion to stop an achvity that s not in accordance with our
adopted procedures.

Continuous improvement cycle

Raise
awareness
Recognise Engage
performance peaple
Measure Identify risk/
results hazard
Take action

Health and safety performance

Elementis uses the US Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) definitions for Recordable Injuries and
linesses, the Reporting of Inyuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Reguliations 2013 for Lost Time Accidents (LTA),
and Total Receordable Incident Rate (TRIR) as a means

for benchmarking performance. The following sites have
achieved exemplary safety perfermance in creating an

injury free work environment.

Operations without a recordable injury orillness

5 years
Milwaukee,
14 years Wisconsin
Corpus 4 years
Chnisti, Hsinchu,
Texas Taiwan 5 years
Anji,
China
15 years
Changxing,
China
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

CONTINUED

We use TRIR as our principal measure of safety performance.
The below graph shows our performance in comparison with
the latest data from the US chemical industry and the American
Chemistry Council Responsible Care® members:

Total recordable incident rate

Recordable incidents per 200,000 hours worked

30 US Chemicals
Elements
Elements exc

—_ e SummitReheis

20 ACC (RC}

oo 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017

Elementis’ expectation is that our performance should show
steady improvement. However, over the last 2 years our rate
has increased shightly and in response we have implemented

a number of initiatives. The main contributing factor to the
increase in 2017 1s the acquisition of SummitRehels. Excluding
the SummitRehess site statistics, the incident rate for Elementis
1s 0.88. Since the acquisition, a comprehensive integration plan
has been developed and we are working diigently with the site
teams to ensure that SummitRehers’ safety culture 1s consistent
with the policies and values across all our sites.

2016 207
Elementis Elementis
excluding including
Elementis SummitRehais SummitRsheis

Total Recordable Incident
Rate (incidents per
200,000 hours worked) 1.03 0.88 1.10

Whilst we regret all injuries, it 1s notable that across the Group
only 2 of the recordable incidents resulted in Lost Time Accidents
requinng more than 3 days away from work and neither incident
required hospitalisation,

2017 safety initiatives
— Promoted 10 Life Saving Rules to prevent serious inury
to people working at our facilities

— Launched a global web based training pregramme

— Introduced a corporate training programme {0 deveiop
supervisors' safety leadership skills

— Cemmenced integration of a global software platform
for improving the effectiveness of our HSE programmes

- Implemented a safety recognion programme for
acknowledging manufacturing locations that achieve
significant milestones in safety performance

Environmental performance

Elementis recognises its responsibility for sustaining the gualty
of the environment In the communities in which we operate to
protect biodiversity. Emphasis is placed on using technology
that reduces emissions, generates less waste, reduces
censumption of natural resources, conserves energy, and takes
advantage of opportunities where renewable energy sources
are available. In additon, our manufacturing processes are
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subject to stringent envircnmental regulations and compliance
requirements. Comprehensive emergency response plans
are In place at alilocations as a precaution and as a means

to mitigate the )impact 0 the unhkely event of a major incident.

2017 environmental highlights
— Conhinue to operate responsibly — no releases impacting
the environment and no environmental penaities

- ‘Silver’ rating in the 2017 EcoVadis Sustainable Suppiier
assessment, with a score In the top 10% of all suppliers

— Only used RSPQO (Roundtabile on Sustamnable Palm Oil)
certified quaternary amines in manufacturing products
for the Personal Care sector and we are exploring how
we can further reduce the use of palm ail

— Continued participation with the CDP climate change
pregramme (formerly the Caron Disclosure Project)

— We modified operations in our Songjang plant to
signsficantly reduce the level of VOC emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions {GHG)

We report GHG emissions according to the requirements

of The Companies Act 2006 {Strategic Report and Directors’
Report) Regulations 2013,

GHG emissions are calculated from energy purchased and
process calculations. Energy units are converted into carbon
dioxide equivalent ('CQOze’) using official data provided annuaily
by the UK Department for Environment, Foad and Rural Affairs
(‘Defra’). Emission factors associated with non-UK electricity
consumption In 2017 were derived from International Energy
Agency {'IEA) data

The principal CHG due to cperations at our locations 1s carbon
dioxide from natural gas combustion. There are aiso GHG
emissions from other fuels, chemical reactions in production
processes, wastewater treatment and carben dioxide used for
process cooling. Qur GHG emissions reporting process has
previously been audied by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our
internal auditors. The audit report found our procedures o be
appropriate and the data collection and conversion process to
be robust and supportable.

Elementis’ operating sites and principal offices are incluged
within the scope of this reparting reguirement. A number of
small office locations have peen excluded because the level
of COze emissions was deemed not 1o make a materal
contribution to the total. In addition, the 2017 data 1s impacted
by the addition of 4 sites from the SummitRehais acquired
business (pro-rated for our penod of cwnership).

We provide 2 intensity ratios for measuring our performance
in this area. tonnes COz2e per tonne of production and tonnes
COze per kWh of energy consumed. Over a period of years
both of these indicators should give an incication of energy
efficiency improvements including cleaner fuels consumed.
Note that Scope 1 and 2 emissions and the intensity ratios

are subject to variations due to changes In the mix of products
manufactured, volumes and energy efficiency improvements.




Greenhouse gas emissions

Base year
2017 2016 (2013)
Scope 1: Combusticn of fuel and operation of facilities (tonnes COze) 218,198 194,687 221,076
Scope 2: Flectneity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use (tonnes CQOze) 92,390 88,365 89,500
Total
Scope 1 and ? (tonnes COze) 310,588 283,052 310,576
Intensity ratio:
(tonnes COzeftonne production) 073 0.74 0.77
Supplementary intensity ratio
(kg COze/kWh energy consumed) 0.26 0.26 0.27
Out of Scoper
Biofuel (tonnes COze) 7,248 7,904 0
COze values were denved using Defra published factors and data from IEA
Note that Scope 1 and 2 CO2e emissions are affected by changes in production volumes and product mix.
Energy consumption
2017 2016
Absolute Per tonne of Absolute Per tonne of
{"000s} production {'0C0s} production
Energy consumed {GJ) 5,333 12.6 4,794 12.5

For refererice 1GJ = 277 8 kWh

Nate that energy consumption in 2017 included a significant additional contribution from the SummiReheis sites Beyond that,
energy consumption varnies with production volumes and product mix.

Renewable electricity Reducing emissions
Electricity at Newberry CA New boilers have been

site has 28% renewable installed at Delden to reduce
energy content, NOx emissions

Water consumption

Elementis shares the global concern over water scarcity.

We operate mostly in areas where water availability 1s not

an immediate issue, nevertheless water consumption 1s
mirmised where possible by treatment and recycling.

Water consumption data 1s provided on the corporate websie
www.elementisplc.com.

Other environmental data

Our actmities are closely regulated via robust environmental
permits. Air emissions, discharges and waste are within the
rormal vanability of operations and maintenance activities.
Detals are provided en the corporate website:
www.elementisplc.com.
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Reducing consumption
The new boiters at Delden
reduced boiller natural gas
consumption in 2017 by
more than 16% with a
conseguential reduction

In emission level.

For more information about

Ongoing savings

Air balancing for building
heating and ventilation,
together with monitonng to
optimise bullding equipment
operation, will produce
significant ongeing savings
at Elementis management
headguariers in East
Windsor, New Jersey.

our CSR activities and policies
www.elementisplc.com/governance-responsibility/
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Elementis faces a number of uncertainties in the course of iis
operations and by effectively identifying and managing these
risks, we are able to aid delivery of our strategy. The overall
responsibility for the nsk framework and definition of risk
appetite rests with the Board.

RISK APPETITE

The amount of nisk that the Board 1s prepared to accept in
return for reward or investment return can vary depending en
Company strategy in the relevant area as well as guidance from
management and advisers based on appropnate risk analysis.
The strategic appetite for risk 1s therefore decided on a case

by case basis at Board level, for example with respect to any
corporate transaction or significant capital expenditure project
and delegated to the Executive Leadership team to implement
as appropriate.

RISK CULTURE

The risk culiure within the Group 15 embedded in the pecple,
its systemns and processes, leadership and behaviours that
15 underpinned by specific standards, for example, as set
out In the Code of Conduct or in other Group policies or
corporate standards.

RISK REVIEW PROCESS

The principal risks are showrt on pages 33 to 36 were selected
from a Group nsk register made up of 80 nsks identfied by
members of the Executive Leadership team and discussed in
the annual management risk review In November 2017 and by
the Board in December 2017. These risk reviews invalved risk
selection and priontisation after assessing for impact (strategic,
financial, operational and reputational) and likelinood of
occurrence, Risk controls {prevention and mitigationy and their
effectiveness were also part of the consideration process.

The impact score, mullipled by the likelihood score, was then
modified by a control score to produce a risk priorty number,
which 15 used to band nisks for management attention, In terms
of seventy of financial impact, a matenalty threshold of $5m in
operating profit was used. The 9 principal nsks/nsk groupings
that are disclosed in the table overleaf were consolidated from
a fist of 20. This compares to 10 risks disclosed last year
consolidated from a list of 14 risks. The nisks listed on the
following pages do not compnse all those associated with

the Group and they are not in order of priority,

BREXIT RISKS

The Board reviewed its assessment on Brexit risks again
towards the end of the year and discussed pecple rnisk, supply
chain nsk, regulatory risk (REACH), currency risk and trade
tanffs. The Board's previous assessment that there 1s no
material impact on the pnncipal risks faced by the Group
remants unchanged.
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RISK TRENDS
The following risk trends have changed over the course
of the year.

The reduction in bkelihood rating for Risk 2 1s mainly attnbuted
to an operational incident over which we have better control than
an external event such as a hurricane. Our sites have business
continuity plans n place that are tested and rehearsed so the
sites that expenence hyrricanes are well placed to manage
them by mitigating ther impact and potential loss. Interms of
operational Incidents, our pperations and Health, Safety and
Environment (*HSE") leadership have reviewed our nsk control
programmes and have implemented a number of inihatives

to improve how operations are managed, This includes for
example implementing new Ife saving rules, carrying out
process hazard analysis and mechanical integrity inspections.
More details are given in the Corporate social responsibibity
report on pages 29 to 31.

Risk 3 is shawn as decreasing {both in impact and Ikelhood}
because of the work that has been undertaken to improve our
supply chain resilience. This includes globalising the supply
chain function (which includes procurement, logistics, product
stewardship, operations and manufacturing) to improve
transparency and accountability, improving qualfication of third
party suppliers, carrying out a bow tie analysis of cur supply
chain nsks and developing resilience.

Risk 4 s shown as increasing (both in impact and likehhood)
owing to the nse in regulatory burden experienced by the
businesses as well as the expectation of higher levels of
regulation and product stewardship requirements e g. REACh
and similar initatives around the globe. It also reflects our
acquisition of the SummitReheis business which supplies
active ingredients, pharma and dental products.

Risk 6 15 also shown as decreasing overall despiie the

impact assessment being stable and its likelhood decreasing.
This risk 1s comprised of 2 nsks' industrial espionage resulting
in loss of intellectual property ('IP') and, separately, workplace
securnty. The reduction in lkelthood rating reflects our increased
confidence in our mitigation controls both to industnal
espionage and loss of IP, as well as to workplace security.

Our operational sites have controlled access, CCTV and
employees are given securly and safety traning.

The Risk 8 assessment reflects the work undertaken on global
talent management. Towards the end of 2016, a new talent
management review process was implemented for the
Executive Leadership team and reviewed in mid-2017. The
same process was then rolled out in Q4 2017 to the next tier of
management, In addition, the HR leadership, i conjunclian with
the CEC and Remuneraticn Committee, has carried out a review
of our incentive arrangements. This has resulted in a change to
our annual ncentive plan and the long term incentive plan, The
proposed remuneration policy will be presented 1o shareholders
for approval at the Annual General Meeting. The changes being
implemented will strengthen retention and incentwise key
employees who play an important role n helping to deliver cur
Reignite Growth strategy.

Related material
Corporate governance report — page 45.




Risk heat map

Key.

1. Economy/competition

2. Operatignal incident

3. Supply chain fallure

4, Regulation and product stewardship
5. Litigation/complhance

6. Workplace security and IP

7. Technology

8. Talent management

9. Cyber security

Risk stable
Risk Increase
Risk decreased

TABLE OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk Impact and link to strategy

Mitigation Link to strategic priority

1. Uncertain global
economic conditions and
competitive pressures in
the marketplace
(including from currency

— Sub-optimal global
economic conditions
can affect sales, capacty
utiisation and cash
generation, as well as

movement). Increase competitive
pressure in the marketplace,
Risk trend impacting profitabiity and

Impact operating margins
Likelihood — The resultant non-delivery
of operating plans can lead
to market expectations of
Group earnings not being
met and slower delivery of
stated strategic priorities.

Pursue best growth
opportunities

— Specialty Products 1s well
positicned against 2

deterioration in econgmic

Pursue supply chain
conditions due toits balanced pply

transformation

geographic footprint, broad
differentiated product offenng
and the broad application
of its technology across
different sectors

— Chremium business maodel is
flexible and can be adapted
to respond to variances in
regional demand patterns

— Financial performance
(including monthly sales,
profil and cash flows) 1s
closely monitored with full
year forecasts updated 3
times a year and vanances
Investigated and explained

— Contingency and cost
reduction plans can be
implemented in the event
of an economic downturn
to reduce operating costs,
including freezing salaries
and non-essential capital
expenditure items

— Currency hedging taken
out as appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

CONTINUED

Risk

Impact and link tc strategy

Mitigation

Link to strategic priority

2. Business interruption
as a result of a major
event {(e.g. operations/
HSE, IT, transport or
workplace incident
caused by process/
system failure and/or
human error, or by fire,
storm and/or flood), or a
natural catastrophe {e.g.
a hurricane or pandemic).

Risk trend

Impact

Likelihood

— Such incidents can disrupt
our operations, impact
capacity utiisation and add
to operating costs, as well
as damage reputation, and
slow delivery of stated
strategre prionties.

— Good housekeeping,
preventative maintenance,
process and other safety
procedures help to mitigate
the effects of a major incident

— Reliance on hectorte mine
and flood nisk mitigated by
the installation of drainage
pumps at the mine in 2011

~ Insurance programme and
business cenlinuity plans
that are tested regularly
help to mitigate the effects
of a major incident

- HSE management
programme In place that
includes corporate
compliance audits iInvolving
third party specialists, where
appropriate, and insurance
property surveys.

Pursue best growth
oppoartunities

Pursue supply chain
transformation

3. Business interruption
as a result of supply
chain failure of key raw
materials (e.g. clays)
and/or third party service
provision (e.g. transport,
infrastructure or

IT failure).

Risk trend

Impact

Likelihoocd

Disruption to supply chain
(e.g third party, service
infrastructure, transport or
IT failure), all of which can
impact capacity utiisation
and add to operating ¢osts,
and result in slower delivery
of stated strategic prionties.

— Raw matenals are saurced
from a broad and diverse
supplier base

— Strategic holding of key
raw materials

— Transport and carrier
mitigation plans and
insurance In place

— Careful vetting, selection

and audits/reviews of
mayjor suppliers.

Pursue best growth
opportunities

Pursue supply chain
transformation

4, Increasing regulatory
and product stewardship
challenges.

Risk trend

Impact

Likelihood

— New regulations restricting
the use or carriage of
chemicals can lead to loss
of applicabions and sales
and/or add to operating
costs, and slower delivery
of stated strategic pricnities

— Active REACh programme
in which the businesses
participate in industry
consortia, providing data and
information to regulators and
experts, 1o support safety
reviews of our products in a
broad range of applications

— Strong global product
stewardship team in place
to support the businesses

- R&D team ams to develop
new products and
technologies for use In
an evolving market to meet
the changing needs of our
sophisticated customers
and in response to
regulatory changes.

Pursue best growth
opportunities

innovate for high margins
and distinctiveness
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Risk

Impact and link to strategy

Mitigation Link to strategic priority

5. Major regulatory
enforcement action,
litigation and/or other
claims arising from
products andfor historical
and ongoing operations,

Risk trend
Impaci
Likelihood

— Can lead to higher operating
costs and reputational
darnage, and result in
slower delivery of stated
strategic prionties as
management’s focus and
attention is distracted.

Pursue supply chain
transformation

— Active compliance and risk
management programmes

in place {including policies,
procedures and training)

- Insurance programme and
risk transfer strategy in place
to mitigate financial iosses

— Experienced General Counsel
supported by in-house and
external legal teams

— Regular reviews of litigation
and compliance reports by
the Board and the Audit
Coemmittee, as well as the
internal audit programme,
help ensure these key risks
are managed effectively.

workplace security and
loss/theft of intellectual

property.

Risk trend
Impact
Likelthood

6. Industrial espionage,

— Such incidents can disrupt
key operations, add to
operating costs, distract
management attention and
damage reputation, as well
as result in slower delivery
of stated strategic pricrities.

Innovate for high margins
and distinctiveness

— HR processes in place to
ensure new hires ungergo

appropriate background

Create a culture of high
and reference checks 9

performance

— Implementation of security
arrangements at work
tocations, such as secure
entry points/barners/gates
and CCTV or other alarm/
monitoring systems in place

— Security assessments and
compliance audits are carned
out, and employees are given
safety briefings and training
where appropriate

— Employment and computer
policies (supported by
training) ensure employees
are made aware of therr
obligations with regards to
confidential information and
access controls o protect
intellectual property.

7. Disruptive technology
advances: failure to
identify and mitigate the
threat posed by new or
imitation technelogy.

Risk trend
Impact
Likelihocod

— New technology, methods
of production or processes
can give competitors a
market advantage, and
result in slower delivery
of stated strategic prionties.

Inncvate for high margins
and distinctiveness

— R&D team aims to develop
new products and

technologies used in an
evolving market to meet

the changing needs of our
sophisticated customers and
in response to competition.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

CONTINUED

Risk

Impact and link to strategy

Mitigation

8. Talent management

and succession planning:

failure to attract,
manage, develop
and/or retain talent.

Risk trend

impact

Likelihood

- Failure to attract, manage,
develop or retain key talent
can lead to loss of
employees, disrupt growth
plans and/or cnhcal
business functions, and
result in slower delivery

of stated strategic priorities.

- Experienced Chief HR Officer
supported by in-house and
external consulting teams

- Management and critical
business leader succession
planning 1s a key area of
focus far the Board and
management tearn that
is kept under review

— Implementation of a global HR

nformation systerm fast year to

introduce greater systematic
processes and transparency,
including job grading, to
facilnate tatent review and
successlon planning

Talent review using the

9 box matrix talent model.

Link to strategic priority

Create a cuiture of high
performance

9. Cyber security
incident: systems
security breach and loss
of network connectivity
and intagrity, and/or
loss of business and
personal data.

Risk frend

impact

Likelihood

~ Systems security breach
and loss of network
connechvity and integrity
can disrupt key operations
and add to operating costs

- Loss of business and
personal data can disrupt
key operations and add to
operating costs, and result
In slower delivery of stated
strategic priorities.

Experienced Chief Information
Officer supported by in-house
and external consulting
teams, with oversight from

IT Steening Committee
chaired by the CEO

- Security controls that include-
policies and procedures,
staff awareness and traning;
nsk management and
complance, systems and
information management

and protection; process
management; and continuous
assessments and monitonng
Use of regional back up

data centres in third party
locations, cloud based
systems with secure entry
point and admnistration
controls, encryption
technology and multiple
authenticalion systems,
website blocking and next
generation flrewalls with
intrusion detection capability
Business continuity and
emergency response plans
exist that aim to restore
network connectivity,
recover lost data and return
operations to therr normal
pre-incident level.

Create a culture of high
performance

These principal nisks and uncertainties should be read in conjunction with the note on contingent liabilities on page 127,

For more information
about risk management

www.elementisplc.com/governance-responsibility/
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GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have assessed the Group as a going concern,
having given consideration to factors likely to affect its future
performance and development, the Group's financial position
and the pnncipal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
including the Group's exposure to credi, liquidity and market
risk and the mechanisms for dealing with these risks.

The Group's net debt position at the year end of 2017 was
$291.1m. It has access 1o a syndicated revolving credit facility
of $275m and a long term loan faciity of $200m which both
have an expiry date of February 2022. There 1s a mechanism
in the agreement for the faciity to be increased by a further
$100m subject to other terms.

Under this principal borrowing facility, the Group performs
covenant tests for net debt:EBITDA ratio and interest cover.

No breaches in the required covenant tests were reported during
the year. The Group alse uses varnious shart and medium term
forecasts to monitor anticipated future compliance and these
include stress testing assumptliens to identfy the headroom

on these covenant tests.

The Directors are satisfied that, after considenng all of the
above, it 15 appropnate for the Group and the Company to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparning these
Group and the parent company financial statements, and that
there are no matenal uncertainties to the ability of the Group
and Company to continue to do so over a peried of at least

12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements.

BUSINESS VIABILITY ASSESSMENT

The basis of the assessment Includes a detalled review of
strategic and operating plans, underpinned by 1 and 3 year
financial forecasts including profit and loss and cash flows.
Consideration 1s theretore given to capital expenditures,
investment plans, returns to shareholders and cther financial
commitments, as well as to the Company's debt beanng
capacity, its financial resources, borrewings and the availability
of finance. No review of business plans and financial forecasts
is complete without a robust assessment of the nsks and
opporturities in such planning models and the assumptions
used, These reviews include consideration and discussion

of the materials prepared and presented to the Board by
management and its advisers (where appropriate), as well

as additienal information requested by the Board.

The Board's programme of monitoring major risks 1s therefore
an important component of the business viability assessment
Business and segment growth scenarios, rate of return on
investments, assumptions on global GDP growth rates, relevant
currency rates, commodity prices in business plans and
financial forecasts are all considered, with stress testing on
financial models where appropriate. Finally, a review of htigation
and tax reports, legal and compliance risks throughout the year
and at a formal year end risk review ensures that the viability
statement 1s made with a reasonable degree of confidence,
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BUSINESS VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
provision C.2.2, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s current
positicn and carned cut a robust assessment of the principal
risks and uncertamties that might threaten the business model,
future performance, solvency and hquidity of the Group,
including resilience te such threats, and consider that they have
a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue
In operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over & period
of at least 3 years.

A perod of 3 years was chosen as being consistent with the
Group's business and financiat planning models, R&D plans,

a number of key supply contracts and external borrowing
faciities. In addition, 3 years is the penod used for mid-term
business planning purposes. Whilst the Direclors have no
reason to believe that the Group will nat be viable over a longer
pernod, a 3 year period allows the Directers to make the viability
statement with a reascnable degree of confidence whilst
providing shareholders wath an appropriate longer term outlook.
The Directors’ viability assessment of the Group's prospects

1s based on reviews of annual operating and 3 year business
plans, bank covenant compliance forecasts, including
sensitivities, the Group’s strategy and strategic priorities,
principal nsks and how these are managed and mitigated.
How these reviews were carried out, the principal nisks and
how they are being managed are more fully described and
explained in the nsk management section on pages 32 to 36,
together with relevant assumptions and qualifications,

STRATEGIC REPORT
The Strategic report was approved by the Board
and signed cn its behalf by:

PAUL WATERMAN
CEO
27 February 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 2,

3 4,

5 6.

7 8
Key

A Member of Audit Committee

N Member of Nominaton Committee

R Member of Remuneration Committee
* Charrman of the Committee
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1. ANDREW DUFF,
CHAIRMAN (58}

Andrew joined the Board as

a Non-Executive Director and
Deputy Chairman on 1 April 2014
and was appointed Non-
Executive Chairman and
Chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 24 Apnl 2014.

Skills, competence

and experience

Andrew has a demonstrable
track record in delivering value
to customers and shareholders
through significant boardroom
expernence ganed from large
listed comparies. This combined
with experience In the
manufacturing, energy and
utiities sectors enables Andrew
to lead the Elementis Board From
2003 until 2009, he was chief
executive officer of Npower, the
successor entity to Innogy plc
which in 2000 was demerged
from, restructured and then sold
by Natwonal Power to RWE, the
German electricity and gas
company. Andrew was also a
member of the RWE's executive
committee, Befere this Andrew
spent 16 years at BP in
downstream international
markets. Andrew has alsc been
a non-executive director of
Wolseley plc, the international
plumbing and bulding materials
company, between 2004 and
December 2013, where he was
also the senior iIndependent
director and chairman of the
remuneration committee.

Andrew holds a BSc {Honours)
degree n Mechanical
Engineering and s a fellow

of the Energy Institute,

Committee membership
N*

External appointments

— Non-executive chairman of
Severn Trent ple (from July
2010) and a member of the
corporate responsibility
committee, nominations
committee and remuneration
committee

- Member of the CBI President's
Committee

~ Trustee of Macmillan Cancer
Support

- Trustee of the Earth Trust

Nationality
British

Z, PAUL WATERMAN,

CEO (53)

Paul was appointed Group CEC
on 8 February 2016

Skills, competence

and experience

Paul has a proven track record

In developing markets, products
and opportunities for creating
value, business optimisation and
transformaton. Prior to joming
Elementis, Paul was global CEQ
of the BP lubncants business in
2013 after having overseen the
BP Australia/New Zealand
downstream business. In 2010,
Paul was country president of BP
Austraha. Prior to this he was CEQ
of BP’s global aviation, industrial,
marine and energy lubricants
businesses (2009 to 2010) and
CEQ of BP Lubricants Amencas
{2007 to 2009). He joined BP after
it acquired Burmah-Castrol in
2000, having joined the latter

n 1994 after roles at Reckitt
Bencluser and Kraft Foods.

Paul holds a BSc degree in
Packaging Engineening from
Michigan State Uriversity and an
MBA in Finance and International
Business from New York
University, Stern Schaal of
Business.

Nationality
American

3. RALPH HEWINS,

CFO {54)

Ralph was appointed CFO-
Designate and an Executive
Director on 12 September 2016,
and became Group CFO on

1 November 2016.

Skills, competence

and experience

Ralph s an accomplished CFO
whao has a strong track recorg

in finance, strategy development
and implementation, and mergers
and acquisitions. Dunng his

30 year career with BP, Ralph
held a number of significant
leadership positions, mcluding
roles in financial management,
sales and marketing, corporate
development {M&A), strategy and
planning. In 2010, Ralph was CFQ
of BP Lubricants and served on
the board of Castrol India Limited
from 2010 until 2016.

Ralph hofds an MA degree in
Modern History and Economics
from the University of Oxford
and an MBA fram INSEAD.

Nationality
British




4. NICK SALMON,
SENIOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR (65)

Nick was appointed a
Non-Executive Director on

20 October 2014 and became
Seniar Independent Director
on 16 December 2014.

Skills, competence

and experience

Nick brings extensive experience
both as a non-executive director
and as an accomplished
executive. He has been
responsible for leading several
major restructunng projects and
negotiating complex acquisitons
and disposals. He was chief
executrve of Cookson Group plc
from July 2004 to December 2012
when Cookson demerged to
create 2 new listed companies,
Vesuvius plc and the specialty
chemicals company, Alent plc.
He was formerly executive
vice-president of Alstom S.A

and chief executive of Babcock
Internaticnal Group ple. He held
other senior management
positions at GEC and GEC
Alsthom and the China Light

and Power Company.

Nick served as a non-executive
director of United Utilities plc from
2005 to 2014, where he was also
senior independent director from
2007 onwards

Nick holds a degree in
Mechanical Engineenng and

1s a fellow of the Royal Academy
of Engineering.

Committee membership
A, N, R.

External appointments

- Non-executive director of
Interserve pic (from August
2014} and a member of the
audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration
commitiee

- Independent chairman of
South East Water Limited
{from April 2015)

Nationality
British

5. STEVE GOOD,
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
{56)

Steve was appointed a
Non-Executive Director on

20 Gctober 2014 and becarmne
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 25 Apni 2017,

Skills, competence

and experience

Steve has international
experience In specialty chemicals
businesses, manufacturing and
diverse industnal markets. Steve
was chief executive of Low &
Bonar plc between September
2009 and September 2014 Pnor
te that role, he was managing
director of its techrical textiles
division between 2006 and 2009,
director of new business between
2005 and 2006, and managing
director of ts plastics divmsian
between 2004 and 2006. Prior

to joining Low & Bonar, he spent
10 years with BTP plc {now part of
Clarant) in a variety of leadership
posihions managing international
speciaiity chemicals businesses.
He was also non-executive director
and chairman of the remunerabion
committee of Cape plc from July
2015 to Seplember 2017

Steve holds a degree in
Economics and Financial
Maragement from Sheffield
University He 1s a chartered
accountant

Committee membership
R*, N

External appointments

— Non-executive chairman of
Zotefoams ple (non-executive
director from Oetober 2014
and chairman from Apnl 2018}
and chairman of the nomination
committee and member of the
remunerahon committee

— Non-execulive direclor of
Anglan Water Services (from
Apnlt 2015) and member of the
audit commitiee, nominaton
committee and remuneration
committee

Nationality
British

6. ANNE HYLAND,
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
57

Anne was appointed a
Non-Executive Birector in June
2013 and became Chairman

of the Audit Commitiee on

1 August 2013,

Skills, competence

and experience

Anne brings substantial financial
expertise to the Board. She 1s
currently CFO of Kymab Ltd, a
biopharmaceutical company
funded by the Wellcome Trust
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and the Bill & Melinda Gates
Foundation. Prior to her current
executive role, she was CFO and
company secretary of BBI
Diagnostics Group Ltd and
FTSE-hsted Vectura Group plc.
Previous senior finance positions
held include director of corporate
finance at Celitech Group plc,
Medeva plc and KPMG.

Anne holds a degree in Business
Studies from Trinity College, Dubin
and 1s a chartered accountant
(FCA) and a corporate tax adviser
(CTA-AITI).

Committee membership
AN

External appointments

— Nan-executive director of
Clinigen Growp plc (from
January 2018) and chairman
of the audit commitiee

Nationality
Insh

e ——
7. DOROTHEE DEURING,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
49)

Dorothee was apponted

a Non-Executive Director

on 1 March 2017.

Skills, competence

and experience

Derothee’s background 1s 1in
corporate finance with expenence
in the broader chemicals sector.
She manages her own corporate
adwvisory consultancy serving a
number of Eurcpean clents in the
pharmarsiotech sector. She 1s
active In various industry bodies.
Her previous executive roles
included managing director and
head of Corporate Adwvisory
Group (Europe) at UBS in Zurich,
head of M&A chemcals and
healthcare at a private investment
bank in Germany and as a senior
executive in the corporate finance
department at the Reche Group.

Dorothee holds a masters degree
In Chemistry from the Université
Lows Pasteur, Strasbourg and

an MBA frem INSEAD,

Committee membership
AN, R,

External appointments

— Non-executive director of
supervisory board of Bilfinger
SE {from May 2016} and
member of audit commitiee

- Non-executive director of
Rochling Group SE {from
May 2016)

— Non-executive director of AXPO

Nationality
Austrian

Holding AG {from March 2017)

8. SANDRA BOSS,
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(50)

Sandra was apponted a
Non-Executive Director on

1 February 2017.

Skills, competence

and experience

Sandra bnngs strategic
expenence ganed as a
consultant to complex glebal
companies on transformational
change. She was a senior partner
at McKinsey & Company from
2005 to 2014 (and a partner from
2000), where she specialised in
investment banking and nsk, and
held several seror management
positiens in the UK and the US
At McKinsey, Sandra acled as
an adwiser tc global financial
inshtutions, corporates and public
sector bodies on a wide range of
strategic, operational and policy
1ssues. Sandra has held cther
non-executive and agdvisory
appointments with the Institute

of International Finance, the
McKinsey Master Retirement
Trust and the Edith Wharton
Restoration.

Sandra has a BA degree n
American Studies and Economics
from Stanford University and an
MBA degree from Harvard
Business School.

Committee membership
AN R.

External appointments

— External member of the
Bank cf England's Prudential
Regulation Committee
{from September 2014} and
an independent member of
the executive committee of the
Bank that oversees the real
tme gross settlement service
and high value payment system
{from November 2017)

- A non-executive director
of Enstar Group Ltd {from
November 2015), chawrman
of the nsk committee and a
member of the compensation
and nomimating commitiees

Mationality
British/American

Andrew Christie stepped down
as a Non-Executive Director on
25 Apnl 2017
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EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM

10.
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In February 2018, we announced
changes to our Executive
Leadership team We appomted
global commerciat leaders for
each of our Coatings, Energy and
Personal Care sectors, supported
by functional leaders,

1. PAUL WATERMAN,
CEO

Full iography can be found
on page 44.

2. RALPH HEWINS,

CFO

Full biography ¢an be found
on page 40.

3. WALKER ALLEN,
GENERAL COUNSEL AND
GHIEF COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

Walker joined Elementis as
General Counselin 1989 and was
appointed General Counsel and
Chief Compliance Officer in 2008

Skills, competence

and experience

Prior to joiring Elementis, Walker
was associate general counsel
with GE Americom (a GE Capital
company) and before that senior
business counsel with GE Plastcs
{a dvision of Generai Electric
Company). He began his legal
career as a lawyer in private
praclice with two leading New
York City law firms, where he
specialised n corporate law,
secuntes, and mergers and
acquisitions,

Walker 1s a member of the New
York Bar and s admitted as
in-house counsel n New Jersey.,

Nationality
American

4. MARCI BRAND,

VP GLOBAL PERSONAL
CARE

Marci joined as VP Global
Personal Care in February 2018,

Skills, competence

and expetience

Marci had a 35 year career

with BP in marketing and sales
leadershup roles in both business
to business and business to
CONSUMEer environiments, Her
most recent position was VP,
global accounts where she was
responsible for leading and
developing strategic cooperation
with selected global partners
Former positions include VP,
global industrial, manne and
energy {2014 to 2015; and
regional VP, North and Latin
America (2010 to 2014}, both

in BP Lubncants.

Marciholds a BSc degree

in Marketing from Seton Hall
University and s a graduate

of the Sales and Marketing
Executive Programme from the
Kellogg School of Business at
Northwestern University,

Nationality
American

5. DANIEL HUGHES,

VP BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT AND IT
Daniel was appointed VP
Business Development and IT In
July 2016, having previously been
Chief Information Officer from
September 2013 Daniet has held
various senor leadership roles in
Elementis since February 2007,

Skills, competence

and experience

Daniel has been engaged in our
worldwide end-to-end business
ransactions. He also served as
integration manager for our
SummitReheis, Deuchem,
Yuhong, Fancor, Watercryl and
Hi-Mar acquisitions. He relocated
to China n August 2008 as

Vice President, Coatings Asia,
integrating our 5 production

and 8 sales sites there while
developing our strategy,
customer facing channels

and organisational design.

Prior to Joning Elementss, he
held various serior procurement
and supply chain positions at
Engelhard Corporation and
Ford Motor Company.

Danief holgs a BA Honours
degree In Business Studies from
the University of East Longon

Nationality
American




6. ROB MANGOLD,

VP GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN
& MANUFACTURING

Rob joined as VP Global Supply
Chain & Manufacturing in

June 2018

Skills, competence

and experience

Rob has over 30 years of
expernence in Operations. Most
recently, Rob was senior VP,
manufactuning for Weber-Stephen
Products, LLC. Prior to that, he
held several executive positions
in supply chain and
manufactunng with Stepan
Chemical Company (a global
specialty chemical company
based in linois} over a 12 year
tenure, Rob also has held multiple
operations, qualty and
engineering roles with General
Electric in its plastics and
advanced materials businesses.

Rob holds a degree in Chemical
Engineering from Lafayette
College and an MBA In Finance
frem Willams College of Business
at Xawier University.

Nationality
American

7. CHRIS SHEPHERD,

CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES
OFFICER

Chnis joined Elementis as Chief
Human Resources Officer in
November 2017,

Skills, competence

and experience

Chris has almost 20 years

of global human resources
experience having spent the
first 12 years of hus career in
manufactunng and supply chain
Most recently Chris held the
position of CHRO for BGL Group,
a UK Digital Insurance business.
He has held prior positions as
CHRO at Kantar and Edwards
Group and spent aver 22 years
at Mars Incorporated where

he was based in the UK, Raly,
China and Singapore.

Chris helds an MEng in
Mechanical Engingering from
the University of Liverpool.

Nationality
British

8. KEN SMITH,

VP GLOBAL RESEARCH
AND DEVELOPMENT
Ken joined as VP Global
Research and Development
in October 2008

Skills, competence

and experience

Prior to joining Elementis, Ken
worked at specialty chemical
company, Rohm and Haas
There he served in a number of
technical and commercial roles
over a 22 year career Among his
roles was R&D director (coatings
additives) global market manager
(coaungs addives) and global
technical manager (architectural
coatings).

Ken has a PhD in Chermistry from
the University of Bristol.

Nationality
Amencan

9. PAUL RAO,
VP GLOBAL ENERGY
MARKETS

Paul jpined Elements as VP,
Global Energy Markets in
April 2014.

Skills, competence

and experience

Paul has over 25 years of global
ollfield expenence in sales,
marketing, business development
and strategic planming. Paul
joined Elementis from Quttutut
Consulting, a leading Houston
based consulting group in the
ollfield service industry, Prior
expertence includes 5 years with
Champion Technologres and

16 years with the Nalco Company.

Paul holds a BA in Managenal
Studies from Rice University
and an MBA from Houston
Baptist University.

Nationality
Amerncan
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10. LUC VAN RAVENSTEIN,
VP GLOBAL COATINGS

Luc joined Elementis in January
2012 as Giobal Busmness Director,
Perscnal Care and became VP,
Personal Care in July 2016. In
February 2018, he was appointed
VP of global Coatings.

Skills, competence

and experience

Luc began his career at Creda
where he held varous reles in
therr coatings business before
heading up their European
personal care business. Whilst at
Elements, and leading the
Personal Care business, Luc was
responsible for the SummitRehe s
business post acquisition.

Luc has an MSc degree In
Chemistry and Chemical
Engineenng and a Professional
Daoctorate in Engineenng from
Eindhoven University of
Technology

Nationality
Dutch/French

11. WENDI WEBER,

VP GLOBAL MARKETING
Wendi joined Elementis as VP
Global Marketing in January 2017.

Skills, competence

and experience

Prior to joirung Elementis, Wendi
held executive positions at CBE&I
and C.DI Gorporation where she
held P&L respensibility including
business and engineering
operatons, commercial
development, M&A, and strategy.
In addition, she brings several
years of general management
expernence in the refining, gas
processing, specialty chemicals
and petrochemical industries.
She has worked at BASF Catalyst
and Rhedia ing, n research and
development, global business and
manufactunng management roles.

Wend holds a bachelor's degree
in Aerospace Engineenng and

a master's and doctorate degree
in Chemical Engineering frem the
University of Virgimia, and an MBA
from the University of Mickugan.

Nationality
Amencan

Laura Higgins,

Company Secretary

Laura i1s a member of the ELT,
Her biography can be found
oh page 47.

CHROMIUM

In July 2018, Dennis Valentino,
President of Chrormium wall
retire from Elementis Enc
Waldmann became VP
Chromium on 1 February
2018. Dennis 151N &
transitionary role to ensure an
effective and orderly transfer
of duties

12. DENNIS VALENTINO,
PRESIDENT, CHROMIUM
Dennis has been President
of Elementis Chromium since
Apnl 2009

Skills, competence

and experience

Dennis began his career with
Pfizer Pigments in 1975 and
held vanous positions in the
Pigments business including
VP of its North America
coatings unit and VP of
manufaciuring. When Pfizer
Pigments was sold to
Elementis plc, Denmis
contnued his career as

part of Elementis Pigments.
Dennis became President of
Elementis Prigments until the
unit was scld in August 2007,
He later rejoined Elements
as President of Chrommwm.

Crenrus helds a degree in
Chemical Engineering and an
MBA from 5t. Louts University.

Nationality
American

13. ERIC WALDMANN,
VP CHROMIUM

Enc was appointed VP
Chromium on 1 February
2018.

Skills, competence

and experience

Enc has 26 years of
experience In the areas of
finance, accounting, mergers
and acquisitions and
sourcing. He has been with
Elementis Chromium since
2007 and his most recent
position was VP Finance

and Sourcing. Prior to joining
Elementis, Enc held several
positions at Honeywell and ICI
in therr finance and mergers
and acquisitens functions.

Enc holds a bachelor's
degree in business
adrmerustration from Bucknell
Uriversity, and an MBA from
Villanova University, Enc is
also a CPA and a member

of the Amencan Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Nationality
Amernican

yioda) oibsiens

eauewsach syesodion

SJUBWIBIELS [BIIUBUY

UOHBULIOJUI JERI0yBIBYS



CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

ANDREW DUFF, CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

tam pleased with the pace of progress made and delighted
with the level of commitment and contribution that the Board
has demonstrated during the year.

Early in 2017, we announced the acquisition of SummitReheis,
our largest acquisition in 20 years, and the sale of the US
Colourants business and simultaneous closure of the Jersey
City site. We ended the year with the announcement of the
sale of our Surfactants business.

We have also welcomed 2 new Non-Executive Directors,
Sandra Boss and Dorothee Deurning. Both Sandra and Dorothee
underwent a process of induction, meeting members of the
Executive Leadership team and visiting a number of cur

key sites.

The Board culture that | foster continues to be founded on

the principles of integrity, respect, transparency and openness
Directors are expected to lead by example and exemplify the
highest standards of propnety, diligence and accountability.
This culture and the values it underpins 1s not only engendered
In the Board, its Committees and the Executive L eadership
team but permeates throughout our arganisation.

Ralph Hewins and Paul Waterman are enthusiastic and deeply
committed to the Reignite Growth strategy and together they
bring a renewed focus on delvery of strategy. | would ke to
thank Paul and Ralph for enhancing the Board’s understanding
of strategic and operational developments.
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Steve Good was appointed Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in April 2017 and has led the review of the Directors'
remuneration palicy in consultation with major shareholders

(2s well as Implemented a tender process for new remuneration
adwvisers). More detaills can be found in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 55 to 76.

Anne Hyland continues to chair the Audit Committee and

the focus this year has been the impact of the SummitRehers
acquisition and other corporate transactons on the financal
statements. This was also Deloitte LLP's first full year as our
external auditors. Further details on the Committee's activities
can be found on pages 51 to 54,

The Nomination Committee carmed out an internal effectiveness
review of the Board, Committees and individual Directors
towards the end of the year. A descripticn of the key findings
are set out in the report of that Commitiee on page 50.

Continuing with its programme of visiting cperational sites,

the Board held meetings at our principal offices in New Jersey,
US in June and also at the headquarters of our Coatings EMEA
pusiness In Colegne, Germany in September, The Board

also visited the SummitReheis sites In New York, US and
Ludwigshafen, Germany. The Board interacts regularly with
members of the Executive Leadership team and engages with
the wider business to deepen the level of knowledge and
increase insight into the operations of the business.

We received a strong level of support from our shareholders
for all our resolutions at the 2017 AGM. | would like to express
my sincere thanks to you, our shareholders, for your
conbinuing support,

Statement of compliance

The Board 1s of the view that it has appied fully, threughout
2017, all of the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code published in 2016 (the ‘Code’}. A copy of the Code is
available at www.frc_gov.uk. The application of the Code's
principles are descnbed in the Corporate governance report
on pages 45 to 48,

The sections that follow describe how the Board has applied
the principles and pravisions of the Cede.,

ANDREW DUFF
Chairman
27 February 2018




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

As identifiled on pages 40 and 41, during 2017, the Board
comprised 2 Executive Directors (CEQ and CFO) and 6
Non-Executive Directors (including the Chairman and Senior
Independent Director). In 2017, the number of non-executives
increased to 6 following the appointments of Sandra Boss and
Borothee Deuring, At the conclusion of the 2017 AGM, Andrew
Christie duly retired from the Board after nearly @ years as a
Non-Executive Director.

Role of the Chairman

The Chairman is responsitle for leadership of the Board, whilst
the CEQ 1s responsible for running the Group’s businesses.
The roles of Chairman and CEQ are separate, clearly defined
and no individual has unfettered powers of decision making.
The Chairman 1s supported by the Senior Independent Director
who is available to shareholders if the normal channels for
raising any concern prove to be ineffective or inapproprate.

It is the Chairman’s responsibility to set the style and tone 1in
which the Board operates and ensure there s a proper forum
and framewaork for constructive discussion and challenge. The
Chairman 1s responsible for ensuring that the Board as a whole,
and each cf its Individual Directors, are able to contribute
effectively in the performance of their roles. This framework
includes’ access to relevant and quality infermation, internal anc
external advice, leadership and business teams, support and
development opportunities; understanding the views of market
analysts and major shareholders, and maintaining constructive
relationships between executve and non-executive members
of the Board.

Board appointments

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for 3 year terms that can
be renewed by mutual agreement, subject to annual re-election
by shareholders, satisfactory performance and meeting
ndependence requirements. Detalls of the Executive Directors’
service contracts and the Non-Executive Cirectors' letters of
appointment (iIncluding remuneration and fee levels) are set out
n the Directors’ remuneration report.

Board composition

12% Chairman*
25% Executive Directors
63% Non-Executive Directors

*Independent on appointment

Average age of the Board

55 years
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Board operation

The Board has a formal programme of activities that are
undertaken at scheduled meetings throughout the year and this
is supplemented by ad hoc meetings, conference calls or other
Board events, as and when appropnate. There were 8 formal
meetings in 2017 and the attendance record of each Director

is shown in the table overleaf.

The Beard is supported in its actmties by Board committees
that have been delegated specific responsibilities, as set out
in their terms of reference. They have also been supported

by a formal schedule of matters which allows certain decisions
o be retained by the Board and others to be delegated to the
Executive Directors within certain parameters.

The schedule of matters reserved for the Board includes

the following;

- Approval of strategic and annual operating plans

- Approval of financial statements, major acquisitions and
disposals

— Approval of nsk management and compliance programmes,
as well as Group insurance arrangements

- Approval of major projects and capital expenditures

- Approval of major legal settlements and litigation

The Board reviews the business, financial, operaticnal,
governance, compliance and HSE performance of the Group at
each of iis formal meetings, iIncluding major business nitiatives,
threats and opportunities, as well as progress on product
innovation and new customers,

Board and Committee dales are scheduled at least a year In
advance, as are overseas site visits. A 12 month forward
planner helps to ensure that the Board spends an appropriate
amount of its time focused on the strategic 1ssues affecting the
Group's businesses, To assist the Board In carrying out its
duties, information of an appropriate quality 1s 1Issued in a timely
manner ahead of Board and Committee meetings. If there are
any Board conflicts or unresclved matters concerning Board
decisions (there were none in 2017) these would be recorded
in the minutes of meetings.

Board activities

14.5% Governance
23% Business performance
14% Finance

36.5% Strategy
12% Investor relations

Related material
Board of Directors — page 40
Principal risks and uncertanties — page 32
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

Risk management

The Board has overail responsibility for sk management in the
Company and sets the Group's policies, culture and appetite on
nisk, as well as providing suppert and oversight to managemeant,
The CEO, supported by the Executive Leadership team, I1s
responsible for implementing Group policies, overseeing risk
management performance, identfying principal nsks and
ensunng resources are allocated for effective risk management
and mitigation. The Audit Committee plays an important role

in supporting the work of the Board and is responsible for
menitoring financial reporting, as well as the internal and
external audit programmes, which provides assurance

on financial, operational and compliance controls,

Examples of the specific types of iisk that the Board keeps

under regular review include the following:

— Commercial and supply chain risks (8.9 major customers,
key supply contracts)

- Strategic risks (e.g. acquisitions, disposals and ma)jor
capital expenditures)

— Major litigation and compliance risk (e.g. anti-corruption,
cyber secunty, people, intellectual property)

— Operational and HSE nsk (e.q. people, precess safety,
natural events such as a hurricane)

- Financial nsks {e.g. market and treasury risks}.

Specific agenda items an risk are scheduled throughout the
year, for example, legal and compliance risk, operations and
HSE, insurance and the Board's formal risk review in December

Director attendance in 2017

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Commitlee
Andrew Duff 8/8 - 515 -
Paul Waterman 8/8 - - -
Ralph Hewins 8/8 - - -
Sandra Boss? 8/8 3/3 5/5 78
Dorothee Deurnng? 77 272 4/4 7
Steve Good3 8/8 111 5/5 a/8*
Anne Hylang4 a8 33" ) 212
Nick Salmon 8/8 3/3 5/5 8/8
Past Director
Andrew Chwisties 373 7 2{2 2{2

*  Chairman of Committee.

1 Appointed to the Board on 1 February 2017, Sandra missed 1
Remuneration Committee meeting due to an engagement arranged
prior io her appointment to the Board

Appointed to the Board on 1 March 2017,

Appointed Remuneration Committee Charman and stepped down from
the Audit Committee on 25 April 2017,

Stepped down from the Remuneration Committee on 25 Apnl 2017
Retired from the Baard and as Remuneration Committee Charman

on 25 April 2017,

[N

LE N

Board independence

The Board considers all the Non-Executive Directors 1o
be independent irr character and judgement throughout
2017 and s satisfied that each Director exercises
independent judgement.

The Non-Executive Directors provide constructive challenge
and help support the Executive Directors in developing strategy
and business priorities. The Directors are required at all times
to avoid conflicts of interest, act for a proper purpose and in the
best interests of the Company, consistent with their statutory
duties. No individual or group dominates decision making.
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Board evaluation

As part of its annual programme of events, the Board carned
out an internal evaluation of its performance dunng the year.
Having censidered the outcames of the evaluation, the Board
considers that s composition contains the appropriate balance
of diversity of views, qualfications, skills, experience and
personal attributes necessary to carry out its duties and
responsicihiies and to provide appropriate depth and restience.
Further detalls of the evaluation are set out in the Nomination
Committee report on page 50. The last externally facilitated
evaluation of the Board took place in 2015. An externally
faciitated review is expecied to take place durning the Jatter
part of 2018.

Board diversity

The Board's policy is that appointments should be made on the
basis of qualification and merit, The Board agrees that diversity
which should be construed In its broadest sense and incorporate
gender dwersity, 1s an important factor in Board effectiveness
and supports the Code's principles and provisions on gender
dversity. The Board 1s mindful of the Hampton-Alexander review
which sets a target for the percentage of women on boards to
reach one third by 2020 and the appointments of Sandra Boss
and Dorothee Deunng in 2017 meant that Elementis achieved
38% female representation at the end of the year.

With regards to the Parker review and its recommendation

of ‘Beyond Cne by 2021' for FTSE 100 companies (and the
same aspiratien for FTSE 250 companies by 2024), the Board
1s supportive of these aims, which seek to increase ethnic
diversity within UK boardrooms, to better reflect the ethnic
diversity of our broader workforce. The Board will take this
into account as part of its recruitment practices.

Gender diversity
62% Male

38% Femaig

Board experience

Finance/lnvestment
50%

Manufacturing

Chemicals
38%

R&D/Technology




{induction
All new Directors are invited to participate in an induction
pregramme that includes

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary supports the Chairman in ensuring
the Board functions efficiently and effectively.

Development and support

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and may take independent professional
advice, as appropriate, at the expense of the Company
Directors are given the opportunity threughout the year to
undertake training and attend seminars 1o keep therr skills

and knowledge up to date, and receive internal briefings on
technical and/or other regulatory gevelopments that they need
to be made aware of. An example 1s the training update given
by the Cempany’s external legal advisers on the Market Abuse
Regulation. The Company Secretary supports the Chairman in
ensuring that the Board and Board Committees operate within
the governance framework adopted and that communication
and information flows within the Board and its Committees
and between management and Non-Executive Directors
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Sandra Dorothee
Boss Deuring
Non- Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director

Meeting members of the

Executive Leadership team

and ceorporate advisers

Tallored training on the

duties and responsibiities

of a Director of a UK

Iisted company.

Undertzking a programme Site visits Site visits

of site wisits. 3 3

Both Sandra Boss and Dorothee Deunng received a tallored
comprehensive induction programme.

LAURA HIGGINS, COMPANY SECRETARY
Laura joined the Company on 2 January 2018 and became
Company Secretary on 31 January 2018.

Skills, competence and experience

Laura brings extensive company secretarial experience

from roles in UK and nternationally quoted companies across
FMCG, Leisure, Broadcasting, Publishing, Mining and Support
Service sectors. Her last role was at Britvic plc where she held
the position of deputy company secretary.

Laura holds a degree in Law and Legal Studies with History
and 1s a fellow of the Inshtute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

Nationality
British
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

Communications with shareholders

The CEQ and CFO are the Company's principal contacts

with investors, analysts and the financial press. The Company
maintains a comprehensive programme of activities to ensure
their needs are met. This includes stock exchange
announcements, INvestor meelings, the annual report and
updates to the corporate website. The Company appointed a
OHrector of investor Refations midway through 2017 to support
the CFO in mantaining and developing communications with
investors and analysts.

The Board receives regular feedback from shareholders
following meetings with management in results and other
investor roadshows, Analysts’ forecasts and research reports
about the Company and the wider chemicals sector, as well as
presentations and reports from the Company’s joint corporate
brokers, are provided to all Directors, helping Non-Executive
Directors 1o develop a clear understanding of the views of major
shareholders. The Chairman and Seror Independent Director
are available for contact by shareholders at any time.

From time to ime, where appropriate, the Chairman and

the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee will organise
a pregramme of meetings with major sharehoiders fo update
themn on any significant developments in business strategy;,
corporate governance matters or consult them on proposais
for executive remuneration.

The AGM gives all of the Company’s shareholders the
opportunity to speak with the Directors and the chairmen of the
Board Committees. The Notice of AGM 1s dispatched at least
20 working days before the meeting. The Company proposes
separate resolutions for subsiantaily separate issues. In ine with
best practice, voling is conducted by poll. Shareholders have
the option 1o vote either for or against a resolution, or to withhold
therr vote. The results of the meeting are announced to London
Stock Exchange and published on the corporate website.

Investor concentration

35% Top 5 sharenclders
42% Top 30 shareholders
19% Top 100 shareholders
4% Others

For more information
about Board Committees
www.elementisplc.com/governance-responsibiity/
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Geographical breakdown of shareholder base

0,

65% 13%

Rest of

Europe

19%
North
America 3%
Rest of

worid

Corporate Governance Code

The FRC 1s expected {0 publish an updated version of the
Corporate Governance Code in 2018 to implement a number
of changes that the Government has consulted on including’
stakeholder engagement and additional responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee. The Board will monitor these
developments and make the necessary changes to its
operation and the terms of reference of its Board committees
as appropriate
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

ANDREW DUFF, CHAIRMAN, NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Chairman and members of the Nemination Commitiee
{the ‘Committee’) are shown on pages 40 to 41, together with
their biographical information. During 2017, 5 meetings were
held and the attendance records of Committee members are
shown below. The CEC is invited to attend all of its meetings,
except when the discussion concerns him or when itis a
meeting of Non-Executive Directors anly, and other
Executive Directors are invited to attend where appropriate

The Commuttee's terms of reference are available on

the Company's website and the following 1s a summary

of its responsibilities:

- Reviewing the size and composition of the Board, together
with the skills, knowledge. experience and diversity of
its members and making recommendaticns for change
as necessary

- Carrying out an annual performance evaluation of
the Board, its commitiees and individual members

- Succession planming for the Board and Executive
Leadership team.

Committee members Scheduled meetings

6 5

Committee members

Scheduled meetings

Andrew Duff* 5/5
Sandra Boss! 5/5
Dorothee Deuring? 414
Steve Good 5/5
Anne Hyland 5/5
Nick Salmon 5/5
Andrew Christie3 (past Director) 2/2

*  Charman of Committee

1 Appeinted to the Beard on 1 February 2017
2?2 Appointed to the Board on 1 March 2017

3 Retired from the Board on 25 Aprj} 2017
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ACTIVITIES IN 2017

The following 1s 2 description of the work of the Committee
to show how it has discharged its responsibilities in 2017,
which was reported to the Board.

February

Discussion and approval of the appointment of Dorothee
Deuring as an additicnal Board member, review and agree new
Board Committee compositions, consider and approve a new
Board diversity pelicy, and review and approve the Nomination
Committee report in the Annual report.

March

Discussion of the Chairman’s performance and re-appointment,
and approve recommending to the Board the re-appointment of
the Chairman for a further 3 year term, subyject to performance
and shareholder re-election.

July
Discussion of Board perfarmance evaluation approach and
form of questonnaire.

September

Discussion of the performance of Nick Salmon (Senior
Independent Cirector) and Steve Good (Remuneration
Committee Chairman) and thearr re-appointment, and approval
to the Board the re-appointments of both to their existing roles
for a further 3 year term, subject to performance and
shareholder re-election.

December

Discussien of the output of the Board evaluation and review
of the Chairman’s performance which was considered to
be effective and satisfactory.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT
CONTINUED

2017 BOARD EVALUATION

The Board and Committee agreed that, with the changes to

its composition in 2016 and 2017, the Board evaluation for the
year being reported on would be underiaken without external
assistance, This would allow a pencd for the Board transition

to come to an end, at which point it would be approprate for a
more In-depth, externally facilitated evaluation to be carned out.
This 1s planned for 2018.

The 2017 review was undertaken by means of a qualitative
questionnarre survey (produced in-house), covering all aspects
of the Beard's structure, composition and operation, Board
interactions (internal and external), and business strategy, nsks
and pricrities, In addition, the survey included specific sections
on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
including how well they were chaired and orgarised, the qualty
of Committee papers as well as therr effectiveness.

The outcome of the review highlighted that the Board and its
Committees are effective and well run, that interactions between
the Executive Directers and Non-Executive Directors are strong
and positive, and that all Directors contribute effectively and
provide appropriate commitment to their role. Notably, the
quality of Board matenals and discussion had improved greatly
which enabled the Board to spend more of its ime on strategic
matters affecting the Company.

Areas to work on in 2018 included increasing the Board's
interactions with all members of the Executive Leadership team
and key advisers, clanfying the Board's appetite for nisk in
relation to organic growth and acquisition critena, ensunng that
the Board continues to provide appropriate challenge and add
value, and ensurtng the Executive Directors get the support
they need.

Following the evaluation review, the Board is satisfied that all
Directars contribute effectively and demonstrate appropriate
commitment to therr role. Shareholders are therefore asked
to support their re-election at the AGM.
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Shareholders may find the biographical information provided
oan pages 40 and 41 useful to help them understand how

a Director's background cor experience can enhance the
contribution he or she is making 1o the operation and
effectiveness of the Board. This will also assist shareholders

In assessing the skills and experience of the Board as a whole,
when determining how to vote on certain resolutions at the
AGM. The information should also be read in conjunchion

with the Notice of Meeting accompanying this Annual report
proposing the re-election of all Directors at the 2018 AGM.

ANDREW DUFF
Chairman, Nomination Committee
27 February 2018




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ANNE HYLAND, CHAIRMAN, AUDIT COMMITTEE

On behalf of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to present
the Audit Committee report for the year ended 31 December
2017 The purpose of this report is to describe how the
Committee has carried out its responsibilites dunng

the year.

MEETINGS AND COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
The Board 1s saysfied that Anne Hyland has recent and
relevant financial experience as required by the Code and,
further, that the Committee as a whole has competence
relevant to the sector in which the Company operates.

Fallowing a review of its programme of work, the Committee
decided 1o restructure the frequency of meetings by having
3 formal meetings each year instead of 4, supported by

ad hec meetings as appropriate. Accardingly, 3 meetings
were held last year and the attendance of Committee
members 1s shown below,

The Charrman of the Board, both Executive Directars

and representatives of both the external auditor,

Deloitte LLP {Deloitte) and internal audit provider,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) have a standing
Invitation to attend all Commitiee meetings, except when
an agenda item concerns either the external or internal
auditor or 1s only for Committee members to meet with the
external or internal auditor without management or anyone
else being present.

Commitftee members Scheduled meetings

4 3

Committee members Scheduled megtings

Anne Hyland™ 3/3
Sandra Boss! 373
Dorothee Deuring? 272
Steve Good? 11
Nick Satmon 33
Andrew Christie’ (past Director) 1/1

Chairman of Committee

Appointed to the Beard on 1 February 2017

Appointed {o the Beard on 1 March 2017

Stepped down from the Audit Committee an 25 Apnl 2017
Retired from the Board on 25 Apnl 2017

R N
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ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Commuttee’s role 1s to ensure appropriate oversight and
review of the presentation and integrity of the Group's financial
reporting, Internal controls and risk management, internal audit
programmes, changes in regulatory requirements, and the
independence and appointment of the external auditor.

The terms of reference for the Committee can be found on the
corporate website. www.clementisplc.com.

To enable the Committee to discharge is responsibilities,
discussions on a broad range of topics and repcris were

held with management, internal audit provider and the external
auditors throughout the year. This provided insight into the
progress towards the Company's strategic goals, the challenges
and risks the Company faces and how these are managed.
The activities of the Commuittee can be found overleat.

The Committee has an open diatogue throughout the year

50 the external auditor and the internal auditor provider can
raise challenges and questions in therr audit work and findings,
and consider management's responses.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

The following 1s a summary of the Committee's responsibilities

- Monitoring the integrity of the Group's financial statements,
financial reporting and related statements, as well as the
clanty and completeness of disclosures (including narrative
reports and governance statements and accompanying
financial and related statements} and informing the Beard
whether the Annual report and accounts taken as a whole,
15 farr, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’'s performance, business model and strategy.

— Ensuring the appropriateness of accounting policies,
any changes to these, and any significant estimates and
Judgements made

— Reviewing the effectiveness of internal control, comphance
and nsk management systems (Including whistleblowing
arrangements)

- Overseeing all aspects of the relationship with the internat
and external auditors, such as: negobating and approving
their terms of appointment, fees, the scope, manner and
programme of work; monitoring resourcing, performance
and effectiveness, independence and objectivity taking into
account relevant UK professional and regulatory guidelines,
approving the policy on non-audit services, making
recommendations to the Board for their dismissal or changes,
and supervising any tender process
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
CONTINUED

MAIN ACTIVITIES DURING 2017

Committee meetings usually take place pnor to a Board
meeting. The Chairman of the Committee subsequently reports
on the activities of the Committee and matters of particular
relevance to the Board.

The following 1s a description of the work ¢f the Committee
10 show how it has discharged its responsibilities in 2017.

February

— Met with Deloitte without management present to review therr
audit findings

- Reviewed Deloitte’s audit report in combination with the 2016
Annual report {and associated preliminary resulis statement),
management representation letter to the auditors, internal
control and going concern and viability statements, tax,
tigation and compliance reports {including whistleblowing
arrangements) and the effectiveness, independence and
objectivity of the auditors

— Recommended to the Board the approval of the 2016
Annual report

— Recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Celoitte
as external auditor of the Company

— Considered non-audit services and fees undertaken
by Deloitte dunng 2016

July

— Met with senior representatives of Deloitte to consider a lead
partner rotation for the 2017 year end audit, met the proposed
new lead audit partner and made a recommendation to the
Board for their appomtment as lead partner

~ Discussed the output of the external auditor performance
evaluation undertaken in Q2 which invelved a detailled
questionnaire and responses from key members of the
finance function

- Reviewed PwC’s H1 internal audit programme repert
and management's responses to the audit findings

— Assessed In combination with Deloitte’s H1 review report,
the 2017 interim results announcement (Incorporating a
management report and cendensed financial statements and
notes), management representation letter to the auditors and
the H1 htigation, compliance and tax reports, as well as the
H1 going concern statement {inciuding matenal uncertainties
and principal nisks)

— Approved Deloitte’s letter of engagement and proposed
fee for H1 and year-end audit

— Reviewed and confirmed the Company’s compliance
programme

- Considered various technical briefings on the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the 2016 Guidance for Audit Committees,
Tax Transparency Regulations, IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments),
IFRS 15 {Revenue Recognition) and IFRS 16 (Leases)
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December

— Met with PwC without management present to consider the
Group's internal audit programme and control framework

— Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit programme
and PwC's performance, supported by the results of a survey
questionnaire completed by key members of finance staff

— Reviewed the adequacy of resources made available to PwC
and the arrangements they have in place to ensure they can
deliver an effective internal audit service

— Receved PwC's H2 internal audit programme report and
management's responses to the audit findings

— Approved the re-appointment of PwC as internal auditors
for 2018 and approved an interim plan for the 2018 nternal
audit programme

— Reviewed an update on the 2017 audit plan and progress
from Deloitte

— Noted the progress of tax reforms in the US and potential
impact to the Company

- Reviewed the output of the purchase price allocation exercise
in respect of the SummitReheis acquisition

- Considered a proposal from management en changes to
segmental reporting for the year ending 31 December 2018

- Reviewed the FRC Audnt Quality Review team's final report
and findings in respect of Deloitte’s audit of the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016

KEY ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The primary areas of accounting judgement considered

by the Committee in relation to the 2017 financial statements
are listed below.

Purchase price allocation for the SummitReheis
business

Following the purchase of SummiReheis in March 2017, it
was necessary tc decide the allocation of the purchase price
to goodwill, intangibles and other balance sheet items

Key areas of judgement surrounded the evaluation of the US
customers' list, where 2 significant assumptions were made
around the average Iife of 24 years and attrion rate of 0%
of the top 20 US customers for SummitRehels.

The Committee reviewed progress made on the analysis that was
conducted by a third party provider and led by management.

Management updated the Committee regularly on their
proposals and the external auditors provided assurance to

the Committee that their subject matter experts were in support
of the allocation of purchase price.

Further information 1s detailed in note 1.

Environmental provisiens

A process consistent with 2016 for the evaluation of
envircnmental provisions was followed by management, the
key area of jJudgement being the discount rate used for future
liabilities. In 2016, this discount rate was reduced from 4.5% to
2.5%. The Committee considered this discount rate and were
satisfied that a rate of 2.5% remained approprate for 2017.

Further information 1$ detailed In note 1.




The carrying values of advance corporation tax (‘ACT’)
Atax report was provided to the Committee at each of its
meetings. The Commitiee challenged both the justification for,
and carrying values of, ACT recoverable and deferred tax assets.

During the year, the Board approved the Group's tax strategy.
A copy Is avallable on the corporate website:
www.clementisple.com

Further information i1s detaled in note 1.

Assumptions underpinning the calculation of the
Group’s defined benefit pension obligations

Pension scheme labilties are assessed for the Group by
independent actuaries. Additionally, management reviews and
challenges the underlying assumptions with other third party
adwisers to ensure that the actuaries’ own assumptions are
appropr:ate for the Group. The Committee also discusses the
appropriateness of the assumptions, in particular the discount
rate applied on the defined benefit future cbligation and the
right to recognise the surplus on the UK defined benefd pension
scheme as an asset.

Further information 1s detalled in note 1.

Use of adjusting items in the financial results

The Committee considers separate disclosure of adjusting
items in hight of the FRC recommendations of a balanced and
consistent approach. The Committee is mindful of the need 1o
understand the underlying trends of each segment within the
husiness with the iImpact of large and unusual tems separated
cut as necessary to avord distortions from adjusting items.

Further information is detailed in note 1.

Revenue recognition

In 2016, the Committee considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition or revenue from the sale of goods set aut in IAS 18
Revenue and changed the accounting policy to more accurately
reflect the commercial subsiance of transactions. In 2017, this
revised policy was applied consistently to all existing sectors

of the Campany. Following the acquisition of SummitReheis the
Committee considered the application of the Company policy

to the acquired operations at the year end and adopted the
policy accordingly.

Further infermation 1s detaled in note 1.

AUDITOR ROTATION AND TENDERING AND
COMPETITION & MARKETS AUTHORITY ORDER -
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

As reported this time last year, the Committee carried out an
audit tender process in 2015 that resufted in the appointment
of Deloitte as external auditor in April 2016. Deloitte’s
re-appointment as external auditor's in 2017 was approved
by shareholders at the Company's AGM i April 2017.

The Committee therefore confirms that the Company 1s compliant
with the order on mandatory tendenng of audit contracts.
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AUDIT EFFECTIVENESS

The Chairman of the Committee meets with the audit partner
frequently, ncluding for both audit planning and review meetings
The Committee meets the audit partner and usually the senior
manager at all of iis formal meetings but it 1s the CFO and
finance teams who have most exposure to the audit team.

During the year, the FRC's Audit Quality Review team selected
to review the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The focus of the review and
therr reporting 1s on identifying areas where improvements are
reqguired rather than huighlighting areas performing to or above
the expected level. The Chairman of the Committee received

a full copy of the findings of the Audit Quality Review team and
discussed these with Deloitte. The Committee confirms that
there were no significant areas for improvement identified within
the report, or any material Issues In relation to the financial
statements. The Committee 1s satisfied that there 13 nothing within
the report that might have a bearing on the audit appointment.

To help the Committee carry out a fermal review of Deloitte’s
performance, a questionnaire based evaluation 1s undertaken
towards the end of each year end audrt cycle by members of
the finance team globally The Committee also monitors audit
effectiveness by reviewing the Audit Qualiy Inspection reports
pubiished by the FRC. The Committee considers the auditor's
performance to be satisfactory and that the audit 1s effective
as measured against their letter of engagement and the scope
of services agreed.

AUDIT OBJECTIVITY AND INDEPENDENCE

The Cammittee caonsiders the auditor's objectivity and
independence at least twice a year. It receves reports from
Deloitte on its internal quality controls and independence rules,
and keeps under review the level of non-augdit services Deloitte
provides. The Commitiee is of the view that Deloitte were
objective and iIndependent throughout the 2017 audit process
notwithstanding the level of non-audit services provided. Based
on the Committee’s recommendation, the Board Is proeposing
that Deloitte be re-appointed to office at the AGM in Apnl 2018.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

In 2017, audit services fees for the Company and its
subsidiaries were $0.9m and non-audit services fees

were $0.6m (2016: audit services for the Company and

its subsidianes: $0.7m and non-audit services $0.3m}.

These non-audit fees were approved by the Committee.

These services consisted mainly of corporate finance advisory
services for the Taiwan entity and due diligence support in
relation to the acquisition of SummitRehers. Deloitte’'s knowledge
of the business meant that it could provide these services cost
effectively and the safeguards descnbed above ensured that
the Committee did not consider the provision of these services
to affect the auditor's independence and objectivity.

The Company's policy en non-audit services contains guidance
on the types of non-audit work that the external auditors may be
considered fer. This guidance 1s in addition to other factors that
must be taken into consideration, such as the expertise and
resources of the firm, whether the services could nsk
lecpardising audit iIndependence and the fee relative to the
audit fee. Examples of services that the external auditors may
and may not be allowed to perform under the policy can be
found on the Company's corporate website

Under the policy, the CFC may approve individual engagements
where the fee 1s up to 15% of the Group’s audit fee for the year,
provided that the total non-audit fees in the year do not exceed
50% of that Group audit fee. Decisions above these threshoelds
must be referred to the Committee for determinaticn
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
CONTINUED

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Committee’s formal remit includes reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control, compliance and risk
management systems which it carnes out in support of the
Board's formal review of significant nsks and material controls,
as summansed in the Risk management report. The focus of
the Committee when it reviews internal audit reports is mainly on
financial, operational and compliance risks PwC, who provide
an outsourced internal audi function, play a significant role in
the Group's internal control process, which i1s designed for the
purposes of preventing material financial loss and fraud,
safeguarding the value of assets (iIncluding reputation) and
ensuring compliance with laws, regulations and Group policies.

The Group's internal control and nsk management system

is only designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the nsk of
failure to achieve business objectives and therefore the Board
can only provide reascnable, and not absolute, assurance
against material mis-statement or loss, The Board 1s of the
view thal an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant nsks faced by the Group was in place
throughout the financial year under review and up tc ihe date
that this Annual report was approved No significant internal
control fallings or weaknesses were reported last year.

Set out below is @ summary of the key features of the Group's
internal contrels and nsk management system.

Control environment

The Group has policies and procedures that set out the
responsibilities of business and site management, including
authority levels, reporting disciplines and responsibility for
risk management and internal control. In addihon, annual
compliance statements on internal controls are certified

by each cperating segment.

Risk identification and review

A formal nisk review process exists at Board and Executive
Leadership team levels for the identification, evaluation,
mitigation and engoing monitoring of nsks. Further details
can be found on pages 32 to 36.

Financial reporting

The Group operates a comprehensive financial reporting
system including forecasts, consoclidation and monthly reporting.
Board reports include fuli management accounts, comprising
monthly and year to date profit and loss statements, cash flow
statements and balance sheet, with segmental and individual
business performance analyses, as well as relevant performance
indicators. Actual monthly results are monitored against budget,
forecasts and the previous year's results, Any significant
vanances are investigated and acted upon as appropriate.

As well as monthly management accounts, each operating
division prepares an annhual and a 3 year operating plan which
Is approved by the Board. Thereafter a formal re-forecasting
exercise 1s undertaken at least twice a year.

Investment appraisal

There are clearly defined investment guidelines for capital
expenditure. All investment expenditure 1s subject to formal
authonisation procedures, with major proposals being
considered by the Board. Below Board level, an Investment
Commitment Meeting is held on a menthly basis tc review
projects at stage gates and the capital expenditure pipeline.
These meetings are attended by the CEQ and CFO,
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INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME

Aninternal audit programme 1s proposed by PwC in
consultation with the CFO and approved by the Committee
each year, setting out a pregramme of audits over the course
of the next 12 menths, The programme covers the monitaring
of the effectiveness of internal controls and the design of
processes to test the effectiveness of controls, As well as
conducting audits of operating facilities, sales offices and
tolling sites on a 2 to 3 year rotational basis, the internal audd
programme includes reviews of Group funcfions and
processes. Examples of some of the internal audits conducted
during 2017 include. US and EU shared service centres,
forecast and budgeting processes, tax governance, Specialty
Products’ sites in China, US and Brazil, Chromum's Castle
Hayne site and the SummitReheis sites n the US and Germany.

CONTROLS ASSURANCE

The controls assurance framework at Elementis is threefold

— Board leadership supported by an open and transparent
culture of 'no surprises’, good governance and compliance.
This means knowing and understanding the businesses,
quality interactions between the Board and the Executive
Leadership team (including a regular programme of
presentations and reports to the Board, as well as
operational site visits}

— Internal and external audit programme, regular lihgation
and compliance reviews with the General Counsel and a
programme of compliance audits, regulatory inspections,
environmental reviews and property surveys by external
specialists

- Code of Business Cenduct and Ethics, which was refreshed
during 2017, on which all employees are given training and
are required to self certify compliance with, supplemenied
by an online comphance traimng programme, an anti-bribery
and corruption policy, which contractors are also required
to sign up to, whistleblowing arrangements and an
anti-retaliation policy

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE

The Board and Committee understand the governance
requirements for the Annual report, {aken as a whole, to be

fair, balanced and understandable, and that ‘fair’ should mean
reasonable and impartial, ‘balanced’ should mean even handed
n terms of being positive and negative and ‘understandable’
should mean simple, clear and free from jargon or

unnecessary clutter.

The Board and Committee consider the Annual report for 2017,
taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and understandable, ang
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company’s position and performance, business model and
strategy. In coming to this view, the Board and Committee look
the following into consideration” {1) meetings between the

Audit chairman and the audit partner, as well as between the
external auditer and the Cormmittee without management being
present, (i1} discussions at the audit clearance meeting; (n)
discussions with management on the progress of the audht at
different stages of the audit process; and (v} feedback obtained
frem members of the Executive Directors and finance teams,
as well as from the Company's brokers and other advisers,

For and on behalf of the Audit Committee.

ANNE HYLAND
Chairman, Audit Committee




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

STEVE GOOD, CHAIRMAN, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

| am pleased to present my first Directors’ remuneration
report since being appointed Remuneration Committee
(‘Committee’) Chairman following last year's AGM.

The Directors’ remuneration report I1s set cut In 3 parts.
1. This annual statement and summary.

2. The updated remuneration policy which will be submitted
to shareholders in a binding vote at the AGM to pe held
on 26 April 2018, and will apply from this date.

3. The annual remuneration report which provides detail
on Director remuneration in 2017 and the proposed
mplementation of our remuneraticn policy for 2018
which 1s subject to an advisory shareholder vote
at the AGM on 26 April 2018,

Committee members Scheduled meetings

Committee members

Scheduled meetings

Steve Good* 8/8
Sandra Boss! 7/8
Dorothee Deuring? 7Y
Anne Hyland3 212
Nick Salmon 8/8
Andrew Christie4 (past Director) 2/2

*  Chairman of Committee, appoirted Remuneration Committee chairman
on 25 Aprl 2017
1 Appointed o the Board on 1 February 2017, Sandra missed 1
Remuneration Committee meehing due to an engagement arranged
pnor t© her appointment to tne Board,
Appointed lo the Board an 1 Mareh 2017
Stepped down from the Remuneration Committae on 25 Apnl 2017,
4 Retred from the Board and as Remuneration Committee Chairman
on 25 Apnl 2017

[ANN]
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As a global specialty chemicals company that utilises
manufacturing technology and scientific innovation to deliver
high value products to our clients, our remuneration policy 1s
designed with a natural bias towards long term performance
which aligns with the long term nature of our business.

This policy 1s considered to have worked well during the past

3 years and has delivered a majonity of incentive pay based on
growing profits and delivering above average total shareholder
return, The elements of incentive pay include; (i) our long term
incentive plan, {i} half of any annual bonus earned deferred into
Company shares for 2 years and (n) operating share ownership
guidelines at a level of 200% cf satary.

The AGM in 2018 marks the expiry of our current remuneration
policy which was approved in 2015, and consequently during
2017 the Committee undertook a full review of remuneration
policy. The review was also considered timely given the
Company 1s under a new leadership team and in the early
stages of implementing the Reignite Growth strategy.

2018 Remuneration policy review and cutcome

The review process included seeking the Board's views

on the effectiveness of the current policy at the same time as
undertaking a review of our current policy against institutional
investors’ 'best practice’ expectations. The conclusion of the
review was that the current policy framework continues to be
aligned with both the long term nature of our business and
current best practice. As a result, the Committee is comfortable
with retaining the same overall framework with a small number
of modifications. These include providing greater flexibility to
refine our choice of performance metrics within our incentive
plans as further progress 1s made with the implementation of
our Reignite Growth strategy (further details can be found on
pages 4 to 11) and the ability to adjust the formula based
outcomes of our Incentive programmes to ensure pay is
aligned with overall Company performance.

A summary of the key points to note in relation te cur policy

renewal, including the modifications to our current policy,

are set out below:

— No changes are proposed 1o the maximum incentive quantum
in 2018 with the maximum annual bonus opportunities of the
CEO and CFO remaining at 150% and 125% of salary
respectively and the maximum face value of the 2018 long
ferm incentive share awards toc reman at 200% and 175%
of salary

— No change is proposed to the maximum long term incentive
policy award imit for new joiners which 1s being retained at
250% of salary. However, flexibility 1s also being introduced
o enable awards to be granted in future years to the current
Executive Directors at up to 250% of salary. There 1s no current
intention of using this additional flexibility which is being
Introduced in the context of the new policy enduring for the
3 year pelicy period through to 2021 The circumstances
in which this additional flexibilty could be used include
{a) a materal change to the size and scale of the Company,

or {b) a rebalancing from short term to long term performance.

Use of this addtional flexibility would only be considered
following appropnate dialogue with our major shareholders
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
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— Committee discretion I1s proposed to override incentive
pay cutcomes in the event that payouts are not considered
reflective of averall Company performance having applied the
performance conditions for the annual benus and long term
incentive plan. This toughens the current approach of relying
on the general discretionary nature of the bonus plan to make
adjustments o potential bonus payments with the ability to
override future long term incentive plan vesting results being
introduced for the first time.

— A reduchon to the notice penods i Non-Executive Director
letters of appointment from 6 months to 30 days’ notice
by either party to better refiect current market practice.

From a policy perspective, we will retain flexibility to set
netice perods at up to 3 months. No change s proposed

to the notice penod for the role of Chairman which will remain
at 6 months both in policy and practice.

— Flexibility is also introduced to set structured strategic targets
for a modest part of future long term incentive plan awards.
This could become relevant as we make further progress in
executing the Reignite Growth strategy but would also only
take place fellowming appropriate cialogue with our major
sharehelders.

— The maxmum level of pension benefits (provided either
as a contribution to a pension scheme or as cash in lieu
of pension) within policy for new Executive Directors s
to be reduced from 30% of salary to 25% of salary.

The above changes were the subject of consultation with
our major shareholders and the leading advisory bodies.
The feedback received was generally constructive and
overall supportive.

RENEWAL OF SHARE PLANS AT 2018 AGM

At the same time as seeking shareholder approval for a new
remuneration policy at the 2018 AGM we will also be seeking
shareholder approval to renew our long term incentive plan
{'LTIP") and our all employee savings based option schemes.
This is due to their expiry around the time of the AGM.

With regard te the new LTIP, which will facilitate the operation
of the policy detailed above, this will replicate the terms of the
current LTIP for Executive Directors given that our current plan
has been updated over time to ensure it remained ahgned with
evolving best practice (e.g. through including the ability to grant
awards subject to both a holding period on vested shares and
recovery and withholding provisions). The main change that 1s
being made is the ability to grant restricted shares (.e. shares
that vest based on time only} to participants below Board level,
In addition to the current approach of granting performance
related share awards. The majonty of LTIP participants are
based in the US where it 1s common practice to grant restricted
shares, This approach will enable the Company to better
compete for the best talent in the US and offer greater flexibility
to reward and incentivise talent below Board level. Where
restricted share awards are granted, these will be at a lower
level (@pproximately 50% lower) than If performance related
share awards were to be granted. As a result, Executive Share
Option awards will no longer be granted to participants below
Board level.
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Our savings based option schemes (for UK and US employees)
will operate on the same basis as in prior years. The only
amendments to be made to these plans will be updates to
reflect the efficient operation of the schemes in each location
{e.g. any necessary updates te reflect changes in local
legislation, tax rules or securities laws). Elementis remains
committed to providing the cpportunity for UK and US
employees to become owners in our Company.

A summary of the principal features of all schemes being
presented for shareholder approval at the AGM is included
In separate Circular and Notice of Meeting being sent to
all sharehoiders.

APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2018
As detalled above, the current remuneration policy and its
application is considered to be working effectively and so na
material changes to the current application of policy will take
place in 2018. The key points to note Include:

Salary review: in line with the average increases awarded to
the salaned workforce in the US and the UK, the salaries of the
CEO and CFO were increased by 3%, $25,440 and £10,025
respectively, with effect from 1 January 2018,

2018 annual bonus: the same bonus metrics as operated in
2017 are being retained with 70% of the bonus earned against
a challenging range of financial targets (50% on adjusted Group
profit before tax and 20% on AWC on total operations} and 30%
based on the delivery of specific and measurable objectives
that are related 1o the Company's strategic prionties. Summary
details of our approach o target seiting are detailed on

page 62 and full details of the financial target ranges and our
performance against them will be disclosed on a retrospective
basis In next year's report. Details of the strategic targets and
performance against them will also be disclosed retrospectively
subject to commercial sensitivities.

In ine with best practice, the Committee has discretion to
modify the overall amount of bonus payable in exceptional
circumstances and acting in the best interests of the Company.
The actual cntena and weighting will be reviewed annually to
ensure they remain appropriate.

2018 LTIP awards: will be granted subject to the same EPS
and TSR perfermance conditions (split 50:50) as operated in
2017. The range of EPS growtn targets will be average annual
EPS growth of 3% to 10% p.a. for vesting (growth measured
from the 2017 EPS result) with TSR based on our performance
against the conshtuents of the FTSE All Share index (excluding
investment trusts). EPS 1s defined as being the fully diluted EPS
after adjusting items on total operations (continuing and
discontinued) Further detalls of the targets including rationale
for setting the targets are set out on page 62.

Non-Executive Directors’ fees: the Committee, following

a recommendation by the Board, approved a policy in 2016 to
increase the Chairman's fee and the Non-Executive Directors’
hasic and any additional role fees annually by the same
percentage increase as the average UK salaned workforce for
the year being reported. Therefore, the increase for 2018 will be
3% which was the average rate of iIncrease for the UK salaried
workforce in 2017.




REMUNERATION ADVISERS

During the year under review, we carmned out a tender process
for the role of external adviser to the Committee. It was decided
that New Bridge Street, who had been appointed to the role
after a tender 1n 2008 (and again in 2013), would not be invited
to participate owing to therr length of tenure. Following a
competitive tender process, the Committee appeainted Korn
Ferry as its external advisers with effect from 27 April 2017
with their first act being to suppert the Committee in the review
of remuneration policy detaled above. This exercise was
undertaken in conjunction with a management review

of below Board level incentives.

VARIABLE REMUNERATION OUTCOME FOR 2017
Annual bonus plan

Elementis delivered a strong perfoermance in 2017, recording
growth in profit before tax across all of our business segments
at the same time as improving warking capital management.
Underpinning a successful 2017 was our progress in
implementing our Reignite Growth strategy. In summary,
adjusted Group profit before tax™ grew by 24.5% cn the 2016
result, the average trade working capital to sales ratio improved
from 22.1% to 18.8% and very good outcomes were achieved
against the range of strategic targets set in line with a
successful execution of the Reignite Growth strategy.
Accordingly, bonuses were payable at 93% and 94% of the
maximum for the CEC and CFO respectively. Further details
of the targets set for 2017 are disclosed in this year's Annual
report on remuneration on pages 70 to 71.

LTIP
The 2015 LTIP awards would narmally vest in early 2018 based
on perfarmance over the 3 years ended 31 December 2017.

The Company generated total shareholder returns over the
pencd of 23.9% compared to 30.5% for the median performing
company In the FTSE All-Share Index (excluding investment
trusts) and, therefore, this portion of the award will lapse.
Refiecting a combination of the challenging economic
environment and the robust nature of the targets set, the
threshold EPS targets were not met and this portien of the
award will also lapse. As a result, none of the 2015 LTIP awards
will vest.

As the current Executive Directors were notin post when the 2015
LTIP awards were granted, they are noi affected by this result,

The Committee believes that the overall incentive out<turns
detailed above are justified based on the Company's
performance over the period and demonstrates that the
Committee has, and will continue to, set performance targets
under both the short and long term incentives which it considers
to be meaningful and appropriately stretching,

Underlying Group PBT, adiusted for specific exceplional items s used for
determining bonus putcomes
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SUMMARY

The Committee has considered at length the structure

and operation of the iIncentive plans, as well as target setting,
and believe these to be challenging and approprate

The Committee remains committed to maintaining appropnate
and testing targets for the calculation of performance related
pay. The shareholders that we consulted were supportive of the
proposals and the final proposed policy refiects the feedback
we recenved

The Committee believes that the policy and our approach to
implementation in 2018 are in the best interests of shareholders
and we hope that you will support the actions the Committee
has taken by voting accordingly at the 2018 AGM.

This Directars’ remuneration report for 2017 was prepared
by the Committee and has been approved by the Board.

STEVE GOOD
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
27 February 2018
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DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

Remuneration policy report

EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s existing Remuneration pelicy was approved by shareholders at the Company’s 2015 AGM and took effect from the
date of that meeting. The new policy set out below will be proposed to shareholders for adoption at the 2018 AGM on 26 April 2018,
If approved it will apply immediately and will replace the policy approved in 2015,

As detailed in the Charman's annual statement on remuneration, since the remuneration pelicy approved by shareholders at our
2015 AGM 1s considered to be working effectively, the current policy 1s being renewed on broadly the same terms. However, to
enable the Committee to take account of the progress we are making against our Reignite Growth stralegy, additional flexibility

i5 being included in our policy renewal in a small number of areas. These are explained in the Chairman’s annual statement ang
include’ (i) the ability to introduce strategic targets mto future long term incentive awards and (i} the ability to grant awards to
Executive Directors under the LTIP at up to 250% of salary. Other changes include (i} reducing the notice periods for Non-Executive
Directors (other than the Chairman) from 6 months to 30 days (with the ability to set notice periods of up to 3 months to be retained
within policy) and reducing the maximum Company pension contribution for new joiners to 25% of salary (from 30% of salary).

POLICY TABLE
The information in the table below sets out the remuneration palicy for the different elements that make up total remuneration
applying to Directors.

Basic salary

Purpose and link to Targeted at a level to attract and retain world class executives whe are essential to drive the business
Compahy’s strategy forward and deliver the Company's strategic goals.

How it operates in practice  Annual salary increases that are broadly in line with the local workforce (in percentage of salary
terms), subject to Committee approval

Increases beyond the average of those granted to the local workforce (in percentage of salary terms)
may be awarded In certain circumstances, such as where there 1s a material change in responsibility
or experience of the individual, to recognise exceptional performance over a sustained penod or a
significant increase N the complexity, size or value of the Company.

Where new joiners or recent promotions have been placed on a below market rate of pay initially,
a sernes of Increases above those granted 1o the local workforce (in percentage of salary terms) may
be given over the following few years subject to individual performance and development in the role.

Salaries are normally reviewed in December and any changes are effective from 1 January in the
following year.

Maximum potential value There is no prescribed maximum for salary increases The Committee will be guided by the general
increase for the local werkforce and/or broader workforce as a whole, as well as the circumstances
listed above.

Salanes for 2018
CEQ $873,540
CF0O £344,450

Benefits

Purpose and link to To aid retention and to remain competitive In the marketplace.
mpany's strate:

Company W Healthcare benefits in order to minimise business disruption.

Executive Directors may also participate along with other emplayees in the Group's HMRC appraved

SAYE or olher equivalent savings based share schemes to share in the success of the Group.

How it operates in practice  Life assurance and private medical health insurance are provided.
Provision of either a company car (for business and personal purposes) or a car allowance.

Payments In connection with an international assignment and payments in connection with a
relocation, which would typically be paid for a transitionary period only, tailored to the location of
each executive. The benefits may include provision of tax advice where, at the Company’s request,
the international location {or balance of time spent In different locations} 1s changed.

Participation in all employee/savings based share option schemes as above.

in aadtion, benetits in the US, where 1t 1s standard, include cover for dental costs, accidental death
and disablement, long term disability and club membership.

Maximum potential value SAYE/savings based schemes are subject to individual imits, These are $2,000 per month in the US
and in the UK up to the HMRC prescribed limit (£500 per menth).

Other benefils: the Committee will determine the level of benefit as it considers appropriate,
taking into consideration local market practice
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Annual bonus scheme

Purpose and link to
Company's strategy

To incentivise the senior management team to exceed the annual operating plan approved
by the Board at the start of each financial year.

To ensure that a significant proportion of an executive’s total remuneration 1s based on corporate/
business financial performance that I1s inked to the Company's annual cperating plan.

Through the part deferral of bonuses into deferred shares this enables incentive pay to help
executives bulld and maintain meaningful shareholdings and thereby providing a long term focus,

How it operates in practice

An annual bonus 1s based on over performance against selected performance measures which
are linked to the Company's key performance indicators, or the achievement of strateqic and/or
operational objectives.

Bonus payments are paid following the approval of full year results. Payments are based on salares
at the ime of payment.

Bonus deferral element: 50% of any cash bonus payable must be awarded in shares and deferred

far 2 years. Dividends accrue on deferred shares {which are normally structured as nil cost options or
conditicnal share awards) that vest during the vesting period. Deferred shares are forfeitable for gross
misconduct (dismissal for cause).

The Committee may seek recovery and/or withholding of bonuses paid that are tater found to have
been based on performance that was mis-stated or incorrectly calculated, or where the amount of
any bonus may have been reduced or withheld due to reasons of gross misconduct. Recovery and
withholding provisions will apply for a period of 3 years following payment of any bonus, Detailed
provisions are incorporated into the rules of the various schemes which govern the terms of a bonus
payment and/or the making of any deferred share or conditional award.

Maximum potential value

CEO: 150% of basic salary.
CFO 125% of basic salary.

A higher annual bonus imit of 200% of basic salary may apply for new recruis.

Framework used to assess
performance

Performance measures will be mainly financial measures. The Committee reserves the right to select
other nen-financial targets (including the basis of theirr measurement) as appropnate considering the
Company's strategic objectives for the year ahead.

The financial element of the bonus may include {but is not limited to} the Company's key performance
indicators which nclude:

Prefit before tax or other measures of profitability.

Group average trade working capital to sales ratio expressed as a percentage (AWC') or other cash
flow indicators.

For any profit related metnic, targets will be set at threshold, plan and stretch levels and the amount
payable for threshold performance 1s 0% for financial targets nsing on a graduated basis through
to 100% becoming payable at the stretch performance level. With regards to non-financial targets,
it is not always practicable to set targets on a sliding scale and so targets may be set based on the
achievement of specific milestones and/or on a graduated scale.

The Cammittee will consider the bonus ocutcome each year based on the Company's performance
against the measures set at the start of the year. If it considers the quantum te be inconsistent with
the Company's overall performance during the year it can override the result of the performance test
For the avoidance of doubl this can be to zero and bonuses may not exceed the maximum levels
detaled above. Any use of such discretion would be detalled in the Annual report on remuneration.

The Committee keeps performance metrics under review on an annual basis to ensure they continue
to remain appropriate and has the discretion 1o mtroduce new metncs or remove existing ones and
amend therr relative weightings. As a result, the performance metrics and weightings may vary in line
with the Company’s evelving strategy during the life of the policy. The profit relatec element of annual
bonus shall not be less than 50% of the overall bonus cpportunity.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Long term incentives

Purpose and link to
Company's strategy

The LTIP is the sole long term incentive mechanism for Executive Directors and is intended to align
the interests of the executives and shareholders in growing the value of the Group over the long term.

When granting awards under the LTIP the Committee generally takes into consideration the need to
motivate and retain the Executive Directors and other participants.

How 1t operates In practice

Awards are normally structured as either nil cost eptions or conditional share awards which are eligible
1o be granted annually. Options may be exercisable 3 years from, and within 10 years of, the date of
award. Share awards normally vest on the third anniversary of the date of award.

A post-vesting holding penod of 2 years will apply to annual awards.

Recovery and withholding provisions similar to those described in respect of annual bonus payments
but relating to the vesting of LTIF awards will apply to awards.

Dividends may accrue on shares that vest dunng the vesting period {and during the post-vesting
holding period where awards are structured as nil-cost options) and may be paid in cash or shares

Maximum potential value

The maximum award limitis set at 250% of basic salary.

Current practice 1s as follows-
— CEQ 200% of basic salary
— CFQO: 175% of basic salary

Framework used to assess
performance

Awards are subject to achievement of financlal (e.g. EPS) and/cr relative TSR performance conditions,
measured over a minimum of 3 financial years beginning with the financial year in which the award 1s
made. The Committee also retains flexibibty to introduce strategic targets as a performance measure
for a minority of an award.

For any financial performance condition, threshold vesting will start from 0% and this will increase
on a graduated basis with 100% vesting for achieving the stretch targets.

TSR will be measured against the constituents of a broad equity index, or a bespoke group of
appropriate comparator companies. For any relative TSR performance condition, threshold vesting
will start at 3.85% and this will also increase on a graduated basis with 100% vesting for achieving
the stretch targets, which for the TSR performance condition will reguire at least upper quartile
performance.

In relation to strategic targets, the structure of the target will vary based on the nature of target set
(r.e. 1t will not always be practicable 1o strategic targets using a graduated scate and so vesting may
take place in full if specific critenia are met in full).

The metrnics and their weighting and targets within the LTIP will be reviewed each year,

The Commuttee will consider the LTIP vesting outcaomes for awards granted from 2018 based on
applying the performance conditions and if it considers the level of vesting to be inconsistent with
the Company's overall performance during the performance penod (including its underlying financial
performance) it can override the result of the performance test. For the avoidance of doubt this can
be to zero. Any use of such discretion would be detailed 1 the Annual report on remuneration.
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Pension

Purpese and link to
Company's strategy

To aid retention and remain competitive in the marketplace.

To provide appropnate retirement benefits commensurate with local market practice, seniority of the
role and tenure with the Company.

How it operates In practice

Policy for the CFQ and new recruits is a contribution to a non-Company pension scheme and/or cash
in lieu.

The policy for the CEO 1s set out below.

CEO
An annual salary supplement of 20% of basic salary and, for US emplayees, participation in 2 defined
contnibution schemes being

i1y a US 401{k) Plan, where employee contributions are from pre-tax earnings which 1s capped at 8%
up to a maximum of $270,000 (the compensation limit set by the US Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
for 2017),

(i} a Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Pian (together, the ‘Defined Contribution plans’). This plan
mirrors the 401{k} Plan except employee contributions are n respect of pensicnable remuneration
over the mit set by the IRS.

The employer match under these 2 plans includes a regular match of up to 4% of total pensionable
remuneration and a supplemental match of up to 4%, based on age and length of service,

Maxmum potential value

The policy for new executives 1s to Imit Company pension contributions to the rates currently provided
to comparable roles in the organisation and, in all cases, to a maximum of 25% of salary.

Lnder the policy the maximum for the CEOQ 1s 20% of his salary and up to 8% of pensionable remuneration
depending on the amount of personal centributions made into the Defined Contnbution plans

The maximum for the CFO is an annual salary supplement of 25% of his basic salary.

Share ownership guidelines

Purpose and iink 1o
Company's strategy

To align an executive’s interests with those of shareholders and to encourage executives to participate
and share (n the long term success of the Group.

How It operates In practice

Executive Directors are expected to buld up a shareholding in the Cempany that 1s equal In value
to 200% of their basic annual salaries.

Shares vesting from share awards, or transferred pursuant to an exercise of any option, granted under
any share incentive or employee share saving scheme may not be sold {other than to meet a tax
hability) until the above shareholding level has been met. In exceptional circumstances the Committee
may allow the Director to sell some, or all, shares receved from a share incentive scheme even if the
individual has not met the share ownership guidelines, provided they are satisfied that shareholder
nterests are adequately aligned.

The Committee monitors compliance with these guidehnes and can make changes te them from tme
to ime.

Non-Executive Chairman and Directors’ fees

Purpose and link t¢
Company's strategy

To attract individuals with the relevant skills, knowledge and experience that the Board considers
necessary In order 1o mantan an optimal mix that ensures the effectveness of the Board as a whole
1 carrying out its dutres and responsibilities.

How It operates in practice

Non-Executive Directors' fees are determined by the Chairman and the Executive Directors, having
regard 1o fees paid to Non-Executive Directors in other UK guoted companies and the time
commitment and responsibilities of the role

In the case of the Chairman, the fee level i1s determined by the Committee. As well as taking into
consideration the above factors, the Committee sets the fee al an appropriate level necessary 1o
attract a role holder qualfied to effectively lead the board of a company of 2 similar size and prestige
as Flementis

Fees are payable in cash and Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any pension,
bonus or share incentive schemes.

All Non-Executive Cirectors are reimbursed for iravel and related business expenses reasanably
incurred in performing ther duties so that they are fully recompensed on a pre-tax basis for
undertaking Company business.

No individual 1s allowed to vote on his/her own remuneration.

Maximum opportunity

Fees will be reviewed annually with changes taking effect from 1 January in the following year.

It 1s the Company’s policy (other than where there 1s a step change in the time commitment required
of the Non-Executives Directors) that fees paid 1o the Charman and other Non-Executive Direclors
are Increased annually in ine with the average increase awarded 1o the UK salaned workforce.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

LINK BETWEEN POLICY, STRATEGY AND STRUCTURE

The remuneration policy 1s principally designed to attract, motivate and retain the Executive Directors and other members of

the Executive Leadership team (senior management team) to execute the Company's corporate and business strategies in order
to deliver the annual operating plan and sustainable year on year profitable growth, as well as to generate and preserve value for
shareholgers over the longer term, without encouraging excessive levels of nsk taking The principles and values that underpin
the remuneration strategy are applied on a consisternt basis for all Group employees.

The remuneration structure for Executive Directors 1s made up of 2 elements: fixed remuneration (consisting of basic salary, benefits
including for example non-contnbutory health insurance and life assurance and pension provision), and vanable remuneration
{annual bonus scheme and long term share incentives).

It is Company policy to reward all employees farrly, responsibly and by reference to local market practices, by providing an
appropriate balance between fixed and vanable remuneration.

CHOICE OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND APPRCACH TO TARGET SETTING
The performance metncs that are used for annual bonus and long term incentive plans are drawn from a suite of Company KPls
monitored by the Board that are closely linked to the financial KPls on pages 14 to 15

In the annual bonus scheme, the financial measures currently used are adjusted Group profit before tax and AWC. Adjusted Group
profit before tax is a clear measure of the Company’s trading performance and AWC encourages the most efficient use of warking
capital and is haw earnings are converted into cash. These metncs are aligned with the Company’s objectives and strategy.

In addition, non-financial criteria also form part of the targets set in the bonus scheme and these are based on Company specific
business objectives, such as the achievement of specific strategic or operational goals including metrics that take account of
business or corporate performance in environmental, sccial and governance areas and typically incorporate specific HSE related
targets or objectives.

With regard to long term performance targets, EPS is currently used since it 1s aligned with the Company's strategy of delivering
profitable growth and creating long term shareholder returns, Use of relative TSR also furiher aligns shareholders and executives.

Targets for financial metncs are set relative to internal planning expectations after having regard to general economic conditions,
external market data, current and past performance of the business and any organic or acquisitive growth plans.

Where appropnate, targets are set based on shding scales. Only very modest rewards are available for delivering performance
at threshold levels or above with maximum rewards requinng outperformance of our challenging plans approved at the start
of each year.

The Committee keeps the choice of metrics and targets under review for the both the annual and long term incentive plans each
year to ensure they are appropriate in Iight of the Company’s current circumstances. The Committee retains discretion to revise
the choice of metric and weightings within the incentives as detailed above. Should the Committee make material changes to the
application of remuneration palicy from the approach detailed on pages 59 to 60 for 2018 (e.g. introduce a sirategic target into

a future long term incentive award), appropnate consultation with the Company’s major shareholders would take place.

DIFFERENCES IN EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION POLICY COMPARED TO OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Committee 1s informed of pay structures across the wider Group when setting the remuneration policy for Executive Directors,
The Commitiee considers the general basic salary increase for the broader Group and, in particular the employees based in the US,
UK and Europe, when determining salary increases for the Executive Directors.

The same principles and values behind the design of remuneration for the Executive Directors apply to other members of the
Executive Leadership team and employees throughout the rest of the Group, with modifications to reflect local market practice
(see below n relation to the introduction of restricted shares telow the Board level) and the level of seniority and ability to influence
Group performance. Overall, the remuneration policy for Executive Directors 1s more heavily weighted towards vanable pay than for
other employees. This ensures that there is a clear link between the value created for shareholders and the remuneration recerved
by the Executive Directors given it is the Executive Directors who are considered to have the greatest potential to influence
shareholder value creation,

The level of variable pay varies by level of employee within the Group and 1s informed by the specific responsibilities of each role
and local market practice as appropriate.

One change that is to be made below the Board level In 2018 1s to introduce the ability to grant restncted shares into the new LTIP.
The majority of the senior executive population at Elementis 1s based in the US where it 1s common market practice to grant restricted
shares. It is considered that the ability to grant restricted shares in tandem with performance related share awards enables the
Company to compete for the best talent. Where restricted shares are used, the award levels will be lower than If performance shares
were granted since restricted share awards are more valuable to a recipient given there 1s no performance requirement attached to
the vesting of the award. Restricted shares will not be granted te Executive Directors.
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HOW THE VIEWS OF EMPLOYEES ARE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT

Currently, the Group does not actively consult with employees on executive remuneration. The Group has a diverse workforce
operating In 10 different countries, with vanous local pay practices, which would make any cost effective consultation impractical.
However, as noted abave, when setting the remuneration palicy for Executive Directors, the Committee takes into account the pay
and employment conditions for cther employees in the Group. This process ensures that any annual increase to the basic pay of
Executive Directors is not out of proportion with that proposed for other employees.

The Committee has considered both the UK Government's proposals on strengthening the voice of stakeholders in companies
{in particular the employee voice) and the subsequent December 2017 Financial Reporting Council Consultation on the 2018
UK Corparate Governance Code. As a result, and pending finalisation of the 2018 UK Corpoerate Governance Code in 2018,
the Committee will consider the most appropriate stakeholder engagement model for implementation at Elementis,

COMMITTEE DISCRETION WITH REGARD TO INCENTIVE PLANS

The Committee will operate the annual bonus plan, deferred share bonus plan, LTIP and all employee plans according to their
respective rules and In accordance with the Financial Conduct Authonty's Listing Rules {Listing Rules} and HMRC rules where
relevant. The Committee retains discretion, consistent with market practice, in a number of regards to the operation and
administration of these plans. These include the following (plan imits and performance targets restricled to the descriptions
detalled in the preceding policy 1able):

— Whe participates in the plans

— The timing of grant of award and/or payment

— The size of an award and/or payment

- The determination of vesting

- Dealing with a change of control {e.g. the tming of testing performance targets) or restructunng

- Determination of a good/bad leaver for ncentive plan purposes based on the rules of each plan and the appropriate treatment chosen
- Adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g. rights 1ssues, corporate restructuring and special dividends}

- The annual review of performance conditions, including metrics and weightings, for the annual bonus plan and LTIP

The Commuttee also retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different measures and alter weightings for the annual bonus
plan and to adjust targets for the LTIP if events occur (e.g. matenat divestment of a Group business) which cause it to determne that
the conditions are no longer appropriate and the amendment (s required so that the conditions achieve therr onginal purpose and
are not matenally less difficult 1o satisfy. The Committee is introducing discretion to averride incentive pay outcomes in the event that
payouts are not considered reflective of overall Company performance having applied the performance conditions for the annual
bonus and LTIP

CEO CFO
£000 £1000
3500 £3,760k Fixed 1750 Fixed
42% —Annual bonus £1,489k Annual bonus

3,000 e 1,500 40% mE
2,500 - 1,250 -

) 5";2;0“ _ _ £972K _
7,000 1,000 g

} 3% _ 32% 29%

1500 24% 750 . 2%
1.000 100% 43% 27% 500 100% 7% %
500 - - - 250 - - _
0 Fxed  Ontarget Maximum. ¢ “Fxed  Onfarget  Mammum

CEO AND CFO REWARDS SCENARIO ANALYSIS
The bar charts above illustrate the potential pay opportunities for Executive Directers under 3 different scenarics for 2018,
The CEOQ's remuneration has been converted into pounds sterling using the average exchange rate for 2017 ($1.2858:£1.00).

— Fixed. comprnises fixed pay being the value of salary, benefits and pension (the employer's matching contributions to defined
contnbution plans are included at the estimated level of 4.5% of salary)

— On target. the amount receivable assumes performance in which 50% of annual bonus 1s payable and 0% of LTIP awards vest.

— Maximum: the maximum amount recervabte should all stretch targets be met and vesting under both the annual bonus scheme
and LTIP s 100%.

When valuing the LTIP awards under the 'On target’ and ‘Maximum’ scenarios, these are based on face value as a percentage
of salary. The LTIPs aiso relate to awards to be made in 2018 rather than any awards vesting 1in 2018, LTIPs exclude buyout awards
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DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

RECRUITMENT POLICY

For Executive Director recruitment and/or promotion situations, the Committee will follow the policy cuthined below

Element

Policy

Basic salary

Basic salary levels will be set in accordance with the Company's remuneration policy, taking into
account the experience and calbre of the indwidual (e.g. typically around market rates prevalent

in companies of comparable size and complexity) or salary levels may be set below this level

{e.g If the ndividual was promoted to the Board). Where 1t 1s appropriate to offer a below market rate
of pay inttially, a senes of increases to the desired salary positioning may be given over the following
few years subject to individual performance and development in the rale,

Benefits

New Directors may be entitled to benefits such as life assurance, private medical health insurance,
cover for dental costs, accidental death and disablement, Iong term disability and provision of either
a company car {for business and personal purposes; or a car allowance, club membership or any
other appropriate benefit as the Committee reasonably determines.

Where necessary the Committee may approve the payment of reasonable relocation expenses
to facthtate recrultment for a maximum period of 12 months.

Pension

A Company contribution into a pension plan and/or cash supplement of up to a maximum hmit of 25%
of salary.

Legacy pension arrangements for promotees which may include defined benefit or US style
arrangements may continue to operate on their existing terms.

Annual bonus

The annual bonus would operate as outhned for current Executive Directors but where necessary
ta aid recruitment the maximum bonus opportunity 1s 200% of basic salary for the Iife of this policy.
Bonus will be pro-rated for the proportion of the year served. Depending on the timing and
responsibilities of the appointment it may be necessary to set different performance measures and
targets initially.

Long term incentives

Awards under the LTIP will be granted it line with the palicy cuthined for the current Executive Direclors
on an annual basis but where necessary to aid recruitment the maximum award 1s 250% of basic
salary for the hfe of this policy.

An award may be made shortly after an appointment (subject to the Company not being i a
prohibited penod). For an internal hire, existing awards would continue over theyr original vesting
period and remain subject to therr terms as at the date of grant. In addition, if the grant of awards
for that Individual precedes his or her appointment as a Board Director for that financial year, the
Committee’s policy would include flexibility to top up awards for that year (subject to the overall
individual salary hmit) based on the executive's new salary.

Buyout awards

In the case of an external hire, If it Is necessary to buy out incentive pay or benefit arrangements
{which would be forfeited on leaving the previous employer}, this would be provided for taking into
account the form (cash cr shares), timing and expected value {1.e. ikelihood of meeting any existing
performance criteria) of the remuneration being forfeiled.

Replacement share awards may be granted using the Company's LTIP (up to the individual iimit}
or outside of the LTIP if necessary and as permitted under the Listing Rules

Interim appointments

Where a Director is appointed on an inferim basis (e.q. 1o cover a role untit a permanent successor
1s appointed), the Company may pay additiona! remuneration to an individual in line with the policy
for the role.

OUTSIDE BOARD APPOINTMENTS

The Company’s policy 1s to support executives should he/she wish to take on an external board appointment, provided that there
15 no conflict of iInterest and the role does not Interfere with the executive's commitment or duties. If an executive does take on an
external appaintment they may retain any fees paid and will be restricted generally to anly one such external appointment.

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES
Executive Directors are expected to bulld up a shareholding in the Company that 1s egqual in value to 200% of their basic annual

salaries.

Shares vesting from share awards, or transferred pursuant to an exercise of any option, granted under any share incentive or
employee share saving scheme may not be sold {other than te meet a tax liability) until the above sharehoiding level has been met.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS
Executive Directors' service contracts contain a terminaticn notice pencd not exceeding 12 months,

Name Date of centract” Notice period
Paul Waterman, CEC 6 November 2015 12 months
Ralph Hewins, CFO 27 June 2016 12 months

*  The date of the service contract1s not the same as the date of appeintment which far Paul Waterman was 8 February 2016 and Ralph Mewins 12 September 2018

Coptes of the Executive Direclors’ service contracts are available for inspection at the Company's registered office dunng normal
business hours and will be avarlable for iInspechcn at the AGM.

POLICY ON PAYMENT FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

Termination payments

The maximum amount payable under both the CEO's and CFO's contract 1s basic salary, benefits and pension for 12 months while
each serves his notice penod.

For the Executive Directors, the terms covenng lermination were agreed at the date their contracts were made and both are required
to mitigate therr loss in the event of loss of office by making efforts o secure a new position.

The Company may pay compensation in heu of the notice perod of basic salary only, to be paid in monthly instalments (pro-rated
for the actual nolice period). This would apply if the Company terminates hisfher contract for any reason other than for cause,
or If hefshe serves notice to terminate his contract in 12 months’ ime.

Payments in lieu of notice to both the CEQ and CFO may be reduced or ceased if either secures a new position. In both cases,
the payments will only be ceased If the salary in a new position 1s equal to or more than the salary on termination, if not the monthly
payments will be reduced by the gross salary earned by the CEO or CFO in his new position each month,

The above summary only addresses contractual nghts to payments In lieu of notice, or during the relevant Director’s notice period,
and may not reflect any settlement or compremise sums which are separately agreed at the point of termination.

Treatment of incentive plans

Annual bonus plan

If an Executive Director resigns and serves his/her notice period, the Committee retains discrebion o make a pro-rata payment
based on performance. The same applies in certain circumstances such as f the individual’'s employment is terminated on the
grounds of Ill health or disability. No bonus is payable for termination for cause.

In line wath the Company's policy, rules of the annual benus scheme incorporate a requirement to defer half of the amount of
bonus vesting for 2 years in the form of share awards under the deferred share bonus plan. In certain ‘good leaver’ circumstances
(e.g. Il health, death), the Committes, acting fairly and reasonably, may waive deferral.

Deferred share bonus plan
If an Executive Director's employment 1s terminated before a deferred share award vests (after 2 years}, then the awards would vest
in full on the date of leaving unless termination is for cause in which case the awards would lapse.

LTIP

As with the annual bonus plan, the Company’s current (and proposed) LTIP also includes a number of discretions in connection with
an Executive Director leaving employment, Other than in certain defined ‘good leaver’ circumstances, awards lapse on cessation
of employment. Where an individual ceases employment for one of the defined 'good leaver’ events (L.e. Ill health, disability,
redundancy within the meaning of UK legislation or its overseas equivalent, transfer out of the Group/sale of business or retirement
with employer's consent and, In the case of the new LTIP, any other reason at the discretion of the Committee), the award will remain
eligible 1o vest on its normal vesting date (unless the Commitiee uses its discretion to vest the award on the date of cessation of
employment} in all cases subject to a pro-rata reduction to reflect the porticn of the vesting penod that has elapsed (unless the
Committee determines otherwise) and the apphcation of the performance condition. In the event of a death of an Executive Director
the default 1s for the award to vest at the date of death unless the Commitiee determines otherwise In which case it will vest at the
normal vesting date with pro-rating and performance conditians applied as described in other ‘good leaver’ circumstances.

Similar provisions apply in the event of a change of control, with performance measured up to the dale of the relevant event,
and a pro-rata reduction applymng unless the Committee determines atherwise.

Itis the Committee’s policy to exercise these discreticns In a way that would be in the best interests of the Company and depending
on the individual circumstances of each case.

PAYMENTS AGREED PRICR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS POLICY

Any agreements entered in good faith prior to the commencement of the 2018 remuneration policy wili remain elgible 1o operate
on their anginal terms.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a 3 year term, subject to annual re-election by shareholders. For Non-Executive Directors
who have served for 9 years or more, they may be appointed for a further year al a time. Each letter of appointment currently
provides that the Director's appointment can be terminated by the Company on 6 months’ notice on any grounds without claim for
compensation. Following the 2018 AGM, the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors will be amended to 30 days’
notice by either party, which 1s the application of the new remuneration policy where a hmit of up to 3 months 1s permitted. All other
terms will remain the same. The Chairman’s letter of appointment will remain with a € months’ notice penod.

Non-Executive Direclors are not eligible to participate in any pension, bonus or share incentive schemes No indwidual is allowed
o vote pn his/her own remuneration.

The table below provides further details of the letters of appointment that the Non-Executive Directors held with the Company
dunng 2017.

Date of Date of last

Name appointment re-appointment Date of expiry
Non-Executive Directors

A Duff 04/04/14 01/04117 01/04/20
S Boss 01/02/17 N/A 01/02/20
D Deunng 0170317 N/A 01/03/20
S Good 20/10/14 2010717 20/10/20
A Hyland 01/06/13 01/06/16 01/06/20
N Salmon 20/10/14 2010117 20/10/20
Former Non-Executive Directors

A Christel 11/08/08 11/08/14 N/A

1 Andrew Chnstie stepped down as a Non-Executive Director following the conclusion of last year's AGM an 25 Apnil 2017,

Copies of all letiers of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office during
normal business hours and will be availlable for inspection at the AGM.

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The views of shareholders are important to the Committee. Regular dialogue and engagement with the Company's shareholders
are encouraged. Consultation with major shareholders (representing maore than 40% of the share regisier) and shareholder
representative bodies was sought before proposing this remuneration policy.
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Annual report on remuneration

This Arnual report an remuneration shows how the Company’s policies and practices on Directors’ remuneration will be applied in
2018 and how they were applied In relation to payments in respect of the financial year ended 2017. This repart and the Chairman's
annual statement on remuneration will be put to an advisery shareholder vote at the 2018 AGM.

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2018
This first section of the Annual report on remuneration describes how the Committee intends to implement the remuneration policy
for the financial year ending 31 December 2018.

Basic salaries

The Committee considered carefully salary increases for 2018 and decided to award Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins each a
salary increase as shown in the table below, which 1s consistent with the average ncrease last year for the respective US and UK
salaried workforce.

Salary as at Salary as at
1 January 2018 1 January 2017 Increase
Paul Waterman $873,540 $848,100 3%
Ralph Hewins £344,450 £334,425 3%

Pension and benefits
For the yearto 31 December 2018, Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins will receive the benefits set out in the Remuneration policy report

Annual bonus
The maximum bonus opportunity wil be 150% of basic salary for Paul Waterman and 125% of basic satary for Ralph Hewins.

Any bonus will be payable dependent on the achievement of financial and non-financial performance targets split 70:30. Of the
financial elements these will have the following weights. adjusted Group profit before tax 50% and AWC 20% (relative to total bonus
opportunity) Adjusted Group profit before tax 1s defined as the Group profit before tax on total operations (continuing and
discontinued) after ad)usting items, excluding adjusting items relating to tax. AWC is the 12 month average working capital to sales
ratio expressed as a percentage. For both the adjusted Group profit before tax and AWC conditions, targets wili be set on a sliding
scale with the threshold, plan and stretch targets set at levels considered to be sufficiently challenging and bonus accrual at these
levels under both conditions are 0%, 50% and 100%, respectively, and linear in between.

For Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins, the non-financial performance targets have been set which are specific, measurable and
objective and are inked to the achievement of Company specific objectives that are based on the Company's strategic pnenties
outlined on pages 4 to 11 n the Strategic report. These include targets for (i) safety, comphance and risk management, {i} supply
chan transformation, (13 culture and (1v) specific strategic targets.

Each of the performance elements (adjusted Group profit before tax, AWC and non-financial objectives) Is separate and capable
of paying out independently. Bonus cutcomes will only be approved subject to the Committee confirming that it considers the level
of payment 1o be consistent with the Company’s overall performance during the year. The Committee may modify the proposed
payment where this 1s not the case. Relevant disclosures relating to the factors considered by the Committee will be included

in next year's Annual report on remuneration.

The Commitiee considers that the bonus targets are commercially sensitive and therefore plans to disclose them only on a retrospective
basis in next year's Directors' remuneration repaort.

Bonus payments are based on salaries at the time of payment.

All employee share plans
Executive Directors will be entitled to participate in any all employee share plans on the same terms as any other eligible employee.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

LTIP
For the year to 31 December 2018, the CECQ's and the CFQO's awards will be 200% and 175%, respectively, of their basic salaries.

The performance targets that are intended to apply to the awards to be granted in the current year are the same as for 2017 in
respect of both the EPS and TSR conditions, which are capable of paying out independently. However, 2018 awards will be subject
ta the addiional requirement that the Committee wilt only confirm the vesting result based on the EPS and TSR conditions if it
considers the total level of vesting to be consistent with the Company's overall performance dunng the 3 year performance period.
Relevant disclosures relating to the factors considered by the Committee will be included in relevant Annual report on remuneration.

For the EPS cendition, the chart befow shows that awards will vest on a inear scale from 0% to 100% for average annual EPS
growth of 3% to 10%, respectively (2017. 3% to 10%). The range of targets 1s considered to be appropriately demanding noting

() that vesting takes place from 0% (as opposed to the market norm of 25%), (i) the uncertain and challenging macroeconomic
environment and (i) the baseline 2017 EPS result benefited from a significant but unsustainable profit contnbution from the
Surfactants business, now held for sale. The potential iImpact of future exchange rate volatity, diffenng forecast growth rates n

our key markets and the cyclicalty within our business segments necessitates a broad target range that is considered demanding
at the top end of the range but potentiaily achievable at the lower end but with modest vesting potential. As a result of these factors,
the Committee was comfartable that the target range 1s appropnately demanding.

Vesting schedule EPS performance condition Vesting schedule TSR performance condition
Percentage of award subject to EPS performance vesting Percentage of award subject to TSR performance vesting
160 100% vesting 100 100% vesting
above 18% pa at Upper quartile

80 80 of better

60 60

20 40

20 Nowvesting 20 No vesting 3.85% vesting

below 3% p.a below Median 2t Median

[ 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10% 11% 12% [¥] Median Upper gquartile
Elementis’ position relative to the FTSE All Share Index

Average EPS growth (% pa} {excluding nvestment trusts)

For the TSR condition, the chart shows that awards will vest on a linear scale from 3.85% to 100% for median to upper quartile
performance, respectively The TSR condition will be measured against the companies comprising the FTSE All Share index
(excluding investment trusts). The TSR peer group was reviewed as part of the Committee’s policy review with the Committee
concluding that the continued use of the FTSE All Share Index was appropniate given Elementis sits towards the middie of the index
in terms of size and the broad range of sectors included In the peer group ensures that the potential for external events to result in
extreme vesting results is mmimised. The Committee also considered the introduction of a bespoke peer group but cencluded that
there was an insufficient number of direct comparators to provide a robust TSR comparator group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year to 31 December 2018, the fees payable to the Charman and Non-Executive Directors will be as shown below

2018 2017

£ £

Chairman 185,470 180,075

Non-Execuhve Director 48,750 47,330
Additional fees:

Senior Independent Director 8,470 8,230

Chairman of Audit or Remuneration Committee 8,470 8,230

Fees were increased by 3% in line with the UK salaned workforce increase in 2017.
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REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS FOR 2017 (AUDITED)
Although the Company reports its resutts in US dollars, the remainder of this report on remuneration is presented in pounds sterling
because the majority of the Directors are UK based and paid m pounds sterling.

A breakdown of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017 1s set out in the table below.

Fixed Performance related
£'000 Year Salary/fees Benefits Pension Sub-total Bonus LTIP Other Sub-tetal Total
Executive Directors
Paul Waterman, CEO?. 3 2017 660 68 169 897 948 - 623 1,571 2,468
2016 541 39 140 720 23¢ - 632 862 1,582
Ralph Hewins, CFO2.3 2017 334 25 84 443 405 - 140 545 988
2016 100 10 25 135 38 - - 38 173
Non-Executive Directors
Andrew Duff, Charrman 2017 180 - - 180 - - - - 180
2016 175 - - 175 - - — - 175
Sandra Boss4 2017 43 - - 43 - - - - 43
2016 - - - - - - - - -
Dorothee Deuring® 2017 39 - - 39 - - - - 39
2016 - - - - - - - -~ -
Steve Good 2017 83 - - 53 - - - - 53
2016 46 — - 46 - - - - 46
Anne Hyland 2017 56 - - 56 - - - - 56
2016 54 - - 54 - - - - 54
Nick Salmon 2017 56 - - 56 - - - - 56
2016 54 - - 54 - - - - 54
Past Directors
Andrew Christieé 2017 18 - - 18 - - - - 18
2016 54 - - 54 - - - - 54
Total 2017 1,439 93 253 1,785 1,353 - 763 2,116 3,901
Total 2016 1,024 49 165 1,238 268 - 6327 900 2,1388

1 Paul Waterman s based in the US and paid in US dollars He received an annual salary of $848k (2016 $825k) His pension compnises 20% of his salary and
employer contribulions t6 defined contribution pension schemes. FX usad 1s the 2017 average rate of $1 2858 £1 00 Bonus shown is equivalent to 139 5% of salary
Cther payments for 2017 relate to the tranche of his buyout award that will vest on 7 March 2018 and has been valued using the average share price for the 3
months ended 31 December 2017 and based on 81 4% vasting

2 Bonus shown 15 equivalent to 117 5% of salary

3 Taxable benefits for Paul Waterman consist of a car or car allowance, private health care, dental, Iife assurance, accidental death and disablement cover,

long term disabilty insurance The increase in benefits shown over 2016 1s largely due to a $30.000 contribution towards costs incurred n having to prepare and

file tax returns in the UK for 2016/17 and 2017118 as a result of him being required to spend greater ime than envisaged on appointment in the UK as a consequence

of the Raignite Growth strategy Taxable benefits for Ralph Hewins consist of a car allowance, private health care and [Ife assurance,

Sandra Boss was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2017,

Dorothee Deuring was appomted as a Non-Execulive Director on 1 Margh 2017

Andrew Chnstie stepped down as a Non-Executive Director on 25 Apnl 2017,

As required by remuneration reporting regulanans, the valuation of the Executive Directors’ LTIP awards for 2016 {which related (o buyout awards which vested

on 7 March 2017) has been restated using the actual share price on the date of vesbng and dividends paid that had been incurred during the period of grant

of the award and the date of delvery,

8 Including 2 former Executive Directars who also served during 2016 (David Dutro and Bnian Taylorson), this amount becomes £2,750k, Dawid Dutro’s and Enan
Taylorsen's remuneration was disclosedn the 2016 Annual Report

~ T o
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

DETERMINATION OF ANNUAL BONUS OUTCOME FOR PERFORMANCE IN 2017

This section shows the performance targets set in respect of the 2017 annual benus scheme, the level of perfermance achieved
and the amount of bonus payable to Directors. The bonus targets were tested aganst the full year resulis and the full year bonus
payment will be paid in Q1. Half of the amount vesting will be paid in cash and the other half paid in the form of a share award
deferred for 2 years.

FY 2017 bonus plan targets Percentage of salary vesting

Relative

weighting of
performance Parcentof Paul Waterman  Ralph Hewins
Full year bonus conditions Threshold Plan Stretch  Actual result maximum CEQ CFO
Maximum as % salary 150% 125%
PBT ($ million} 50% arg 105.8 115.6 115.2 98% 73.5% 61.25%
AWC (%) 20% 234 224 21.4 188 100% 30% 25%
Non-financial 30% n/a n/a 36% 31.25%
Total full year payment 100% 139.5% 117.5%

Bonus payments under the adjusted Group profit before tax and AWC performance condition last year increased on a inear

basis with 0% payable for threshold performance, 50% for plan performance and 100% for stretch performance. The Committee
exercised discretion to adjust the onginal Group profit before tax and AWC targets (threshold, plan and stretch) for the following
SummitRehess acquisition, sale of the US Colourants business and for amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition.

The adjustments were made to ensure that the condiion was no more or less challenging than when initially set {e.g. the Group
profit before tax target was increased to reflect the expected additicnal earnings ansing from the SummitReheis acquisiion) and
the Committee was satisfied that the adjustments achieved this objective and provided a fair measure of the underlying performance
during the year.

For the 2017 annual bonus challenging individual objectives were established by the Committee for each Executive Director that
reflected activities and inibatives intended te improve the performance of the Group.

The objectives established and the assessment of performance is shown In the table below. The targets were werghted cne
third based on safety, compliance and nsk management, one third based on people management and one third on the wider
strategic targets.

Based on the performance delivered against the targets set for non-financial targets, the Committee determined that Paul Waterman
had met 36% of salary (equivalent to 80% of maximum opportunity} and Ralph Hewins had met 31 25% of salary (equivalent to
83.33% of maximum apportunity).

The bas's of determining the mdividual scores 1s summarised in the table below using a colour coding for ease of reference
Achieved in full or predominantly achieved
Partially achieved
Not achieved

2017 Bonus Assessment for CEO and CFO - Common objectives to both CEQ and CFO

Summary

Measure Objectives Performance scorng

The LTA target of 2 was achieved with a total of 2
along with the target relating to ebminating Tier 2

Safety, comphance
and risk management

Reducing the injury rate to below 0.81
per 200,000 hours worked (excluding

Actions to deliver

opportunities’

SummitRehels since therr approach to
measuring Injuries was on a chiferent
basis to the approach used at Elementis
resulting i insufficient data to enable
their inclusion in an adjusted targety;
Reducing the number of severe injuries
or Lost Time Accidents (LTA) to 2 or less,
Improving envirormental performance
such that there were no Tier 2 or 3
environmental incidents

or 3 environmental incidents. However, despie
impraved performance versus the prior 2 years,
the recerdable injury rate was marginally above
the target at 0.88

Growth In global Personal Care and
Asia Coatings operating profit and
integration of SummitRehels

‘Pursue best growth

The Personal Care performance target was
achieved n full but the challenging environment
in Asia resulted in the target not being met.
SummitRehels was integrated ahead of the

strategic priority
Board's planning and cost expectations
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Summary

Measure Objectives Performance scoring
Actions to deliver Addressing disadvantaged assets; and Targets relating to the disadvantaged assets
‘Pursue supply chain completing the working capital {(WC;} were achieved which included the sale of US
transfermation’ strategic review Colourants, closure of Jersey City site and the
strategic priority announced sale of Surfactants all 1 ine with the
Board's planning. Strong progress was achieved
in relation to implementing a revised WC strategy
Actions to deliver Effective working of core processes Targets relating to improved controls of working
‘Create a culture of Including capital expenditure and capital, product rationalisation and performance
high performance’ performance management management were delivered in ine with the
strategic prionty Board's approved plans
People management Improving gender diversity in Targets relating to gender diversity were met
recruitment processes and delivering as evidenced by improvements in the gender
a step change In talent management mix n senior positicns and the development
and succession planning of succession planning profiles was complieted
CEO specific objectives
Summary
Measure Objective Performance sconng
Actions to deliver Implementing global key account {GKA}  Targets relating to the appointment of GKA
‘Pursue best growth management managers were met The planned roll out of new
opportunities’ processes and capability are In progress
strateqic priority
Actions to deliver Sustairing innovation leadership; new Targets relating to the globalsation of the R&D
‘Innovate for high innovation pipeline process, and function and the implementation of innavation
margins and lechnology driven growth strategy process with a strong pipeline were achieved
distinctiveness’
strategic prionty
CFOQ specific objectives
Summary
Measure Objeclive Performance sConng

Group tax strategy
and pension scheme

New Group tax strategy; UK and US
pension scheme strategy

Targets relating to achieving Board approval of a
new Group tax strategy, pension funding strategy
and Investment stralegy were achieved

DIRECTORS’ SHARE BASED AWARDS
Determination of 2015 LTIP awards

The threshold EPS and TSR targets were not met and therefore these awards have lapsed in full. The current Executive Directors

do net hold any 2015 LTIP awards.

Buyout awards in respect of Paul Waterman’s recruitment

The Committee agreed to make replacement awards to Paul Waterman (as explained in last year's report), representing all equity
related remuneration being forfeited by lum on joining Elementis. Tranche 2 of the award will vest on 7 March 2018 to the extent the
performance conditons are met (applicable to 42 5% of the award).

A portion of the Tranche 2 award (57.5% or 129,745 shares) was subject only to a service reguirement of 2 years from the date of
' award (reflecting a minmum vesting value of the forfeited awards). The balance of the award (42.5% or 95,900 shares} was subject
to performance conditions which were in nature similar and equivalently challenging to those of the forfeited awards

Based on the perfoermance assessment set out below, 79.7% of the performance based award will vest, a total of 91.4% including

the service requirement.

Dividend rights

At the time of vesting Paul Walerman is entitled to a payment in respect of dividends that would have been paid on the shares durning
the period of grant of the award and the date of delivery of the shares. The cash payment will be £52,026.

Performance related outcome (in respect of 42.5% of the award or 95,900 shares)y

Cash targets $m (30% weight)

Threshold Payout Plan Payout

Stretch Payout Result Payout

811 20% 86.1 25%

911 30% 90.8" 20.7%"

* 2017 operating cash excluding SummitReheis
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

HSE targets (30% weight)

Goals Payout Result Payout
Ervironmental 15% Achieved in full —the targets were to reduce the number of Tier 2, Tier 2a 15%
performance in 2017 and Ter 3 environmental incidents and/or prosecutions to below the 3 year
vs set metrics average. Since no Tier 2 and 3 incidents were recorded and Tier 2a had 9

recorded versus a 3 year average of 10.67, the targets were achieved 1n fulk,
Safety performance in 15% Achieved in full - the targets were to reduce the safety recordable incidents 15%
2017 vs set metrics and the number of LTAs below the 3 year average. These were achieved in

full with rates of 11 and 2 versus the 3 year averages of 11.67 and 3.33.
Business operational targets (40% weight}
Goals Payout Result Payout
Busimess segment and 20% Notrmet 0%
central cost targets
Talent management 20% Achieved in full - implementation of Group wide incentive and executive 20%
and succession talent management programs following Board approval and delivered
planning objectives on time
Total performance 78.7%

elements achieved

Buyout awards in respect of Ralph Hewins’s recruitment
As reported in last year's report, Raiph Hewins was awarded 84,434 nil cost optians to buyout forfeited share based remuneration
when he left his previous employer to join Elementis. These options have no performance conditions {reflecting the profile of the
forferted awards) but are subject to a 2 year holding period. In addition, part of Ralph's forfeited remuneration included an amount of
fvs bonus which would have been deferred for 3 years had he not left his former emplayer and these were bought out and matched
through an award of 15,977 nil cost options which vest after 3 years {no performance conditions were attached to these reflecting
the vesting profile of the forfeited remuneration).

Face value A summary of

of award pertormance

Type of Number atgrant End of the targets and
share award Grant date of awards {£'000s)!  Percentage that would vest at threshold performance vesting period measures
Nil cost option 07.03.17 84,434 248  No performance conditions 07.03.217 N/A
Nil cost option 07037 15,977 46  No perfermance conditions 07.03.2020 N/A

1 The share price used to determine the number of awards granted was 281 00 pence, being the average mid-market closing share price on the dealing day

preceding the date of grant

Annual LTIP awards granted in the year {audited)
LTIP awards made in 2017 are set out In the table below and are subject to EPS and TSR performance canditions {spiit 50.50} over
the 3 years to 31 December 2019 as shown in the table below.

Face value The end A symmary of

of award date of the performance

Type of Number atgrant  Percentage that would vest performance targets and

Award holder share award Grant date of awards {£'000s)!  atthreshold performance period measuras
Paul Nil cost option 03.04.17 469,024 1,356 0% of the award 31.12.2019 Average annual
Waterman frestrictec subject iothe EPS EPS growth of 3%
stock unit) conditicn and 3.85% to 10% and TSR

Ralph Nit cost opticn 03.04.17 202,366 585  of the award subject performance of

Hewins

to the TSR conditon,

median to upper
quartile.

1 The share price used to determine the number of awards granted was 289.20 pence, being the average mid-market clesing share price on the dealing day

preceding the date of grant

Details of awards in savings based share schemes are shown i the table overleaf.
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SOURCING SHARES FOR OUR SHARE PLANS

Employee share plans comply with the Investment Associabion's guidelines on dilution which provide that overall issuance of shares
under all plans should not exceed an amount equivalent to 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share capitat over any 10 year penod,
with a further limitation of 5% in any 10 year penod on discretonary plans. Based on the number of awards that remain outstanding
as at the year end, the Company's headroom for afl plans 1s 4.7% and for discretionary plans 3 9% of 1ssued share capital.

DIRECTORS' SCHEME INTERESTS (AUDITED)
The interests of the persons who were Directars during the year in the 1ssued shares of the Company were:

Scheme interesls

Vested but
Option Granted Exercised {apsed unexercised
Interest Grant price during during during share
type date (3] 01.01.17 2017 2017 2017 311247 aptions
Executive Directors
Paul Waterman A 0703.2016 - 225645 - 205,793 19,852 - -
A 07.03.2016 - 225645 — - - 2258645 -
B 04.04.2016 - 487816 - - - 487816 -
C 07.03.2017 - - 43,853 - - 43,953 -
B 03.04.2017 - - 469,024 - - 469,024 -
Total scheme interests 933,106 512,977 205,793 19,852 1,226,438 Nil
Raiph Hewins D 1909.2016 — 240683 - - - 240,693 -
C 07.03.2017 - - 6,535 - - 6,535 -
E 07.03.2017 - - 15,977 - - 15,877 -
D 07.03.2017 — - 84,434 - - 84,434 84,434
B 03.04.2017 - - 202,366 - — 202,366 -
F 05.08.2017 226.63 - 7.942 - - 7,942 —
Total scheme interests 240,693 317,254 - —  D57947 84,434
Notes

A Replacement awards structured as restricted stock units made under standalone arrangements that borrow lerms from the LTIP as amended, Paul Waterman
retained 130,360 shares following the exercise and sale of options over 205,793 shares granted under tranche 1 of his buyout award granted under the LTIP
ata price of 295.1 pence giving him a pre-tax gain of c £607k

B LTIP awards are subject to performance condilions The same EPS growth (annual growth of 3% to 10%) and relative TSR performance condiions apply in respect
of the awards made in 2016 and 2017, These awards ordinarily vest an the third anniversary of the grant date and would exprre on the tenth anniversary Vesting
conditions as sel outen page 72

G Conditonal share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan (DSBP} Structured as restricted stock units for Paul Walerman and nil cost options for Ralph Hewins
Vesting condibons as set out on page 70

D Replacement awards structured as mil cost options made under standalone arrangements that berrow terms from the LTIP as amended Vesting conditions for the
2017 award as sal out on page 72

£ Replacemant awards structured as nil cost options made under standalone arrangements that borrow terms from the DSBP as amended Vesting conditions as set
outon page 72.

F Options held under the UK SAYE scheme This Is a savings based share option scheme that 1s not subject to performance conditions Further details on this
schema ts shown in note 24 to the ‘Consohdated financial statements’ on page 124
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' SHARE INTERESTS {AUDITED)
The interests of the Directors (including any connected persons) during the year (and from the year end 1o 27 February 2018) mthe
1ssued shares of the Company were.

Share interests

Acquired Disposed Shareholding

during durning level metas at

010117 2017 2017 3112172 311217
Executive Directors
Paul Waterman3 35,000 145,360 - 180,360 No4
Ralph Hewins - - - - Ng4
Non-Executive Directors
Andrew Duff 50,000 - - 50,000 n/a
Sandra Boss - 10,000 - 10,000 n/a
Dorothee Deunng - 10,000 - 10,000 n/a
Steve Good 10,000 - - 10,000 nfa
Anne Hyland 10,000 - - 10,000 na
Nick Salmon 10,000 - - 10,000 n/a
Past Director
Andrew Christie 10,000 - - 10,000 n/a

1 Or from date of appointment (f later.

2 Oras at date of resignation if earher

3 Paul Waterman retained 130,360 shares following the exercise and sale of options over 206,783 shares granted under tranche 1 of his buyout award granted under
terms borrowed from the LTIP at a price of 295 1 pence giving him 2 pre-tax gain of c.£607k

4 As per the Remuneration policy, share awards vesting over tme will contribute to meeting the sharehoiding level

The market price of ordinary shares at 31 December 2017 was 288.1 pence (2016. 277.4 pence) and the range during 2017 was
258.1 pence to 317.1 pence (2016 180.6 pence to 277.4 pence).

As at 27 February 2018, the Trustee of the Company’s Employee Share Qwnership Trust (ESOT') held 869,207 shares (2017: 455,000).
As Executive Directors, Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins, as potential beneficianes under the ESOT, are deemed to have an
interest in any shares that become held in the ESQOT.

As at 27 February 2018, no person wha was then a Director had any interest in any dervative or other financial instrument relating
to the Company's shares and, so far as the Company 1s aware, none of their connected persons had such an interest. Between
31 December 2017 and 27 February 2018 there was no change in the relevant interests of any such Directors nor, so far as the
Company 1s aware, in the relevant interests of any of their connected persons.

Other than therr service contracts, letters of appontment and letters of indemnity with the Company, none of the Directors
had an interest in any contract of significance in relation te the business of the Company or its subsidianes at any time during
the firancial year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The table below shows the breakdown of the retirement benefits of the Executive Directors, comprising employer contributions
te defined contribution plans and salary supplements paid in cash.

Paul Waterman received a salary supplement of 20% of his basic salary and participated in the defined contnbution plans,

the details of which can be found in the Remuneration policy report. The amount shown in the table below represents employer
matching contributions and both this and the salary supplement are included in the Directors’ emoluments table shown on page 69.
Ralph Hewins received a salary supplement of 25% of hus bastc salary in lieu of any other retirement benefit (pro-rated for 2016).
The amount received 1s shown in the table below and in the Directors’ emoluments table.

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS (AUDITED)

Defined contribution plans Salary supplement
2017 2016 2017 2018
£°000 £:000 £'000 £000
Paul Waterman a7 23 132 "7
Ralph Hewins nfa n/a 84 25
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE IN CEO’S PAY

The graph below llustrates the Company's total shareholder return for the 9 years ended 31 December 2017, relative to the

FTSE 250 Index, along with a table illustrating the change in CEQ pay since 2009. The table also detaills the varying award vesting
rates year on year for the annual bonus scheme and LTIP,

As the Company's shares are denominated and listed in pence, the graph below looks at the total return to 31 December 2017
of £100 invested in Elementis on 31 December 2008 compared with that of the total return of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index.
This iIndex was selected for the purpose of providing a relative companson of performance because the Company 1s a member of it

TSR performance (rebased to 100)
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0 2008 2009 20190 201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
— FElementis plc  —FTSE 250 index
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
CEOQ pay (total remuneration — £'000s} 576 1,031 2,884 3560 2,252 1,573 763 15531 2,468
Annual bonus award against maximum ¢pportunity 0% 100% 100% 81% 56% 50% 0% 275% 93.0%
LTIP vesting against maximum opportunity 88% 0% 100% 100% 100% 65% 0% 912%2 91.4%3

1 Includes remuneration for Paul Waterman and Dawid Dulro for the peniod in which each was CEO durning 2016 as disclosed in the 2016 Annual repart
2 Relates to Paul Waterman's replacement awards which vested in March 2017
3 Relates to Paul Waterman's replacement awards vesung in March 2018

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below shows the total remuneration paid across the Group together with the total divdends paid in respect of 2017
and the preceding financial year.

REMUNERATION AGAINST DISTRIBUTIONS

£m 2017 2018 Change
Remuneration paid to all employees

{see note 8 to the Consclidated financial statements)! 86.7 777 11.6%
Total dividends paid in the year? 61.7 551 12.0%

1 The amounts for 2017 and 2016 have been converted from dellars into pounds sterling using the average USD/GBP exchange rates for those years
2 2017 ang 2016 include a special dvidend paymenl of $38 7m (£31.0m} and $37 0m (£27 1m) respectively

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN CEO’S PAY
The able below shows the change from 2016 to 2017 of the CEO's pay with regard to the 3 elements set out below and the
corresponding change of these elements across all employees within the Group.

% Change from 2016 10 20177

Salarnies Benefits Bonusg?
CEQ pay (tctal remuneration)? 7.4% 47 8% 32.1%
All employees? 16 1% 22.4% 452.5%

1 All percentages are based on converting relevant local currencies into pounds slerbng using the average rates for the respective year

2 Change in bonus relates to payments 1n respect of the relevant financial years

3 Includes remuneration for Paul Waterman and Dawvid Dutro for the penod in which each was CEQ during 2016 as disclosed in the 2016 Annual report
4 Excluding SummitRehes
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING

The resolution to approve the 2016 Directors’ remuneration report (excluding the remuneration policy) was passed on a poll at
the Company's fast AGM held on 25 April 2017. The current remuneration policy was approved at the AGM held on 22 April 2015.
Set out In the table below are the votes cast by proxy in respect of these resolutions.

Votes for % For Votes aganst % Against Votes withheld
2016 Directors’ remunerabon report (2017 AGM) 306,062,827 8418 57,604,708 15.82 2.877,541
2014 Directors' remuneration policy (2015 AGM) 322589945 98.93 3,497,051 1.07 24,478,522

Votes withheld are not included in the final figures as they are not recognised as a vote in law.

OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMMITTEE'S MEMBERSHIP AND OPERATION

Committee composition

The Chairman and mambers of the Cemmittee are shawn on pages 40 to 41, together with ther biographucal information. 8 meetings
were held during 2017 and the attendance records of Committee members are shown on page 55. All meetings were also attended
by the Chairman of the Board and the CEOQ. Other Non-Executive Directors who are not members of the Committee have a standing
invite to attend and the CFO and Chief Human Resources Officer alsc attend meetings by invitation, as appropnate. The Executive
Directors are not present when ther own remuneration arrangements are discussed or, 1f they are, they do not participate in the
decision making process.

Terms of reference

A full description of the Committee’s terms of reference 1s available on the Company’s website at www.elementisple.com and the

following 1s a summary of its responsibilities:

— Determining the ievels of remuneration for the Chairman and Executive Directors and keeping these under review,

— Making awards under the annual bonus scheme and LTIP, including setting performance targets.

— Monitoring ard making recommendaticns on the design, structure and level of remuneration for all senior executives,
ensuring that these are appropriately linked to the Group's strategy and aligned with the Board’s risk profile.

Evaluation, training and development
On an annual basis the Committee’s effectiveness is reviewed as part of the evaluation of the Board. Following the evaluation
last year, there were no major 1ssues te report.

During 2017, Committee members attended vanous external seminars on the latest develcpments on executive remuneration and
all Board members received briefings from the Company Secretary and the Committee's remuneration advisers throughout the year,
to keep them updated on topical matters and developments relating to executive remuneration

Remuneration advisers

As reported 1n the Committee Chairman’s annual statement, Korn Ferry replaced New Bridge Street as its external advisers

with effect from Apnl 2017. The Committee 1S satisfied that there was no over reliance on Korn Ferry and that advice received was
independent. Korn Ferry are a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and voluntanly operate under the code of conduct.
As well as being remuneration adviser, Korn Ferry also supported the Nomimation Committee in the recruitment process that led to
the appointments of Sandra Boss and Dorothee Deuring as Non-Executive Directors in the early part of the year. Fees paid to New
Bridge Street during the year was £13,732 (excluding VAT). Fees paid to Korn Ferry for remuneration advisory services in 2017 were
£75,860 (excluding VAT) and related to the review of the remuneration policy, carrying out a sharenclder consultation programme,
advice in the design and drafting of a new LTIP and a new UK all employee plan. The Committee are satisfied that the advice
received by Korn Ferry was independent and objective.

Management also retained Korn Ferry in its review of Board level incentives and in carrying out various benchmarking studies.
Thaose fees are not included in the figure above.

AUDITABLE SECTIQONS OF THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPQRT

The sections of the Annual repert on remuneration that are required to be audited by law are as follows: Remuneration payable to
Orrectors for 2017 and Retirement benefits; and tables headed Annual LTIP awards granted In the year, Directors’ scheme interests,
Directors' share interests and Directors’ retirement benefits.

STEVE GOOD

Chairman, Remuneration Committee
27 February 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE
Other information that 1s relevant to this report and which s also
Incorporated by reference can be located as follows:

Business model Pages 18to 19

Reignite Growth strategy Pages 4 to 11

Indication of future developments Page 13
Dividend Page 24
Results Pages 2210 25
Financial assets and labiliies Page 91
Principal risks Pages 32 to 36
R&D activities Pages 8109
People Pages 26 to 27
Greenhouse gas emissions Pages 30 to 31
Going concern Page 37
Viability statement Page 37
Long term incentive plans Pages 124 to 126
Dwigend waiver Page 78

TAKEOVER DIRECTIVE DISCLOSURES

The management report, for the purposes of the Listing Rules
and Disclosure and Transparency Rules comprses the
following sections. the Strategic report, this Directors’ report,
the Directors’ responsibility statement and the biographical
nformation on the Directors on pages 40 and 41.

DIRECTORS AND THEIR SHARE INTERESTS

The current Directors and their biographical details are delaled
on pages 40 and 41. Changes to the Directors and Company
Secretary during the year and up to the date of this report,

are set out below:

Name Tille Effective date

Sandra Boss Non-Executive  Appointed 1 February 2017
Director

Dorothee Deuring Non-Executive  Appointed 1 March 2017
Director

Andrew Christie  Non-Executive  Resigned 25 April 2017
Director

Wai Wong Company Resigned 31 January 2018
Secretary

Laura Higgins Company Appointed 31 January 2018
Secretary

The interests of Directors in the share capital of the Company
are set out In the Directors’ remuneration report. There have
been no changes in the interests of the Directors from

31 December 2017 up until the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' POWERS

The Directors’ powers are conferred on them by UK legislation
and by the Company’s Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’).
Rules about the appointment and replacement of Directors
are also set out In the Articles
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DIRECTORS’ CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Ralph Hewins 1s 1n receipt of a conflict authonsation from the
Company in respect of him acting as a trustee of the Elementis
Group Pension Scheme.

The conflict authonsation enables Ralph Hewins to continue

to act as a trustee notwithstanding that this role could give rise
to a situation in which there is a conflict of interest. The Board
considers that it 1s appropriate for the trustees of the UK
pension scheme to benefit from the financial expertise

of the CFO and that his contribution at trustees’ meetings
demonstrates the Board’s commitment to supperting the UK
pension scheme. The Board’s conflict authorisation is subject
to annual review and, under the terms of the conflict resolution,
recipracal provisiens have been put in place with a view to
safeguarding information that is confidential to the Group as
well as to the trustees. Were a conflict of interest ta anse, Ralph
Hewins 1s reguired 1o excuse himself from reading the relevant
papers and absent himself from participating in relevant
discussions. No other Directors were in receipt of a conflict
authonsation from the Beard during the year.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

In addition to the indemnity granted by the Company to
Directors in respect of their liabilities incurred as a result of
their office, a Directors' and Officers’ hability insurance policy

1s maintained throughout the year. Neither the indemnity nor the
Insurance provides cover in the event that a Director has proven
to have acted dishonestly or fraudulently. Similar arrangements
also exist for Cirectors appointed to Group subsidiary entities.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
Elementis policies seek to create a workplace that has an

open atmosphere of trust, honesty and respect. Harassment

or discimination of any kind based on race, colour, relgion,
gender, age, national origin, citizenship, mental or physical
disabilities, sexual onentation, veteran status, or any other
similarly protected status 1s not tolerated. This principle applies
to all aspects of employment, including recrutment and
selection, traiming and development, promotion and retirement.

Employees are free to join a trade union or participate
in collective barganing arrangements.

It 1s also Group policy for employees who have a disability
to reasonably accommodate them, where practicable,

and to provide training, career development and promotien,
as appropriate.

It 1s Group policy not to discriminate on the basis of any unlawful
critena and its practices include the prohibition on the use of
chitd or forced labour.

Flementis supports the wider fundamental human nghts of its
employees worldwide, as well as those of our customers and
supplers, and further details are set out in the Corporate social
responsibility report.

EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS AND INVOLVEMENT
The Company 1s committed to employee involvement
througheut the business. Employees are kept informed of

the performance and strategy of the Group through email
Telephone conference calls are held by the CEC to employees
worldwide and these serve as an informal forum for employees
to ask questions about the Group.

The Company operates savings based share option schemes
in the US and UK to encourage and support employee share
ownership.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Directors consider that the Group and the Company have
adequale resources to remain In operation for the foreseeable
future and have therefore continued to adopt the going concern
basis In preparing the financial statements. The Code requires
the Directors to assess and report on the prospects of the
Group over a longer periad. This longer term viability statement
15 set out on page 37.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital consists of ordinary shares, as set
out in note 9 on page 108. All of the Company's issued ordinary
shares are fully paid up and rank equally in all respects. The
rights attached to them, in addition to those conferred on their
holders by law, are set out In the Company’s Articles. Other than
those specific provisions set out in the Articles, there are no
restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares or on the exercise
of voting nghts attached to them, From time te time the ESOT
holds shares in the Company for the purposes of varicus share
incentive plans and the nghts altaching to them are exercised
by independent trustees, who may take into account any
recommendation by the Company. As at 31 December 2017
the ESOT held 869,207 shares in the Company (2016: 455,000}
A dividend waver is in place in respect of all shares that may
become held by the Trust.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 27 February 2018, the following interests in voting rights
aver the issued share capital of the Company had been notified.

Percentage of
1s5ued ordinary

Ordinary shares share capital
Ameriprise Financial, Inc.
and its group 46,395,441 10.00
AXA Investment Managers S.A. 46,255,532 9.98
APG Asset Management N V. 31,251,876 6.74
Blackrock, Inc. 27132773 585
FMRLLC 23,192,771 5.00
Aberdeen Asset Managers
Limited 23,056,448 4,97
PURCHASE OF SHARES

The Beard has the power conferred on it by shareholders to
purchase its own shares and is seeking renewal of that power
at the forthcoming AGM within the limits set out in the Notice
of Meeting.

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS - CHANGE OF CONTROL
There are few sigruficant agreements which the Company 1s
party to that take effect, alter or terminate in the event of change
of contral of the Company. The Company is & guarantor under
the Group’s $200m leng term loan and $275m revolving credit
facility and, in the event of a change of control, any lender among
the facility syndicate, of which there are 8 with commitments
ranging from $35m tc $75m, may withdraw from the facility and
that lender's participation in any loans drawn down are required
to be repaid.
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The rules of the Company’s various share incentive schemes
set out the consequences of a change of control of the
Company on the rights of the participants under those schemes.
Under the rules of the respective schemes, participants would
generally be able to exercise their options on a change of
control, provided that the relevant performance conditions have
been satisfied and, where relevant, cptions are not exchanged
for new aptions granted by an acquiring company,

POLITICAL DONATIONS
The Group made ne political donations during the year
{2016: ril).

BRANCHES

As a global Group, Elementis™ interests and activities are held
or operated through subsidianes, branches, joint arrangements
ar asscciates which are established in, and subject to the laws
and regulations of, many different jurisdictions.

AUDITORS

Deloitte LLP were appointed the Company’s auditors by
shareholders at the 2016 Annual General Meeting (AGM')
and were re-appeinted at the 2017 AGM. A resolution (5
included in the Notice of Meeting for the 2018 AGM to
re-appoint Deloitte LLP as auditors.

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors' report confirm that, in 50 far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps
that they cught to have taken as Directors to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held at 11.00 am on Thursday
26 Apnl 2018 at the offices of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP,
Exchange House, Primrose Street, London EC2A 2EG. Detaills
of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM are set out In

a separate circular which has been sent to shareholders

and is avaiiable on the Elementis corporate website:
www.elementisplc.com.

OTHER INFORMATION

Information about financial risk management and exposure
to financial market risks are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements on pages 114 to 119.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.

On behalf of the Board
LAURA HIGGINS

Company Secretary
27 February 2018




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Cirectors to prepare such financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the parent
company financial statements In accerdance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affarrs of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements,

the Directors are required tor

— Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

— Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reascnable and prudent

— State whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained n the
financial statements

— Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that the Company
will continue in busness.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International

Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors.

— Properly select and apply accounting policies

— Present informatien, including accounting palicies,
in & manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable
and understandable information

— Provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position
and firancial performance

- Make an assessment of the Company's ability tc continue
as a gomng concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transachons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are alsc responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions.

Kl Elementis plc Annual report and accounts 2017

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

- The financial statements, prepared In accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framewaerk, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial positicn and profit or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole

- The Strategic report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principat
nsks and uncertainties that they face

- The Annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Beard of
Directors on 27 February 2018 and is signed on its behalf by

RALPH HEWINS
CFO
27 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ELEMENTIS PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

In our opinicn

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December
2017 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with international Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRSs'} as adopted by the European Uniony;

- the parent company financial stalements have been properly prepared in accardance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS') 101 *Reduced Disclosure Framework’, and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regutation,

We have audited the financial statements of Elementis plc {the ‘parent company”) and its subsidianes (the '‘Group'} which comprise:
— the Consolhdated income stalement;

— the Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome;

— the Consoldated balance sheet;

- the Consolidated statement of changes in equity;

— the Consolidated cash flow statement,

—the Consolidated financial statement related notes 1 to 33;

— the parent company balance sheet;

— the parent company statement of changes in equity; and,

—the parent company statutory accounts related notes 1 to 13,

The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparatien of the Group financial statements s applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, The financial reporting framewaork that has peen applied in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework’ {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {'ISAs (UKY} and applicable law. Qur
responsibiities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibiities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.

We are iIndependent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit
of the financial statements in the LK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (‘FRC') Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We confirm that the
non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for cur opinion.
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SUMMARY OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH

Key audit matters

The key audit matters that we identified In the current year were’
— Environmental provisions;

— Acquisition accounting for SummitRehess, and,

— Revenue recognition.

Materiality

The materality that we used for the Group financial statements was $5.0m which eqguates to 4.8% of profit

before tax adjusted for discontinued operations, acquisition and restructunng costs and other adjusting items.

Scoping

We have performed full scope audits of 5 compenents and specified audit procedures of 2 components,
comprising 93% of the Group's revenue and 99% of the Group's profit before tax.

Significant changes
in our approach

Feollowing the anncuncement of the acquisition of SummitRehels, we have dentified a new key audit matter
to report in respect of the acquisition accounting of SummiRehels and 2 new compenents consisting
of SummitRebeis US and SummitReheis Europe.

We do not consider deferred tax assets and post-retirement benefits as key audit matters as these were
net the areas that had greatest impact on our audit.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN, PRINCIPAL RISKS AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

Going concern

We have reviewed the Direclors' statement in note 1 to the financial statements about whether they We confirm that we have

considered It appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In prepanng them and nathing matenal io report,
thetr iIdentification of any material uncertainties to the Group's and Company's ability to continue to add or draw attention to in
do so over a period of at least twelve months from the dale of approval of the financial statements. respect of these matlers.

We are required 1o state whether we have anything matenal to add or draw atiention ta in relation
lo that statement reguired by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) and report if the statement s materially
Inconsistent with our knowledge obtained In the audit.

Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely an reading the Directors’ statements and considering whether they were consistent We confirm that we have
with the knowledge we obtained in the course of the audit, ncluding the knowledge obtained inthe  nothing matenal to report,
evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's and the company's ability to continue as a add or draw atiention to n

going concern, we are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention  respect of these matters,

to in relation to:

— the disclosures on pages 33-36 that describe the principal nsks and explain how they are being

managed or mtigated:

— the Directors’ confirmation on page 37 that they have carned out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the Group, Inclucing those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or kquidity; or

— the Directors’ explanaton on page 37 as o how they have assessed the prospects of the
Group, over what pencd they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropnate,
and therr statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabiltes as they fall due over the period of their
assessment, Including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications

or assumptions.,

We are also required to report whether the Directors’ statement relating to the prospects of the
Group required by Listing Rule 9 8.6R(3) 1s matenally inconsistent with our knowledge obtained

in the audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ELEMENTIS PLC

CONTINUED

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional jJudgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial

statements of the current peniod and include the most significant assessed nisks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on. the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matiers were addressed in the conlext of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinien thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinien on these matiers,

Environmental provisions

Key audit ratter description
In line with other companies within the

chemicals industry, Elements holds provisions
for the monitoring and remediahion of a number

of operating and legacy sites, including those
sold off or no longer occupled. In accordance

with Elementis’ environmental provision policy,

a provision 1s recognised for the resteration of
contaminated land. As at 31 December 2017,
Elementis holds a provision of $31.6m
(2016: $31.4m) against these llabilities.

The accounting for these provisions Involves
judgement as to the estmated future cash
flows required to remediate these sites.

The determination of these cash flows and
the discount rates applied I1s fundamental

to this key audit matter.

The Group's accounting policy 1s included
within nate 1 to the consolidated financial
statements where this is also included as

a critical accounting jJudgement. There Is
additional disclosure included within note 15.
The Audit Committee discussion Is included
on page 52.

How the scope of cur audit responded

to the key audit matter

We have audited the assumptions used in

management’s calculation of the provision.

Our procedures included:

— Holding discussicn with management
and the Group's external environmental
consultants on the iIdentified environmental
1ssues to confirm our understanding of the
current situation and the process by which
management and the external consultants
prepared the cash flow forecasts;

— Assessing the appropriateness of forecast of
individual cost categories on each significant
site selected for completeness testing
through discussions with site managers
at relevant locations;

— For a sample of locations, challenging
the key assumptions and inputs to forecast
the cash flows and agreeing the inputs
to supporting decumentation,

— Engaging our internal valuation experts
to challenge the appropriateness of the
discount rates applied by comparison
to our own internal benchmark data;

— Reviewing the previous estimates made
of expected outflows to actual cutflows
to determine the reasonableness of the
project spend; and,

— Performing searches of external databases
to determine completeness of the identified
environmental 1Issues and sites.

Key observations

As a result of our work,

we have concluded that the
provisions held by Elementis
In relation to envirenmental
remediation and monitaring
appear reasonable.
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Acquisition accounting for SummitReheis

Key audit matter description

in March 2017, Elementis acquired
SummitRehers far a consideration of $370.3m.
The acquisition meets the definition of a
business combination and 15 therefore
required to be accounted for under I(FRS 3
‘Business Combination’,

Management commissioned independent
valuation experts to assist with the
identification and valuation of the separate
intangible assets. The acquisiion of
SummitReheis resuited in the identfication
and recognition of goodwill of 5203 Om and
other intangible assets of $159 1m.

Accounting for business combinations 1s
comptex and requires the recognition of both
consideration paict and acquired assets and
lhabilities at the acquisition date at farr values,
which can invalve significant Judgement and
estimates. These comprnse the identification
and valuation of intangible assets acquired
In business compinatiens, including key
assumpticns such as the discount rates,
growth rates and asset lives of separately
dentifiakle intangible assets.

The Group's accounting policy 1s inciuded
within note 1 te the consoldated financial
statements where this Is also included as

a critical accounting judgement These
significant judgement areas are also referred
to within the Audit Committee report on page
52. Further details are disclosed in note 10
and note 31.

How the scope of our audit responded

to the key audit matter

QOur procedures included:

— Reviewing the relevant sale and
purchase agreement,

— Testing the cash value of consideration
to relevant transaction agreements and
bank statements;

- Reviewing the process that management
had undertaken to determine the fair value
of the business acquired including the fair
value of the iIntangible assets,

- Engaging Delaitie’s internal valuation
specialists to review and challenge the
identification of Intangible assets, the
appropriateness of the valuation technigues
used and benchmark the reascnableness
of the key assumptions used, such as
discount rates, useful sconomic lives
and growth rates;

— Evaluating the information supporting
the valuation model and assumptions,
for example, the operating profit forecasts
and churn assumptions used in the farr
value analysis; and

- Reviewing the adequacy of disclosures
regarding the key judgements made and
assets and liabilities acquired.

Key observations

We noted no material
misstatements In respect

of the jJudgements taken by
management and concluded
that the disclosures made
are adequate

Revenue recognition

Key audit matter description

Revenue Is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer and an adjustment s
made at the period end for goods which have
been despatched but have not yet met the
cniteria for recogmiion. This adjustment 1s
made using management's best estimate of
the date at which goods reach the destination
port Management have determined, based
on the shipping terms, to recognise revenue
at a reliable estimate of the date at which
goods reach the destination port. Given the
level of management judgement involved,

we identified this key audit matter as a
potential fraud nisk.

The accounting policy 1s described in note 1
where this 18 also in¢cluded as a cntical
accounting judgement. These significant
Judgement areas are alsa referred 1o within
the Audit Committee report on page 53.

How the scope of our audit responded

to the key audit matter

We have performed the following procedures

in order to address the key audil matter

- reviewed and assessed the commercial
arrangements covering shipments,
to determine the correct point of revenue
recognition for different shipment
arrangements and agreements
with customers;

— selected a sample of international shipments
made pre-year end for time perods varying
by destination part and therefore transit tme
for shipments and agreed these to customer
order, shipment and mvoice details, cash
receipts and goods receipt notes; and,

— substantively tested post year end credit
notes raisec to determine if revenue was
inappropriately recegnised in the year.

Key observations

From the work performed,
we concluded that revenue
recognised In the year s
appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ELEMENTIS PLC

CONTINUED

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY
We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our praofessional yudgement, we determined materialty for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Parent company financial statements

Materiality

$5.C milien {2016° $4.7m)

$£2.5m (2016: $2.4m)

Basis for determining
materiality

Materiality was set on the basis of 4.8% of
profit before tax, adjusted for discontinued
operations, acquisition and restructuring
costs and other adjusting items.

In the prior year, matenalty was set on the
basis of forecast profit before tax on the basis
of 6.2% of the Group’s profit before tax.

A factor of 3% of net assets was used capped
to an appropriate component materiahty 50%
(2016. 50%) of Group matenality.

Rationale for the
benchmark applied

We have revisited the basis of our materiality
calculation from last year and have excluded
acquisition, restructuring and other adjusting
tems. Our rationale for these tems is that these
are one off costs and are routinely added back

by analysts in analysing Company performance.

We have used net assets in determining
matenality as we believe this I1s an appropriate
basis for matenality as it reflects the nature of the
parent company as a holding company and its
contribution {o the Group performance

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of $250 thousand
{2018. $235 thousand) for the Group and $125 thousand (2016. $115 thousand) for the parent company, as well as differences
below that threshold that in our view, warranted reporting on the gualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee
on the disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, Including Group-wide controls,
and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

The scape of aur audit iIncreased for 2017 due to the acquisition of SummitRehers and we therefore identified an additional 2
components in relation to this, in additicn to the & components from the prior year. Of these 8 components, 7 are considered to be
significant to the Group:

— the Specially Products operations in the US,

— the Chromium operations In the US,

— the Specialty Products operations in the UK;

— the Specialty Products operations in Tawan, including the Chinese operations,

— the Surfactants operations in the Netherlands,

- the SummitReheis operations in the US, and,

— the SummitReheis operations it Europe.

All 7 of these locations were subject to full scope audits or audits of specified account balances which were performed by local
component teams, except the Speciality Products UK operations where the Group audit team perfermed the audit without the
involvement of a component team,

i Our audit work at the 7 lecations was executed at levels of matenally applicable to each individual entity which were lower than
Group materiality and ranged from $2.5m te $2.8m (2016: $2.35m to $2.8m).

The in-scope locations {those at which a full scope audit or audit of specified balances were performed) represent the principal

pusiness units within the Group's operating divisions and account for 33% (2016: 88%) of the Group's revenue and 99% (2016; 94%)

of the Group's profit before tax.

Atthe parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and carned out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components
not subject to audit or audit of specified account balances.

As part of the audit process, the senior members of the audit team visited & of the 7 significant locations (2016. 5 of 5) set cut above;
in additon the Group Audit Partner visited US component team twice, During our visits, we attended key meetings with component
management and auditors, and reviewed detalled component audit work papers.

In addition to the planned program of visits, all key companent audit teams were represented during a centralised planning meeting
pricr to the commencement of our detalled audit work, The purpose of this planning meeting was to ensure a good level of
understanding of the Group's businesses, its core strategy and a discussion of the significant risks and our planned audit report.

We also send detalled instructions to our component teams, include them our team brigfing, discuss therr nsk assessment,
and review documentation of the findings from their work.

The parent company is located in the UK and audited directly by the Group audit team.

Revenue Frofil before tax

Full scope audit 81% 98%
Audrt of specified account balances 12% 1%
Review at Group level 7% 1%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ELEMENTIS PLC
CONTINUED

OTHER INFORMATION
The Directors are responsible for the other information The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report therecn.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
In our report, we d¢ not express any form of assurance conclusicn thereon.

In connection with our audit of the inancial statements, our responsibiity 1s 1o read the other infarmation and, 1n doing so, consider
whether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such matenal inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to determine whether there
is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a matenal misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this cantext, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other

information include where we conclude that'

— Fair, balanced and understandable — the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual report and financial
statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the infarmation necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's positon and performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with cur knowledge
obtained in the audit, or

- Audit Committee reporting — the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

— Directors' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code — the parts of the Directors’ statement required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's compliance with the UK Corparate Governance Code containing provisions
specified for review by the auditor m accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properiy disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the UK Corpaorate Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained mare fully In the Direclors’ responsibilities statement, the Direclors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenis that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors erther intend to llquidate the Group or the parent company or to Cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cur gbjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audttor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance (s a
nigh Jevel of assurance, bul s not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements,

A further descniption of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on the Financial Reperting Council’s
website at; www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibiliies. Trus description forms part of our auditor's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This repoart 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006, Our audit work has been undertaken sa that we right state 1o the Company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report,

or for the opinions we have formed.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors' remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

— the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

— the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and therr environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companes Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In cur opinion:

— we have nol receved all the information and explanations we require for cur audi; or

— adequale accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeqguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

— the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to repart if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration have nat

been made or the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audied is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

OTHER MATTERS

Auditor tenure

Follewing the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appeinted by the Beard on 27 Apnl 2016 to audit the financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2016 and subsequent financial peniods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement
including previous renewals and re-appointments of the firm (s 2 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2016 to

31 December 2017.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional repert to the audit committee
Our audit opinion 1s consistent with the addiional repert to the Audit Committee we are required 1o provide In accordance
with ISAs (UK)

CHRISTOPHER POWELL, FCA,
{SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

27 February 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
Note $mllion Smilhon
Revenue 2 782.7 616.6
Cost of sales (487.6) (384.6)
Gross profit 2951 232.0
Distnbution costs (98.1) (72.2)
Administrative expenses {105.6) (74.7)
Operating profit 2 9.4 85.1
Other expenses 1.2) 0.4)
Finance income 3 0.2 0.1
Finance costs 4 {11.9} (7.7}
Profit before Income tax 78.5 76.1
Tax S 34.2 (7.2)
Profit from continuing operations 2.7 68.9
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 32 4.9 (0.8} /
Profit for the year 117.6 68.1
Attnbutable to: /
Equity holders of the parent 117.6 68.1
17,6 68.1
Earnings per share
From continuing operations
Basic {cents) 9 24.3 14.9
Diluted (cents) 9 24.0 14.8 ‘
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic {cents) 9 254 4.7
Diluted (cents) g 250 14.6 ‘
CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
2017 2016
$million $milion
Praofit for the year 17.6 68.1
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subseguently to profit and loss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit pbhgations 181 (2.6)
Deferred tax associated with retirement benefit obligatons (7.3) {0.5)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.
Exchange differences on translation of fareign operations (0.2) {16.5)
Effective portion of change in fair value of net investment hedge 229 (14)
Effective portion of changes n fair value of cash flow hedges 041 (0.3}
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to income statement 0.3 0.9
Exchange differences on translation of share options reserves 041 {0.7)
Other camprehensive income 34,0 {21.1
Total comprenensive income for the year 151.6 47.0
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 151.6 470
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 151.6 47.0
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
31 December 31 December
Note $milhon $milion
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 10 717.2 359.9
Property, plant and equipment 11 219.5 2173
ACT recoverable 16 16.2 23.0
Deferred tax assets 16 0.2 16.1
Total non-current assets 9531 616.3
Current assets
Inventories 12 143.6 121.3
Trade and ¢ther receivables 13 124.6 96.0
Dervatives 21 0.9 -
Current tax assets 4.3 -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 55.0 82.6
Total current assets 3284 299.9
Assets classified as held for sale 32 58.2 -
Total assets 1,339.7 916.2
Current liabilities
Bank cverdrafts and loans 19 (2.7) (5.0)
Trade and other payables 14 (117.7) (88 9)
Dervatives 21 - (0.4)
Current tax fiabilities (14.1) (6.7)
Provisions 15 {10.8} 9.5
Total current liabilities (145.3} (120.5)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and barrowings 19 {343.4} 0.1)
Retirement benefit obligations 23 {10.5} (30.1)
Deferred tax habilities 16 (93.4) {108.7}
Provisions 15 {21.9) (29.7}
Total non-current liabilities (469.2) {168.6}
Liabilities classified as held for sale 32 (22.9) -
Total liabilities (637.4) {289.1}
Net assets 7023 6271
Equity
Share capital 17 44 .4 44,4
Share premium 21.9 20.9
Other reserves 18 99.0 75.2
Retained earnings 537.0 486.6
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 702.3 6271
Total equity 702.3 6271

The financ:al statements on pages 90 to 129 were approved by the Board on 27 February 2018 and signed on its behalf by

PAUL WATERMAN RALPH HEWINS
CEO CFO
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Share Share  Translaton Hedging Qther Retained Total
capilal premum reserve reserve reserves farnings equity
$million $million $milion $million $milhon $milion $millon
Balance at 1 January 2016 44.4 20.2 (62.0) (7.9) 162.9 496 2 653.8
Comprehensive Income
Profit tor the year - - - - - 681 68.1
Other comprehensive Income
Exchange differences - - (17.9) - {0.7) - (18.6)
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred
to the income statement - - - 0.9 - - 0.9
Effective portion of changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges - - - 0.3) - - {0.3)
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations - - - - - {2.6) (2.8)
Deferred tax adjustment on pensron scheme deficit - - - - - (0.5} (0.5}
Transfer - - - - (2.4} 2.4 -
Total other comprehensive income - - (17.9) 0.6 B0 {0.7) (1.1
Total comprehensive income - - (17.9) 0.6 (3.1 67.4 47.0
Transactions with owners
Purchase of own shares - - - - - 0.9) 0.9)
Issue of shares by the Company - 0.7 - - - - 0.7
Share based payments - - - - 2.6 - 2.6
Deferred tax on share based payments recognised
within equity - - - - - 0.1 0.1
Dividends paid - - - - - (76.2) (76.2)
Total transactions with owners - 0.7 - - 26 (77.0} (73.7)
Balance at 31 December 2016 444 20.9 (799) (7.3) 162.4 485.6 6271
Balance at 1 January 2017 44.4 20.9 (79.9) (7.3) 162.4 486.6 6271
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - 117.6 117.6
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences - - 227 - 04 - 228
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred
to the income statement - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
Effective portion of changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges - - - 0.3 - - 0.3
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obhgations - - - - - 181 18.1
Deferred tax adjustment on pension scheme deficit - - - - - {7.3) {7.3)
Transfer - - - - (2.2) 2.2 -
Total other comprehensive iIncome - - 22.7 04 (2.1) 13.0 34.0
Total comprehensive Income - - 227 0.4 (2.1) 130.6 151.6
Transactions with owners
Purchase of own shares - - - - - (2.4) (2.4}
Issue of shares by the Company - 1.0 - - - - 1.0
Share based payments - - - - 238 - 2.8
Dividends paid - - - - - (77.8) (77.8)
Total transactions with owners - 1.0 - - 2.8 (80.2) {(76.4)
Balance at 31 December 2017 44.4 21.8 (57.2} 6.9) 163.1 537.0 702.3
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

Note $millien $rmillicn
Operating activities:
Profit for the year 117.6 68.1
Adjustments for:
Other expenses 1.2 1.4
Finance income (0.2) 0.1
Finance costs 1.9 1.7
Tax charge (33.3) 7.4
Depreciation and amortisation 39.7 28.0
Decrease In provisions {8.5) {3.5)
Pension payments net of current service cost (6.3) {4.7)
Share based payments 28 26
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital 124.9 106.9
{Increase)/decrease in inventories (2.2) 1.7
Increase in trade and other receivables (2.4) (2.6
Increase in frade and other payables .5 225
Cash generated by operations 131.8 121.5
Income taxes paid (8.1) {2.7)
Interest paid (8.0) (0.9}
Net cash flow from operating activities 114.7 17.9
Investing activities:
Interest received 0.1 0.1
Cisposal of property, plant and equipment 3.3 0.3
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 43.2) (34.0}
Purchase of business net of cash acquired (361.8) -
Acguisition of intangible assets (.7 (1.6}
Net cash flow from investing activities {403.3) (35.2)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of shares by the Company and the ESOT 1.0 0.7
Dwidends paid (77.8) (76,2}
Purchase of shares by the ESOT (2.4) (0.9}
Increase In net borrowings 336.0 -
Net cash used in financing activities 256.8 (76.4)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (31.8) 6.3
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 826 791
Foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents 4.2 (2.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 20 55.0 82.6

No cash or cash equivalents are inctuded in assets held for sale.

93 Elementis plc Annual repart and accounts 2017

lioda) aiBaens

30ueLIBA0H a)8100400

sjuawajels [e1aveud

UOIRLLIOJUI IBPIOUBIeYS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Elementis plc 1s a public company hmited by shares
incorporated and domicited in England. The address of

Its registered office is Caroline House, 55-57 High Holborn,
London WC1V 6DX. The Group financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU (‘adopted IFRS™). The Company has elected to prepare
its parent company financial statements in accordance with
FRS 101. These are presented on pages 130 to 136.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except that derivative financial mstruments and
financial instruments held for trading or available for sale are
stated at therr fair value. Non-current assets held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amocunt and fair value less costs
to sell. The preparation of financial statements requires the
application of estimates and judgements that affect the reported
amounts of assets and llabilities, revenues and costs and
related disclosures at the balance sheet date, The accounting
polcies set out below have been consistently applied across
Group companies to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

The financral statements have been prepared cn a going
concern basis. The ratienale for adopting this basis is discussed
in the Directors' report on page 78.

Reporting currency

As a conseqguence of the majonty of the Group's sales and
earnings originating in US dollars or US dollar inked currencies,
the Group has chosen the US dollar as its reporting currency.
This aligns the Group's external reporting with the profile of the
Group, as well as with internal management reporting.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

When applying the Group's accounting policies, management
must make a number of key judgements on the application of
appficable accounting standards and estimates and assumptions
concerning the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. These estimates
and Judgements are based on factors considered to be
relevant, including histoncal experience, which may differ
significantly frem the actual cutcome. The key assumptions
concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are discussed below. The development of the
estimates and disclosures related to each of these matters
has been discussed by the Audit Committee.
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Critical accounting judgements

The following are the cntical jJudgements, apart from those
involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below),
that the Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised In the financial statements,

a. Revenue recognition
In making its judgement, the Directors have considered
the detailled critena for the recegnition of revenue from the
sale of goods set put in IAS 18 Reverue and, in particular
whether the Group had transferred the significant nsks and
rewards of ownership of the goods to customers. Following
further assessment of the terms of shipment, the Directors
have concluded that international shipments should not be
recognised within revenue until they reach the destination
port, as they believe that this more accurately reflects the
commercial substance of the transaction.

b. Recognition of a defined benefit pension asset
In accordance with [AS 19, for any pension plan in surplus,
the amount recognised as an asset is limited to an asset
ceiling, being the present value of any potential refund or
a reduction in future contniputions. Following the gurdance
n IFRIC 14, the Group has assessed the nature of the
mintmurn funding requirement of the UK scheme alongside
the unconditional right to a refund of any surplus under any
winding up of the plan and concluded 1t 1s appropriate to
recognise the full value of any pension surplus

¢. Use of adjusted results
The Group presents adjusted results {note 5) to provide
additional useful information on underlying performance
and trends to Shareholders. These results are used for
internal performance analysis.

The term ‘adiusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS and
may not therefore be comparable with simidarly tiled profit
measurements reported by other companies. Itis not
intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS
measurements of profit. Refer to note 5 for the adjusting
items and a reconciliation 1o statutory IFRS results.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and cther key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a matenal misstatement
to the carrying amounts of assels and lhabilties within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

a. Purchase price
In order to determine the value of the separately identifiable
intangible assels on a business combination, the Group
are required to make estimales when utilising valuation
methadclogies. These methodologies include the use of
attriion rates, discounted cash flows, revenue forecasts and
the estimates for the useful economic lives of intangible assets.

Key areas of judgement surrounded the evaluation of the US
customers' list, where two large assumptions were made around
the average life of 24 years and attnbon rate of 0% of the top 20
US custemers for SummitRehers.

b. Environmental provisions
Provisions for environmental restoration are recognised
where' the Group has a present legal or constructive
obhgation as a result of past events; it 1s probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.




Environmental provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to setile the
cbligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the obligation. Further details of these provisions
and a sensitivity assessment are given in note 15.

¢. The carrying values of advance corporation tax
In 2014, an asset of $42.0m was recognised relating to
UK advance corporation credits which had previously been
unrecegnised because of uncertainty over the availability of
UK taxable profits and hence a tax liability against which to
utllise the credits. During 2014 the Group transferred some
profitable product manufacturing 1o the UK from overseas,
restructured the financing of an gverseas subsidiary and
gained greater certainty an future UK pension contnibutions,
all of which led 1o a reasonable expectation that UK taxable
profits would arise in the future and therefare that the tax
credits should be recognised. The recognition of this
deferred tax asset is contingent on the Group's estimation
of future taxable income and this estimation (s supported by
the Group's latest available 3 year plan. Deferred tax assets
are reduced to the extent that it 1s no lenger prebable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

d. Valuation of a defined benefit pension obligation
The key estimates made in relation to defined benefit
pensions relate to the discount rate used to determine
the present value of future benefits and the rate of inflation
applied to plan assets. Further details en pensions and
a sensitivity analysis are given in note 23.

Basis of consolidation
The cansolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidianes for the year.

Subsidianes are all entihies (Including structured entibies) over
which the Group has control The Group controls an entity whien
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, vanable returns from
its invelvenent with the entity and has the ability te affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consclidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date on which that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary 1s the farr value of the assets

i transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquiree, and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset

or llabiity resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and habilitres and contingent
habiities assumed In a business combination are measured
initialty at their fair value at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-py-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net asssts.

Acguisition costs are accounted for as an expense in the penod
incurred.

Intragroup Halances and any unrealised gains and losses

or income and expenses ansing frem niragroup transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there Is no
evidence of imparment.
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Foreign currency

a. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised in the
income statement. Non-menetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at far
value are translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined

b. Financial statements of foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on consehdation,
are translated at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are
translated at the average rates of exchange ruling for the
relevant period. Exchange differences arising since
1 January 2004 gn translation are taken to the translation
reserve. They are recognised in the income statement upon
disposal of the foreign operation The Group may hedge a
portion of the transtation of ts overseas net assets through
pounds sterling and euro borrowings. From 1 January 2005,
the Group has elected to apply net investment hedge
accounting for these transactions where possible. Where
hedging is applied, the effective portion of the gain or loss
on an instrument used to hedge a net Investment 1s
recognised in equity. Any ineffective portion of the hedge
is recognised in the ncome statement.

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Freehold
land is not depreciated Leasehold property 1s depreciated over
the period of the lease. Freehold buldings, plant and
machinery, fixtures, fittngs and equipment are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives on a straight ine basis. Depreciation
methods, useful lives and residual values are assessed at the
reporting date. No depreciation 1s charged on assets under
construction until the asset 1s brought into use.

Estimates of useful ives of these assets are.

Buildings 10 - 50 years
Plant and machinery 2-20 years
Fixtures, fithings and equipment 2-20 years

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recogrised in the carrying amount of the item if

it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
it will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of preperty, plant and
eguipment are recogrised in the income staterent as incurred.

Management regularly considers whether there are any
indications of impairment to carrying values of property, plant
and equipment, Impairment reviews are based on risk adjusted
discounted cash flow projections. Significant judgement s
applied to the assumptions underlying these projections which
include estimated discount rates, growth rates, future selling
prices and direct costs. Changes to these assumptions could
have a matenal impact on the financial position of the Group
and on the result for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Intangible assets

a. Goodwill
Goodwill anses on the acquisition of subsidianes, and it
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisiion-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held
interest measured at fair value 1s less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recogrised directly in
the income statement.

b. Research and development
Expenditure on pure research is recogmised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Under JAS 38,
expenditure on development where research findings
are applied to a plan or design for the production of new
ar substantially improved products and processes 1s
capitabsed if the product or process will give nise to future
economic benefits and where the cost of the capitatised
asset can be measured relably. Expenditure capitalised
1s stated as the cost of matenals, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of cverheads less accumulated
amortisation. The length of development lifecycles, broad
nature of much of the research undertaken and uncertainty
until a late stage as to ulimate commercial viability of a
potential product can mean that the measurement criteria of
IAS 38 regarding the probability of future economic benefits
and the reliability of allpcating costs may not be met, in
which case expenditure 1s expensed as ncurred.

¢. Customer relationships and other intangible assets
Customer relationships and other intangible assets are
stated at cost or when arising in @ business combination,
estimated farr value, less accumulated amortisation.

d. Amortisation
Amortisation 1s charged to the income statement on
a straight line basis over the estimated useful ives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Goodwill
is systematically tested for impairment at each balance
sheet date. Other intangible assets, comprising customer
fists, customer refationships, manufactuning processes
and procedures, trademarks, non-compete clauses and
patents, are amortised over their estimated useful ives
which range from 5 to 24 years.

impairment

The carrying amount of non-current assets other than deferred
tax 1s compared to the asset's recoverable amount at each
balance sheet date where there 1s an indication of imparment.
For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite useful hfe and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount 1s estimated at each balance sheet date.

Each year the Group carnes out imparment tests of its gocdwill
and other indefinite hfe intangible assets which requires an
estimate 1o be made of the value in use of its cash generating
urts {{CGUs'). These value in use calculations are dependent
on estimates of future cash flows and long term growth rates of
the CGUs. Further details of these estimates are given in note 10.

An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever the carrying
amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Imparrment iosses are recognised In the iIncome statement.
impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allecated to
CGUs and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
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assets in the uniton a pro-rata basis. A CGU s the smallest
ident/fiable group of assets that generates cash infiows that
are largely iIndependent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets.

The recoverable amcunt is the greater of their farr value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of meney and the risks specific
tc the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 1s
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs,

Leased assets

Leases which result in the Group receiving substantially all of
the nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset are treated as
finance leases. An asset held under a inance lease is recorded
In the balance sheet and depreciated over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term. Future instalments net
of finance charges are Included within borrowings. Minimum
lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge,
which 1s allccated to each period to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining hability and charged to
the Income statement and reduction of the outstanding liability.
Rental costs ansing from operating leases are charged on a
straight line basis over the penod of the lease.

Investments
investments compnsing loans and receivables are stated
at amortised cost,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realsable value is the estimated selling price, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost,
which 1s based on a weighted average, includes expenditure
incurred in acquinng stock and bringing it to its existing location
and cendition, In the case of manufactured ynventories and work
In progress, costincludes an appropriate share of overheads
attributable to manufacture, based on normal operating capacity,

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non interest beanng and are stated at
therr nominal amount which is the original invoiced amount less
prowvision made for bad and doubtful receivables. Estimated
irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of receivables
and historical experience. Individual trade recervables are
written off when management deem them no longer to be
collectable.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets containing a non-
current asset (a disposal group), 1s classified as held for sale

if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale
rather than through continuing use, it 1s available for immediate
sale and 1s highly probable within 1 year, On intial classification
as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are
measured at the lower of previous carrying amount and far
value less costs to seil with any adjustments taken to profit or
loss. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent
remeasurement,

A discontinued operation is a companent of the Group's
business that represents a separate major ine of business

or geographic area of operations or 1s a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale, that has been disposed of,
has been abandoned or that meets the cniteria to be classified
as held for sale.




Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call
deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or less. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose

of the statement of cash flows.

Borrowings

Borrowings are inbially measured at cost (which 1s equal to

the far value at inception), and are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Any difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs
and the settlement or redemption of borrowings 1s recognised
over the terms of the borrowings using the effective interest
rate method.

Trade payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing borrowings and
are initially measured at fair value and subsequently carned
at amortised cost.

Provisions

A provision I1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect

Is matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the nsks specific to the habiity.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group

has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the
restructuring has either commenced or has been announced
publicly. In accordance with the Group's environmental policy
and applicable legal requirements, a provision for site
restoration in respect of contaminated land 1s recognised when
the land 1s contaminated, Provisions for environmental 1ssues
are jJudgemental by ther nature, particularly when considering
the size and timing of remediation spending, and more difficult
to estimate when they relate to sites no longer directly controlled
by the Group.

Pension and other post retirement benefits

In respect of the Group's defined benefit schemes, the Group's
net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and pnor penods, that benefit 1s discounted to determine its
present value, and the farr value of any plan assets 1s deducted.
The liability discount rate 1s the yield at the balance sheet date on
AA credit rated bonds that have matunty dates approximating to
the terms of the Group's abligations, Pension and post retirement
liabilties are calculated by qualified actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. Following the introduction of the revised

IAS 19 Employee Benefits standard, the net interest on the
defined benefit hability consists of the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and the interest Income an plan assets, both
calculated by reference to the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the start of the period.

The Group recogrises actuarial gains and losses in the penod
in which they occur through the statement of comprehensive
income. The Group alsc cperates a small number of defined
contribution schemes and the contributions payable during the
year are recognised as incurred. Due to the size of the Groug's
pension scheme assets and liabilities, relatively small changes
In the assumphions can have a significant impact on the
expense recorded in the ncome statement and on the pension
lability recorded in the balance sheet.
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Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from
equity. When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the censideration paid, including directly
attnbutable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares by the Company are classified as treasury
shares and are presented as a deductien from total equity.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nsks The Group
does not hold or 1ssue dervative financial instruments for
trading purposes. However, denvatives that do not qualfy

for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments,
Due to the requirement to measure the effectiveness of hedging
instruments, changes in market conditions can result in the
recognition of unrealised gains or losses on hedging
instruments in the ncome statement.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at

fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value

1$ recogrised immediately in the income statement. However,

where derivatives gualify for hedge accounting, recognition

of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is
their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the
present value of the quoted forward price.

a. Cash flow hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the vanability i1 cash flows of a recogrised asset
or lability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the
effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument 1s recognised directly In the hedging reserve.
Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recogrised
immediately in the Income statement.

Amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
and loss in the periods when the hedged item 1s recognised
in profit or loss, In the same line of the Income statement as
the recognised hedged item. However when the forecast
transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition of

a non-financial asset the gains or losses previously
accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and
included in the intial measurement of the cost of the
non-financial asset.

b, Fair value hedges
Where a denvative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the varability in a fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, all changes
In the farr value of the derivative are recognised immediately
In the income statement.

The carrying value of the hedged item (s adjusted by the
change in farr value that 1s attnbutable tc the nsk being
hedged (evenif it is normally carned at cost or amortised
cost} and any gains or losses on remeasurement are
recognised iImmediately in the iIncome statement

(even if those gains would normally be recognised
directly In reserves).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the
Group 1s demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment
before the normal retirement date. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised if the Group has made
an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that
the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can
be estimated refiably.

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods 1s measured at the fair value

of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade
discounts and rebates. Revenue 1s recogrised in the mcome
statement only where there 1s evidence that the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer and where the collectability of revenue is reascnably
assured. This may occur, depending on the individual customer
relationship, when the product has been transferred to a freight
carrer, when the customer has received the product or, for
consignment stock held at customers’ premises, when usage
reports for the relevant penod have been compiled. Where
goods are shipped but the Group continues to bear insurance
risk unti they reach ther destination, revenue (s cnly recognised
when the goods reach their destination.

Other expenses

Cther expenses are administration costs incurred and paid by
the Group's pension schemes, which relate primarnily to former
employees of legacy businesses.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest ncome on funds invested
and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
taken to the income statement. Interest income 1s recognised
as It accrues, using the effective interest method. Finance costs
comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the
discount on provisions, dividends on preference shares
classified as habibties, foreign currency losses and changes in
the fair value of financial assets at fair value taken to the income
statement. All borrowing costs are recognised in the iIncome
statement using the effective interest method,

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or lass for the year comprses current
and deferred tax. Income tax 1s recognised in the income
staternent except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly n equity or in other comprehensive mcome. Current fax
is the expected tax payable on the taxable sncome for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previocus years.
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A deferred tax asset s recognised cnly to the extent that it

is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable agamst
which the asset can be utilsed. Deferred tax is provided on
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences
are not previded for the initial recogmition of goodwill; the intial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit olher than in a business combination, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expecied
manner of realisation or settlerent of the carrying amount of
assets and jiabilmes, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

The Group is required to estimate the income tax in each of

the junisdictions in which it operates. This requires an estimation
of current tax hability together with an assessment of the
temporary differences which arise as a consequence of
different accounting and tax treatments. The Group operates

in 2 number of countries in the world and 1s subject to many tax
junsdictions and rules. As a consequence the Group is subjest
to tax audits, which by their nature are often complex and can
require several years to conclude. Management's judgement

1s required to determine the total provision for income tax.
Amaounts are accrued based on management’s interpretation

of country specific tax law and Ikelihood of settlement. However,
the actual tax habiliies could differ from the position and in such
events an adjustment would be required in the subsequent
period which could have a material impact. Tax benefits are

not recognised unless it is probable that the tax positions are
sustainable. Once considered to be probable, management
reviews each matenal 1ax benefit to assess whether a provision
should be taken against full recognition of the benefit on the
basis of potential settlement through negotiation. This evaluation
reguires Judgements to be made including the forecast of future
taxable income.

Share based payments

The fair value of equity setlled share options, cash settled
shadow options and LTIP awards granied to employees s
recognised as an expense with a carresponding ncrease in
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread over
the peried during which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options/awards. The fair value of the options/
awards granted 1s measured using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options/
awards were granted. The amount recognised as an employee
expense is adusted to reflect the actual number of share
options/awards that vest except where forfeiture is only

due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.

Own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Trust
{‘ESOT")

Transactions of the Group sponsored ESOT are included in
the consolidated financial statements. In particular, the ESOT's
purchases of shares in the Company are charged directly

to equity.




Alternative performance measures

In the analysis of the Group's operating results, earnings per

share and cash flows, infermation is presented to provide readers

with additional perfermance indicators that are prepared on a

non-statutory basis. This presentation 1s regularly reviewed by

management o identify items that are unusual and other items

relevant to an understanding of the Group's performance and

long term trends with reference to their materiality and nature.

This additional infermation is not uniformiy defined by all

Companies and may not be comparable with simitarly titled

measures and disclosures by other organisations. The

non-statutory disclosures should not be viewed in 1solahon

or as an alternative to the equivalent statutory measure.

Information for separate presentation is considered as follows.

— Matenal costs or reversals arising from a significant
restructuring of the Group's operations are presented
separately

— Disposal of entives or investments in associates or joint
ventures or impairment of related assets are presented
separately

— Other matters arising due to the Group's acquisition, such as
adjustments to contingent consideration, payment of retention
bonuses, acquisiton costs and fair value adjustments for
acquired assets made in accordance with IFRS 13 are
separately disclosed In aggregate

- If a change In an accounting estimate for provisions, including
environmental provisions, results in a material gain or loss,
that is presented separately

— Cther items the Directors may deem to be unusual as a result
of their size and/or nature.

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of

amendments 10 IFRSs 1ssued by the Internaticnal Accounting

Standards Board (|IASB) that are mandatonly effective for

accounting periods that begin on or after 1 January 2017,

Their adoption has not had any maternial impact on the disclosures

or on the amounts reporled in lbese inancial statements:

- |AS 7 {amendments) Cisclosure Inhiative

~ |AS 12 {amendments} Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

— Annual Improvements 1o IFRSs: 2014-2016 Cycle

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authensation of these financial statements, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that
have been i1ssued but are not effective for periods starting on
1 January 2017, but will be effective for later periods.
— IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
— IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
- |FRS 16 Leases
- IFRS 2 (amendments) Classificaticn and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment Transactions
- IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration
— IFRIC 23 Uncertamty over Income Tax Treatments

The Directors have done an initial assessment of IFRS 8 and
IFRS 156, and they do not believe they will have a matenal impact
on the financial statements of the Group in future pericds The
Directors have done an inital assessment of IFRS 16, and they
do not beleve it will have a matenal impact on the net profit of
the Group In future perads. Further details of the leases held

by the Group are given in nole 22

The Greup 1s currently in the process of performing a further

detalled review on Ine impact of these new standards. Details
of the review will be provided in the Half-year report 2018
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2. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Business segments

The Group has determined its operating segments on the basis
of those used for management, internal reporting purposes and
the allocation of strategic rescurces. In accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 8, the Group's chief operating decision maker
1s the Board of Directors. The three reportable segments,
Specialty Products, Surfactants and Chromium, each have
distinct product groupings and, with the exception of
Surfactants which shares a common management structure
with Specialty Products, separate management structures.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment and those that may be reasonably
allocated from corporate activities. Presentation of the
segmental results 1s on a basis cansistent with those used for
reporting Group results. Principal activities of the reportable
segments are as follows:

Specialty Products
- Production of rheological and other specialty additives,
compounded products and colourants.

Chromium
- Production of chromium chemicals.

In 2017, the Surfactants business, which 1s involved Iin
the production of surface active ingredients, was reclassed
as discontinued operations (see note 32),

Inter-segment pricing 1s set at a level that equates to the
manufacturing cost of the product plus a commercially
apprepriate mark up.

Unallocated items and those relating to corpoerate functions
such as tax and treasury are presented in the tables overleaf
as central costs

Following a review In December 2017 ot the application

of IFRS 8 (Operating Segments) the Group has decided that,
from 1 January 2018, the segments within continuing operations
that should be disclosed are as follows®

~ Coatings

- Energy

~ Personal Care

— Chromium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

2. OPERATING SEGMENTS CONTINUED
Segmental analysis for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017

Specialty Segment Central mn-:-i‘:r':f:llnagf Discontinued Total of all

Products Chromium totals costs operations parati perations

$million $million $million $million $million $million $million

Revenue 611.0 186.7 T97.7 - 7977 478 8455
Internal revenue - (15.0) {15.0) - (15.0) (0.2) {15.2)

Revenue from external customers 611.0 171.7 7827 - 782.7 476 B30.3

Operating profit before allocations 95.8 29.6 125.4 (34.0) 91.4 58 97,2
Head office cost allocations (2.3) {0.8) {3.1) 3.1 - - -

Profit/loss) before interest 93.5 28.8 122.3 {30.9) 91.4 5.8 97.2
Other expenses - - - (1.2} {1.2) - (1.2)

Finance income - - - 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Finance expense - - - (11.9) {11.9} - (11.9)
Taxation — after adjusting tems - - - (22.5) {22.5} {0.9) {23.4)

Taxation — on adjusting items - - - 56.7 56.7 - 56.7

Profit for the year 93.5 28.8 122.3 (9.6} 127 4.9 176

2017
Total of

Spacialty Segment continuing Asset held Total of all

Products Chromium totals Central operations for sale operations

$million $million Smillion $roillion $million $milhion $million

Fixed assets 721.7 75.3 797.0 139.7 936.7 423 979.0

Inventaries 101.8 1.8 143.4 0.2 143.6 6.8 150.4

Trade and other receivables 80.6 251 115.7 8.9 124.6 9.1 133.7

ACT recoverable - - - 16.2 16.2 - 16.2

Dervatives - - - 0.9 0.9 - 0.9

Tax assets - - - 4.5 4.5 - 4.5

Cash and cash equivalents - - - 55.0 55.0 - 55.0

Segment assets 913.9 142.2 1,056.1 225.4 1,281.5 58,2 1,339.7
Trade and other payables (73.1} (30.6) {103.7) {14.0) (117.7) {15.2} (132.9)
Cperating provisions {1.4) (15.9) (17.3) {15.4) (32.7) (3.0} (35.7)
Bank overdrafts and loans - - - (346.1) {346.1) - (348.1)
Current tax habilities - - - (14.1} (14.1) 4.7 (18.8)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - {10.5} (10.5) - (10.5)
Deferred 1ax liabilities - - - {93.4) {93.4) - (93.4)
Segment liabilities (74.5) (46.5) {121.0) (493.5) {614.5) (22.9) (637.4)
Net assets 839.4 95.7 9351 (268.1) 667.0 35.3 702.3
Capital additions 24.4 1.3 BT 34 391 6.3 454
Depreciation and armortisation {26.5) (8.8} {35.3) (1.2} (36.5) 3.2 (39.7)

North United Rest of Rast of Oiscontinued

America Kingdom Europe the World operations Total

Information by geographic area $million $million $million $million $milllon $million
Revenue from external customers 283.2 227 165.9 310.9 47.6 830.3
Non-current assets 787.9 59.4 49.5 60.6 42.3 999.7
Capital addiions 29.7 3.0 2.2 4.2 8.3 454
Depreciation and amortisation (26.1) (1.5) 4.5) 4.4) (3.2) (39.7)
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Segmental analysis for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016
Total of

Specialty Segment Central continuing Discontinued Total of all

Products Chromium tolals costs operations operations operaticns

Smillion Smilon Smillion $million Imilhon Smilhon $mitlion

Revenue 460.4 168.8 629.2 - 629 2 431 672.3
Internal revenue - {12.6) (12 6) - (12.8) (0.2) {12.8)
Revenue from external customers 460.4 156.2 616.6 - 616.6 429 659.5
Operaing profit before allocations 79.7 24.5 104.2 {19.1) 85.1 (0.6) 84.5
Head office cost allocations (2.2} (0.9) (3.1 31 - - -
Profit/(loss) before interest 775 23.6 101.1 {16.0) 851 (0.6) 84.5
Other expenses - - - (1.4) {14) - (1.4)

Finance income - - - 0.1 0.1 - 01
Finance expense - - - {7.7) (7.7) - (7.7}
Taxation - after agjusting items - - - (10.9) {109) {0.2) (11.1)
Taxation — on adjusting tems - - - 37 3.7 - 37

Profit for the year 775 23.6 101.1 (32.2) 68.9 (0.8 68.1

2016
Specialty Segment

Products Surfactants Chromium totals Central Total

$million Smillion $mulhion $million $mullion $milhon

Fixed assets 495.5 218 729 590 2 (13.0) 57772

Inventories 78.4 36 38.3 121.3 - 121.3

Trade and other receivables 624 6.9 249 84.2 1.8 96.0

ACT recoverable - - - - 23.0 23.0

Deferred tax assets - - - - 16.1 16.1

Cash and cash equivalents - - - 82.6 82.6

Segment assets 636.3 32.3 1371 805.7 110.5 916.2
Trade and other payables (60.8) (7.9) (22.8) {91.5) {7.4) {98.9}
Operating provisions (34) (2.3) (17.9) (23.6) (15.6) (39.2)
Bank overdrafts and loans - - - - 51 (5.1
Dervatives - - - - (0.4 (0.4}
Current tax liabilities - - - - 8.7 (6.7)
Retirement benefit obiigations - - - - (30.1) (30.1)
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - {(108.7} (108.7)
Segmaeant liabilities (64.2) (10.2) (40.7) {115.1) (174 O} {289.1)

Net assets 572.1 221 96.4 6580.6 (63.5) 627.1
Capital additions 214 32 11.6 36.2 16 378
Depreciation and amortisation (16.8) (1.7} (8.5) (270) 1.0 (28.0)

North United Rest of Rest of the

America Kingdem Europe World Tolal

Information by geographic area Smillign $rillicn Fmilhcn $million $rmilion

Revenue from external customers 223.8 205 167.8 247.4 £559.5

Non-current assets 4454 334 40.7 57.7 577.2
Capitat additions 234 1.1 8.9 44 37.8
Depreciation and amaortisation (20.0 (1.2) (2.6) 4.2 (28.0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

3. FINANCE INCOME

2017 2016
$million $million
Interest on bank depocsits 0.2 0.1
4. FINANCE COSTS
2017 2016
$million Smilhon
Interest on bank loans 97 0.8
Pension and other post retirement liabiities 11 1.0
Increase in environmental provistons due to change in discount rate (see note 5) - 4.5
Unwind of discount on provisions 14 14
11.9 .7
5. ADJUSTING ITEMS AND ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Adpusting Adjusting
Hems on items on
discontinued 2016 discontinued 2016
2017 aperatians 2017 resiated aperations restatad
$million $milllon $million $mullion $milion $milion
Restructuring 0.6 - 0.6 2.0 0.3 3.0
Business transformation 34 - 34 24 ~ 2.4
Environmental provisions
Increase in provisions due to additional remediation
work identified 21 - 21 35 - 35
Increase in provisions due to change i discount rate - - - 4.5 - 4.5
SummitReheis acquisition costs 9.7 - 9.7 0.8 - 0.8
Uplift due to fair value of SummitRehess inventory 4.0 - 4.0 - - -
Sale of Colourants business and closure of Jersey City site {2.5) - (2.5) - - -
Release of legal provision - {0.7) {0.7) - - -
Disposal costs 2.2 0.3 2.5 - - -
Amaortisation of intangibles arising on acquistion 1.8 - 11.8 2.8 - 2.8
31.3 {0.4) 309 16.7 0.3 17.0
Tax credit In relation to adjusting tems 5.7) - (5.7) (3.1 - 3.7
Adjusting tax tem (US lax reform) (51.0) - {51.0) - - -
(25.4) (0.4) (25.8) 13.0 0.3 13.3
Cash flows relating to adjusting items {10.5) (5.1

A number of items have been recorded under ‘adjusting items’ in 2017 by virtue of their size and/or one time nature in, in line with
our accounting policy in Note 1, 1in order to provide a better understanding of the Group's results. The netimpact of these items
on the Group prefit before tax for the year 1s a debit of $30.9m (2016. debit of $17.0m). The items fall into a number of categones,

as summarised below

Restructuring - in 2016 this related to the appointment of a new CEO, CFO and costs associated with reorganising the

management structure In subsequent years, the cost relates io the IFRS 2 cost of buyouts associated with the new CEO and CFO.

Business transformation - in 2016 a review to define the long term strategy and internal transformation necessary was

performed by an external consultant. The costs incurred In 2017 relate to delivery of the global key account management, and working
capital improvement, phases of the transformation, following this strategic review.

Increase in environmental provisions due to additional remediation work identified — assessments at the end
of both 2016 and 2017 have resulted in an increased provision required at a number of our legacy sites. As these costs relate

o non-operational facilites the costs associated are classed as adjusting items.

increase in environmentai provisions due to change in discount rate —in 2016, the rate used to discount future abiitfes
relating 10 the environmental provisions was reduced from 4.5% to 2.5%. This resulted in an increase in the environmental provisions
required. As the provisions relate to non-operational faciites the interest charge required was classed as classed as an adjusing

item. There has been no change in the discount rate for 2017.
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SummitReheis acquisition costs — these are one-off costs associated with the acquisition of SummitRehers — primarily the write
off of the set-up costs of the previous financing syndicate, now replaced by a new facility, bank and lawyers fees, retention bonuses
for SummitReneis employees.

Uplift due to fair value of SummitReheis inventory - in accordance with IFRS 3, inventory held within SummitRehers was
revalued to fair value on acquisition, representing an uplift of $4m over the book value. As all stock acquired with SummitRehers
was sold by the year end, the additional expense recognised in cost of sales due to this fair value uphft has been classed as

an adjusting item.

Sale of Colourants business and closure of Jersey City site —in March 2017, Elementis disposed of its US Colourants
business and closed the Jersey City site. The profit on sale of the business and costs associated with the closure of the ste are
classed as adjusting item. The site 1s planned to be disposed of In 2018.

Release of legal provision — during 2017 the Group released $0.7m from a provision set up in 2015 relating to a regulatory case
in Europe.

Disposal costs —n 2017 Elementis incurred a number of costs associated with the sale of the Delden facility and Surfactants
business (planned for 2018). As the profit on sale of the assets and business will be treated as an adjusting item in 2018 the one-off
associated costs are being classed similarly in 2017,

Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition — in previous years, Elementis has not adjusted operating profit for the
amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition. Following the acquisition of SummitRehers, the Directors reviewed this policy and
concluded that exciuding such a charge from the operating profit would provide readers of the accounts with a better understanding
of the Group's results on its operating activiies and, as such, this charge 1s now included within adjusting items.

Tax on adjusting items - this 1s the net impact of tax relating to the adjusting items listed above.

Adjusting tax item (US tax reform) — Clementis has recognised a reduction in the net deferred tax hability ansing from timing
differences and US goodwill amortisation recognised in the US for tax purposes. Given the one-off nature of the reduction to future
tax habilities, this has been recognised as an adjusting item.

To support comparability with the financial statements as presented in 2017, the reconciliation to the adjusted consolidated income
slaternent 1s shown below.

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 Pmﬁt2 3;;
Profit and Profit and Profit and Adjusting Adjusting Adjusting less after
loss on loss on loss on iterns on itams on Items. adjusting
continuing  discontinued total cohtinuing  disconlinued ontotal tems on total
operations operations operations operations operations operations operations
$million Smillion Smillion Smillion Smiillion $milion $million
Revenue 782.7 47.6 830.3 - - - 8303
Cost of sales (487.6) (32.8) (520.4) - - - {520.4)
Gross profit 2951 14.8 309.9 - - - 309.9
Distribution costs {98.1) {6.3) {104.4) - - - (104.4)
Administrative expenses (105.6) (2.7 {108.3) N3 {0.4) 309 {77.4)
Profit on property dispesal - - - - - - -
Cperating profit 91.4 5.8 97.2 31.3 {0.4) 30.9 1281
Other expenses {1.2) - (1.2) - - - (1.2)
Finance income 0.2 - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Finance cosls (11.9) - {11.9) - - - {11.9)
Profit before income tax 78.5 5.8 84.3 31.3 {0.4) 30.9 115.2
Tax 34.2 (0.9) 33.3 (56.7) - (56.7) (23.49)
Profit for the year 112.7 4.9 117.6 (25.4) {0.4) (25.8) 91.8
Altributable to
Equity holders of the parent 1127 4.9 17.8 (25.4) {0.4) {25.8) 91.8
Earnings per share
Basic {cents) 24.3 1.1 25.4 (5.5) {0.1) {5.6) 19.8
Dituted (cents) 24.0 1.0 25.0 (5.4} {0.1) (5.5) 19.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

5. ADJUSTING ITEMS AND ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

2016
2016 2016 2016 2016 Profit and
Profit and 2018 Profit and Agiusting 2016 Adjusting loss after
loss on Profitand toss oh ems an Adjusting iems on adjusting
centinuing joss on total continuing items on iotal  items on total
operations  ciscontinued operalions cperations  discontinued operations aperations
restated operations restated restated operations restated restated
Smillion $million $million Smilion $million $smillion $million
Revenue 616.6 42.9 659.5 - - - 659.5
Cost of sales (384.6) {35.9) 420.5) - - - {420.5)
Gross profit 232.0 70 239.0 - - - 239.0
Distribution costs (72.2) (7.8) (80.0} - - - (80.0)
Administrative expenses {74.7) 0.2 (74.5) 12.2 0.3 2.5 {62.0)
Profit on property disposal - - - - - - -
QOperating profit 851 {0.6) 84.5 12.2 0.3 12.5 a7.0
Other expenses (1.4) - (1.4} - - - (1.4)
Finance income 0.1 - cA - - - 01
Finance costs (7.0 - {7.7) 4.5 - 4.5 3.2)
Profit before income tax 761 (0.6) 75.5 16.7 0.3 170 925
Tax {7.2) {0.2) (7.4) (3.7) - (3.7) (11.%)
Profit for the year 68.9 (0.8) 681 13.0 0.3 13.3 81.4
Attributable {o:
Equity holders of the parent 68.9 (0.8} 681 13.0 0.3 13.3 81.4
Earnings per share
Basic (cents) 14.9 {0.2) 14.7 2.8 04 29 17.6
Diluted (cents) 14.8 {0.2) 146 2.8 0.1 28 17.4
To support comparability with the financial statements as presented in 2016, a reconciiation from reported profit/{loss) before
interest to adjusted profit before Income tax by segment 1 shown below for each year
2017
Total of
Speclalty Segmen! Central continuing Discontinusd
Products Chromium totals costs operations operations Total
$million Smillion Smillion $million $million Smillion $million
Reported operating profit/(loss) 93.5 28.8 1223 (30.9) 914 5.8 97.2
Adjusting ltems
Restructuring {0.3) - 0.3) 0.9 0.6 - 0.6
Rusiness transformation - - - 3.4 34 - 3.4
Increase in environmental provisions due
to additional remediation work identified - 1.1 14 1.0 21 - 21
SummitReheis acquisition costs 26 - 26 71 97 - 9.7
Uphft due to farr value of SummitReheis
inventory 4.0 - 4.0 - 4.0 - 4.0
Sale of Colourants business and closure
of Jersey City site (2.5) - (2.5) - (2.5) - (2.9)
Release of legal provision - - - - - {0.7) 07
Disposal costs 041 - 04 21 22 0.3 2.5
Amortisation of mtangibles arising
on acquisition 11.6 0.2 1.8 - 11.8 - 1.8
Adjusted operating profit/{loss} 109.0 3041 139.1 (16.4) 1227 5.4 128.1
Other expenses - - - (1.2} (1.2) - (1.2)
Finance income - - - 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Finance costs - - - (11.9} {11.9) - (11.9}
Adjusted profit before income tax 109.0 3041 1391 {29.3) 109.8 54 115.2
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Total of
Specialty Segment continuing
Products totals Central aperations  Discontinued Total
restated Chromium restated costs restated operations restated
$million $million $million $milhon $mitlion $rmlisn $rrllion
Reported operating profit/(loss) 77.5 23.6 1011 {15.7} 85.4 0.9) 84.5
Adjusting ltems
Restructuring 1.3 - 1.3 1.4 2.7 0.3 3.0
Business transformation - - - 24 2.4 - 2.4
Increase in environmental provisions due
to additional remedial work identified - 3.5 3.5 - 3.5 - 3.5
Acauisition costs - - - 0.8 0.8 - 08
Amortisation of Intangibles arising
on acquisition 28 - 2.8 — 2.8 - 28
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 81.6 271 108.7 (11.1) 97.8 (0.8 97.0
Other expenses - - - {1.4) (14) - {1.4)
Finance income - - - 0.1 0.1 - 041
Finance costs - - - (7.7) (7.7) - (7.0
Adjusting items
Finance costs - - - 4.5 45 - 4.5
Adjusted profit before income tax 81.6 271 108.7 {15.6) 931 (0.6) 82.5

Areconciliation from reported profit for the year to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {(EBITDA) 1s provided
to support understanding of the summarised cash flow included within the Finance report on page 24

2016 2016

2047 2017 2017 Prefitand 2018 Prafit and

Profit and Profit and Profit and loss on Profitand loss on

loss en loss on losson sontnuing loss on total

continuing  discontinued total operatons  disconthued operatons

operations operations operations restated operaticns restated

$million $rmillion Smillion $million $million $milhon

Profit for the year 112.7 4.9 117.6 68.9 (0.8) 68.1

Adjustments for

Finance income (0.2 - (0.2} 0.1 - (0.1}

Finance costs and other expenses after adjusting items 131 - 1341 4.6 - 4.6

Tax charge (34.2) 0.9 (33.3) 7.2 0.2 74

Depreciation 2nd amortisation 38.0 1.7 39.7 26.3 17 28.0
Excluding intangibles arising on acquisition (11.8) - (11.8) (2.8) - (2.8}

Adjusting items impacting profit before tax N3 (0.4) 30.9 167 0.3 17.0

EBITDA 148.9 71 156.0 120.8 14 122.2

There are also a number of key perfermance indicators (KPIs') on pages 14 and 15, the reconciliations to these are given below.

Operating cash flow

Operating cash flow 1s defined as the net cash flow from operating activilies less net capital expenditure but excluding Income taxes
paid or received, Interest paid or received, pension contributions net of current service cost and adjusting items.

Contribution margin

The Group's contribution margin, which 1s defined as sales less all vanable costs, divided by sales and expressed as a percentage.

2017 2016

$milllon Smillien

Revenue 830.3 659.5
Variable costs {437.4) (348.7)
Nan variable costs (50.2) {359)
Cost of sales {487.6) (384 9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

5. ADJUSTING ITEMS AND ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

Adjusted group profit before tax

Adjusted Group profit before tax is defined as the Group profit before tax on total operahons (both continuing and discontinued)
after adjusting tems, excluding adjusting items relating to tax.

Return on operating capital employed

The return on operating capital employed (‘ROCE') 1s defined as operating profit after adjusting items divided by operating capital
employed, expressed as a percentage. Operating capital employed comprises fixed assets (excluding goodwill), working capital
and operating provisions. Cperating provisions include self insurance and environmenital provisions but exclude retirement
benefit obhgations.

Average trade working capital to sales ratio

The trade working capital to sales ratio is defined as the 12 month average trade working capital divided by sales, expressed as

a percentage. Trade working capital comprises inventories, trade receivables (net of provisions) and trade payables It specifically
excludes repayments, capital or interest related receivables or payables, changes due fo currency movements and items classified
as other receivables and other payables.

Adjusted operating profit/operating margin
Adjusted operating profit is the profit denved from the normal operations of the business. Adjusted operating margin 1s the ratic
of operating profit, after adjusting items, to sales.

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2016
2017 restated
$million $million
Current tax on continuing operations:
Recognition of UK Advance Corperation Tax credits - -
UK corporation tax 6.9 6.6
Overseas corporation tax on continuing operations 16.0 8.7
Adjustments in respect of prior years:
United Kingdoem - -
Overseas - (1.1)
Total current tax 229 15.2
Deferred tax:
United Kingdom 1.0 0.2
Qverseas {59.3) (8.4)
Adjustment in respect of prior years:
United Kingdom 0.3 -
Overseas 0.9 0.2
Total deferred tax {57.1) (8.0
Income tax {credit)/expense for the year (34.2) 7.2
Comprising:
Income tax expense for the year (34.2) 7.2
Adjusting items*
Overseas taxation on adjusting items 57 19
UK taxation on adjusting items - 18
Recognition of change in rate of tax (US) 51.0 -
Taxation on adjusting items 56.7 37
Income tax expense for the year after adjusung items 225 109

*  See note 5 for details of adjusting items
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The tax charge on profits represents an effective rate after adjusting tems for the year ended 31 December 2017 of 20.5% {2016:
11.7%). The Group 1s international. It has cperations in several junsdictions and benefits from cross border financing arrangements.
Accordingly, tax charges of the Group in future penods will be affected by the profitability of operations in different junsdictions,
changes to tax rates and regulations in the junsgictions within which the Group has operationss, as well as the ongoing impact of the
Group's fundmng arrangements, In 2017, the Group's tax rate was significantly impacted by the reduction in US tax rates as a result of
the Tax and Jobs Act which made several major changes to the US tax code including importantly a reduction in the US Federal tax

rate 1o 21% (from 35%). This change gave nise to the $51.0m tax adjusting item.

The total charge for the year ¢an be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

2016 2018
2017 2017 restated restated
$millicn per cent Smillon percent
Frofit before tax on continuing operations 78.5 76.1
Tax on ordinary activities at 19.25 per cent (2016' 20 00 per cent)* 151 19.2 15.2 20.0
Difference in overseas effective tax rates (1.2) {1.5) {3.0) {3.9)
Income not taxable and impact of tax efficient financing 4.3) {5.5) {4.6) {6.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6.0 7.6 0.5 0.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1.2 1.5 (09 (1.2
Recogrition of adjusting tax items {51.0) {64.9) - -
Tax charge and effective tax rate for the year (34.2) {43.6} 72 95
* The UK corperation tax rate will reduce to 17% from 1 April 2020, this recdduction was substantively enacted on 26 October 2015,
The tax charge related to discontinued operations 1s $0.9m {2016: $0.2m).
7. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit for the year including discontinued operations has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2017 2016
Smillion $rmilon
Employee costs (see Note 8) 126.9 1060
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains) 04 52
Research and development costs 8.6 7.9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 27.2 24.6
Amortisation of intangible assets 12.5 34
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 397 28.0
Profit/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3.2 0.5
Write off of inventory 3.3 1.5
Cost of Inventories recognised as expense 386.2 3121
Fees avallable to the Company’s auditor and its associates:
Audit of company 0.3 0.2
Audit of subsidianes 0.6 0.5
Audit related services — intenm review 04 0.2
Other audit related services — augit of tax returns - 0.1
Services related to corporate finance transactions 0.5 0.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

8. EMPLOYEES

2017 2016
$million Smillien
Employee costs’
Wages and salares 126.9 94.0
Social security costs 9.7 Al
Pension costs 57 4.9
142.3 106.0
Number Number
Average number of FTE employees™
Specialty Products 1,147 3880
Chromium 253 247
Central 17 15
Total from continuing operations 1,417 1.242
Discontinued operations 204 163
Total including discontinued operations 1,621 1,395
*  Fult time equivalent including contractors
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent 1s based
on the following:
Continuing Total
Confinuing Discontinued Total operations Discontinued of all aperations
operations operatons  of all operations restated operanons restated
2017 2017 2017 2016 2018 2016
$million $million $million $rmilion Smillion $milicn
Earnings:
Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 112.7 49 1176 68.7 (0.6} 68.1
Adjusting tems net of tax (25.4) (0.4) {25.8) 13.0 0.3 13.3
Adjusted earnings 87.3 4.5 91.8 817 (0.3) 81.4
2017 2016
million million
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of shares for the purpeoses of basic earnings per share 463.2 462.8
Effect of dilutive share options 6.3 39
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 469.5 466.7
Continuing Total
Confinuing Discontinued Total operations Disconbnued of all operations
operations operations  of all operations rgstated operations restated
2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2018
cents cents cents cents cents cents
Earnings per share:
Basic 24.3 1.1 254 14.9 (0.2) 147
Dituted 24.0 1.0 25.0 14.8 {0.2} 14.6
Basic after adjusting items 18.8 1.0 19.8 17.7 0.1 17.6
Diluted after adjusting items 18.6 0.9 19,5 17.5 0.1 17.4
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10. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other
intangible
Goodwill Brand assets Total
Srmulhon $million $milion $milion

Cost:
At 1 January 2016 3247 221 353 3821
Exchange differences {3.5) 0.5 - 30
Additions - - 3.8 3.8
At 31 December 2016 321.2 226 3941 382.9
Exchange differences 5.8 141 4.1 11.0
Additions - - 2.2 2.2
Intangibie assets ansing on the acquisition of SummitRehers 203.0 3.2 155.9 3621
Reclassification as held for sale (3.1) - (3.7) {6.8)
At 31 December 2017 526.9 26.9 197.6 751.4
Amortisation:
At 1 January 2016 - - 19.6 19.6
Charge for the year - - 34 3.4
At 31 December 2016 - - 23.0 23.0
Charge for the year - 08 1.7 125
Reclassification as held for sale - - (1.3} (1.3}
At 31 December 2017 - 0.8 334 34.2
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2017 526.9 264 164.2 717.2
At 31 December 2016 321.2 226 16.1 359.9
Al 1 January 2016 324.7 221 15.7 362.5

The amaortisation charge includes $0.4m (2016: $0.3m} in respect of discontinued operations related to the amortisation of capitalised
REAChH costs.

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units {'CGUs') that are expected
te benefit from that business combrmation,

All of the goodwill at 31 December 2017 relates to Elementis Specialty Products (2018, £318.5m), as the goodwill associated
with Elementis Surfactants (2017 $3.1m, 2016: $2.7m} 1s now classed as held for safe. There is no gocdwill associated with
Elementis Chromum.

The Group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill night be impaired The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value In use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the penod. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the ime value of meney and the risks specific
to the CGUs. In order to stress test the results over a wider range of conditions, management has expanded its testing to include
discount rates based on a vanety of equity nsk premiums and different capital structures that reflect the potential vanabity of nsk
within the CGUs. In this exercise a range of discount rates from 10.1% to 15.0% {2016 11 3% to 12.3%) was used.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent 3 year plans approved by management for the next 3 years
and extrapolates cash flows for the following 17 years based con estimated growth rates of 2.5%. The rates do not exceed the
average long term growth rate for the relevant markets and also take intc account potential, future capacity hmitations for the
Chromium business. Changes in seling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes
in the market. The results of the impairment testing using the assumptions discussed show that there 1s no indication that googwill
might be impaired.

The brand intangibles represent the value ascribed to the trading name and reputation of the Deuchem, Fancor, Watercryl,

Hi-Mar acquisitions and SummitReheis. The Group with the exception of SummitRehels considers these ta have significant and
ongoing value to the business thal will be maintained and it 1s therefore considered appropriate to assign these assets an indefinite
useful life and the brand relating to SummitReheis 1s being amortised over a peried of 3 years. Brand intangibles are tested annually
for mpairment using similar assumptions te the goodwill testing. The remaining intangible assels comprise the value ascnbed to
customer lists, patents and non-compete clauses, which are being amorlised over periods of 5 1o 24 years

Other intangible assets classed as held for sale at 31 December 2017 relate to capitalised REACH costs of $2.4m {2016, $1.6m}.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixtures

Land and Plant and fitings and Under
buldings machinery equipment construction Tatal
$milion $rmillion $milhgn Srmillion $milion

Cost:
At 1 January 2016 151.5 5474 475 16.5 762.9
Additiens - 1.2 - 328 34.0
Exchange differences (5.8) (32.9; (0.3} (0.3} {39.4}
Disposals (0.9) {3.7) 0.7) {0.2} {5.5)
Reclassificaiions (9.8) (31.2} 28 (30.2) (68.4)
At 31 December 2016 134.9 480.8 49.3 18.6 683.6
Additiens - 30 0.1 401 43.2
Exchange differences 6.2 255 1.9 1.5 351
Disposals (0.5) {14.8) (1.5) - (16.8)
Acquisitions through business combinations 8.3 8.5 09 1.1 18.8
Reclassifications 3.5 24.3 1.8 (29.6) —
Reclassification as held for sale {25.2) {117 3) {10.1) {9.9) (162.5)
At 31 December 2017 127.2 410.0 424 218 601.4
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2016 98.6 418.1 37.0 - 5517
Charge for the year 34 19.7 1.5 - 24.6
Exchange differences (5.6) (31.3) (0.4) - (37.3)
Disposals (0.1} {3.6) (0.6) - 4.3)
Reclassifications (12.0) (56 5) 0.1 - (68.4)
At 31 December 2016 84.3 344.4 376 - 466.3
Charge for the year 3.9 216 1.7 - 27.2
Exchange differences 4.1 217 1.6 - 274
Disposals (0.2) (11.8) (14) - (13.4)
Reclassifications (0.1} 641 - - -
Reclassification as held for sale (19.0) (97.0) (9.6) - (125.6)
At 31 December 2017 730 279.0 29.9 - 381.9
Net book value:
At 31 December 2017 54.2 1310 125 218 219.5
At 31 December 2016 50.6 1364 11.7 186 217.3
At 1 January 2016 529 1313 105 16.5 211.2

Group capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in these financial statements amounted to $ril (2016: $nil}.
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12. INVENTORIES

2017 2016
$million Smillion
Raw matenals and consumables 50.8 42.2
Work In progress 13.8 8.5
Finished goods and geods purchased for resale 79.0 70.2
143.6 121.3
Inventories are disclosed net of provisions for obsolescence of $5.8m (2016. $4.8m).
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
$million $millron
Trade receivables 109.9 88.7
Other receivables 41 3.3
Prepayments and accrued income 10.6 4.0
124.%6 96.0
14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2017 2016
$million $mition
Trade payables 53.6 52.7
Other taxes and social secunty - 1.0
Other payables 101 101
Accruals and deferred income 54.0 351
117.7 98.9
15. PROVISIONS
Environmental Self nsurance Restructuring Other Total
$millon $millien $milion $mulion Smillion
At 1 January 2017 31.4 2.5 1.3 4.0 39.2
Charged/{credited) to the income statement.
Increase In provisions due to change in discount rate - - - - -
Set up/irelease) of provisions 2.3 (0.3) (0.9 - 11
Unwinding of discount 1.1 - - - 1.1
Utiised during the year {8.1) (0.4) {0.5) (0.6) (76)
Currency translation differences 12 - 0.2 - 1.4
Additional provision on acguisition - 0.5 - — 0.5
Reclassified as held for sale 2.1 0.1 - (0.8) 30)
At 31 December 2017 278 2.2 0.1 2.6 32.7
Due withun 1 year 82 1.0 041 1.5 10.8
Due after 1 year 19.6 1.2 - 141 21.9

Environmental provisions relate to manufacturing and distribution sites including certain sites no longer owned by the Group

These provisions have been derived using a discounted cash flow methodology and reflect the extent to which itis probable that
expenditure will be incurred over the next 20 years. Included within environmental provisions are amounts in respect of all anticipated
costs related to the closure and remediation of the Chromium UK site at Eaglescliffe

Of the $2.3m charged 1o environmental provisions, $1.1m relates to additional remediation work identified at Eaglesclffe and Castle
Hayne Further detalls on these charges are included within adjusting tems (note 5).

Whilst a range of outcomes is possible, the Directors believe that the reasonably possible range for the emvironmental provision

1s from $21.3m to $38.0m

Self-insurance provisions represent the aggregate of cutstanding claims plus a projection of losses incurred but not reported.

1 The self-insurance provisions are expected to be utiised within 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

16. DEFERRED TAX AND ACT RECOVERABLE

Retrement  Accelerated  Amortisaten Other
benefit tax of US intangible Temporary Unreleved
plans  depreciation gooawill assets afferences tax losses Totat
Smulnon $million $milhon $milion $milhon $rillion $million
At 1 January 2016 9.9 (22.9) {94.4) - 8.6 - (98.8)
(Charge)/credit to the income statement 0.2 (6.5) 0.1) - 68 7.6 8.0
Credit to other comprehensive income (0.5) - - - - - (0.5)
Charge to retained earnings - - - - {0.4) - (0.4}
Currency translation differences 0.6 - - - (1.5) - (0.9)
At 1 January 2017 10.2 {29.4) (94.5) - 13.5 76 (82.6)
Arsing on acqguisition - - - (52.8} 0.3 - (52.5)
{Chargey/credit 1o the income statement (1.8} 71 35.0 15.5 1.2 - 57.0
Charge to other comprehensive income (7.3} - - - - - (7.3}
Charge to retained earnings - - - - (1.4) - (1.4
Currency translation differences {0.2) - - 0.6 (0.1 - 0.3
Reclassification as held for sale - 2.8 - - 0.5 - 3.3
At 31 December 2017 0.9 (19.9) (59.5) {36.7) 14.0 7.6 (93.2)
Deferred tax assets - - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Deferred tax liabilities 0.9 {19.5) (59.5) (36.7) 13.8 7.6 {93.4)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the extent that it 1s considered more likely than net that there will be taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted. Where this s not the case, deferred tax assets

have not been recognised There are no significant temporary differences ansing in connection with interests in subsidianes

and associates.

Deferred tax habiities are reduced for any deferred tax assets which exist within a jurisdiction where consolidated tax returns are

filed and where tax assets and labilities may be netted.

An asset of $42 Om was recognised In 2014 relating to UK advance corporation tax (ACT') credits which had previcusly been

unrecognised because of uncertainty over fuiure UK taxable profits. Movements in the ACT recoverable balance are shown below.

207 2016
Smillion $milion
At 1 January 23.0 34.0
Recognition of UK Advance Cerporation Tax credits - 27
Utiisation (8.8) 8.3)
Currency translation differences 1.8 (5.4)
At 31 December 16.2 23.0
There are no matenal losses where deferred tax assets have not been recognised.
17. SHARE CAPITAL
2017 2016
Smillion Smillien
Al 1 January 44,4 44.4
Issue of shares = ~
At 31 December 44,4 44.4

Details of share capital are set out in note 11 to the Parent company financial statements.
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18. OTHER RESERVES

Capntal

redemption Translation Hedging Share optons

reserve reserve reserve reserve Total

$milicn $million Smillion $million $mulion
Balance at 1 January 2016 158.8 (62.0) {7.9) 41 93.0
Share based payments - - - 2.6 2.6
Exchange differences - (17.9) - {C7) (18.6)
Increase in fair value of derivatives - - 0.6 - 0.6
Transfer - - - (2.4) (2.4)
AL 1 January 2017 158.8 {79.9) (73) 3.6 752
Share based payments - - - 28 2.8
Exchange differences - 227 - 01 228
Increase in farr value of derivatives - - 0.4 - 0.4
Transfer - - - (2.2} (2.2)
Balance at 31 December 2017 158.8 (57.2) (6.9) 4.3 99.0

The translation reserve compnses all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operaticns as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Company's net investment in a foreign subsidiary. The hedging
reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

19. BORROWINGS

2017 2016
$milhon $mullion
Bank loans 3481 51
The borrowings are repayable as follows
Within 1 year 27 5.0
In the fifth year 3434 0.1
346.1 5.1
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
2617 2016
per cent percent
Bank loans 27 1.2
Group borrawings were denominated as follows
Us Dollar Taiwan Dollar Brazilian Real Eurg Other Total
Bank lcans
31 December 2016 2.0 2.9 0.1 - 01 5.1
31 December 2017 305.0 27 - 384 - 34641

Of the US dallar berrowings, $mil millon was unsecured (2016 $mil millen), beanng interest at the refevant interbank rates plus a margmn.

The Taiwan dollar and remaining US dollar borrowings consisted of those secured by time deposits and those secured by charges
over vanous land and buildings in Taiwan.,

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Consolidated cash flow statement comprise the following

2017 2016
$million $million
Cash and cash equivalents 5§5.0 82.6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial Insfruments:
— Credit nisk

— Liquichity risk

— Market risk.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.
The Group's sk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropniate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to imits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market condritions and the Group's activities,

The Group's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's sk management policies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in rélation to the nsks faced by the Group. The Group's
Audit Committee s assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commitiee.

Credit risk
Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if 2 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails te meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group's recervables from customers.

Trade and ather receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of each customer. The demographics of
the Group's customer base, including the default nsk of the industry and country in which customers operate, has less of an influence
on credit nisk. No single customer accounts for a significant proportion of the Group's revenue.

Each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The Group’s review includes external ratings, where avallable, and in some cases bank references. Purchase
limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the Beard.
Customers that fail to meet the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis.

The Group establishes an allowance for mpairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other
receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that refates to individually significant exposures,
and a colleclive loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet
identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar assets.

Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit nsk through a treasury policy that imposes graduated hmits on the amount of funds that can
be deposited with counterparties by reference to the counterparties’ credit ratings, as defined by Standard & Poor's or Moody's.
Management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach

to managing liquidity 1S to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its abihties when due,

under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurmng unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The Group's funding policy is to have committed borrowings in place to cover at least 125% of the maximum forecast net borrowings
for the next 12 month penod, At the year end the Greup had $158.2m {2016. $113.4m) of undrawn committed facilities, of which
$131.6m expires after more than 1 year.

Market risk

Market nsk is the nisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's ncome
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The oljective of market nisk management is to manage and control market nsk
exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.

The Group uses dervatives in the ordinary course of business, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks.
All such transactions are carried out within the guideknes set by the Board,

Currency risk

The Group 1s expased to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a foreign Currency other than
the respective functional currencies of Group entities, pnmarily the US dollar and the euro. The Group hedges up to 100% of current
and forecast trade recevables and trade payables denominated in a foreign currency. The Group uses forward exchange contracts
to hedge its currency nsk, most with a maturity of less than 1 year from the reporting date.

Interest on borrowings 1s denominated in currencies that match the cash fiows generated by the underlying operations of the Group,
primarily US dollar, but also euro and pounds sterling. This provides an economic hedge and no dervatives are entered into.

In respect of cther monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensuras that its net exposure is

kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short term imbalances.
The Group’s investment in overseas subsidiaries 1s hedged by US dollar denominated drawdowns under the syndicated facility,
which migates the currency nsk ansing from the translation of a subsidiary's net assets.
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Interest rate risk
The Group's polisy Is to borrow at both fixed and floating interesl rates and to use interest rate swaps to generate the required
interest profile. The policy does not require that a specific proportion of the Group's borrowings are at fixed rates of interest.

Other market price risk

Equity price nsk arises frorm avallable-for-sale equity securities held within the Group's defined benefit pension obhgations,

In respect of the US schemes, management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment portfolio based on
market expectations. The primary goal of the Group’s iInvestment strategy Is to maximise investment returns, without excessive
risk taking, i order to meet partially the Group’s unfunded benefit obsligations; management 1s assisted by external advisers

in this regard. In respect of the UK scheme, the investment strateqy is set by the trustees and the Board 1s kept informed.

The Group does net enter into commodity contracts other than 1o meet the Group's expected usage and sale requirements;
such contracts are not settled net.

Capital management

The Board's policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintamn investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Board monitors the return on operating capital employed (ROCE') both including and
excluding geodwill, as defined on page 14. The Group's target is 1o achieve a ROCE (including goodwill) in excess of our
weighted average cost of capital,

The Board encourages employees to hold shares in the Company through the Group's savings related share option schemes.
At present, employees, including Executive Directors, hold 0.1% {2016' 0.2%,) of ordinary shares, or 1 5% (2016 1.8%) assuming
that all cutstanding options vest or are exercised.,

The new dividend policy 15 set out in the Chairman’s statement on pages 2 and 3.

2017 2018

$million $rrullion
Recognised in profit or loss
Interest Income on bank deposis 0.2 041
Financial income 0.2 01
Imterest on bani loan 8.7 (0.8}
Net pension interest (1.1) (1.0}
Net change in far value of cash flow hedges transferred from equity 0.3) (5.0)
Financial costs {11.1) (6.8)
Net financial costs {10.9) 6.7)
None of the above relates to financial assets or liabiities held at far value through profit and loss.

2017 2016

$million $million
Recognised directly in equity
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedge 0.1 03
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to income statement 0.3 0.8
Effective portion of change in fair value of net investment hedge 22.9 (1.4
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 0.2) {16.5)
Recognised in
Hedging reserve 0.4 0.6
Translation reserve 227 {17.9}

Derivatives used for hedging ncluded within current assets amounted to $0 9m at 31 December 2017 (2016° $nil) and $nil wathin
current labiities {2016. $0.4m)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2617 CONTINUED

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
Loans and borrowings

2017 2016
$million Smillion
Current liabilities
Unsecured bank lcan - -
Secured bank loan 27 5.1
Non-current liabilities
Secured bank loan 3434 -
Terms and debt repayment schedule
The terms and conditions of autstanding loans were as follows
2017 2616
Carrying Carrying
Year of Face valus amount Face value amount
currency maturity Smilllion $million Smilion Sraillion
Unsecured bank loan uso 2016 - - - -
Secured bank loan usD 2022 305.0 305.0 2.0 2.0
Secured bank loan TWD 2018 27 27 29 2.9
Secured bank loan BRL 2017 - - 0.1 0.1
Secured bank loan EURAPY 2022 384 384 0.1 0.1
Tolal interest-bearing fiabilities 3461 3461 5.1 51

The toans bear interest at interest rates of between 1.0% and 3.3%. The secured bank loans are secured by guarantees provided
by subsidiary companies and against land and bulldings in Taiwan with a carrying value of $1.6m.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum éxposure 1o credit nsk at the

reporting date was:

Carrying amount

2017 2016

$million Smillion

Trade receivables 109.9 88.7
Qther recewvables 41 33
Cash and cash equivalents 55.0 82.6
169.0 174.6

The maximum exposure to credit nisk far trade recewvables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

Carrying amount

2017 2016
$million Smillion
North America 30.2 17.9
Europe 30.8 258
Rest of the world 48.9 45.0
109.9 88.7
Impairment losses
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was.
Gross Impairment Gross Imparment
2017 2017 2018 2016
Smillion $millien $rmullion $milhion
Not past due 97.9 (0.6) 78.8 0.3)
Pastdue 0-30 days 8.6 - 89 -
Past due 31-120 days 3.3 - 1.2 -
Past due > 121 days 1.0 (0.3) 0.4 (0.3)
Total 110.8 (0.9) 89.3 (0.8}
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The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recevables during the year was as follows

2017 2016

$milion $milion

Balance at 1 January 0.6 0.6
Impairment movements 0.3 -
Balance at 31 December 0.9 0.6

The prowvision for impairment relates primanly 1o customers of Elementis Chromium who, due to their payment history and geegraphic
location, are assessed as having a higher exposure to credit nisk than 1s acceptable A provision 1s therefore deemed to be appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual matunties of financial labibties, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting

agreements.

31 December 2017

Carrying Contractual 6 menths 6-12 1 year
amount cash flows or less menths or more
$million tmillion $million $million smilkon

Non-derivative financial iabilties
Unsecured bank fcan - - - - -
Secured bank loan 346.1 (346.1) (2.7} - {343.4)
Trade and other payables” 69.0 {69.0) {69.0) - -
415.1 (415.1) 71.7) - (343.4)
*  Excludes denwvatives
31 December 2016

Carrying Carrying 5 months 6-12 1 year
amount cash flows orless months or more
$mallion Smilion $million $million $milion

Non-derivative financ:al labilities

Unsecured bank loan - - - - -

Secured banrk loan 5.1 5.1 (5.1) - -

Trade and other payables® 63.7 (63.7) 63.7) - -
68.8 (68.8) (68.8) - -

Excludes dervatives

Bank loans have been drawn under commutted facilities and can be re-financed on matunty from the same faciities, The contractual

maturites indicated reflect the maturing of the loans rather than the end date of the facilities.

Currency risk
Exposure to currency risk
The Group's exposure to currency nsk was as follows based on notional amounts:

2017 20186

uso Euro Other usDh Eurp Other

$million $million $million $milion Fmillion $roulhion

Trade receivables 59.5 296 20.8 478 228 18.3
Trade payables (28.8} {12.9) {11.9) {27.9) {11.7) (3.1
Gross balance sheet exposure 30.7 16.7 8.9 19.9 10.9 5.2
Forward exchange contracts - (28.8) 28.8 - {23.5) 235
Net exposure 30.7 (12.1) 377 19.9 (12 6) 287

The main exchange rates relevant to the Group are set out in the Finance repert on page 25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

21. FINANCIJAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December2017 would have increased/{decreased)
eqguity and profit orioss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other vanables, In particular interest rates,

remain constant.

Equity Profit or loss
Smillion Emillion

31 December 2017
GBP {24.9) 25
Euro (a7.1) (3.1}
RMB (3.8) (1.6)
WD (3.2) 0.1
31 December 2016
GBP (2.5) 2.6
Euro (5.1) 3.9)
RMB (1.6} (1.4}
TWD 0.1 (0.3)

A 10% strengihening of USD against all currencies will have increased/(decreased) the carrying amount of variable rate instruments

as follows

Carrying amount

2017 2016
$million $milion
Variable rate instruments
Financiat labilities {4.1) {0.3)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in Interest rates at the reporting date would have Increased/{decreased) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other vaniables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

2017 2016

Profit or loss Profit orioss

100bp Obp 100bp 100bp

increase decrease ncrease decrease

$milion $million $million Smillicn

Variable rate instruments 1.8} 1.8 - -

Fair values
Fair values versus carrying amounts

The farr values of financial assets and liabilities, together with carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as follows:

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Farr value

$mullion $million $million Smiliion
Trade and other receivables 114.0 114.0 920 92.0
Cash and cash eguivalents 55.0 55.0 86.2 86.2
Derivative contracts used for hedging
Assets 0.9 0.9 - -
Liabilities - - {0.4) {0.4)
Unsecured bank facility - - - -
Secured bank loan (343.3) {343.4) {5.1) (GR)
Trade and other payables® (128.2) (129.2) (97.6) {97.6)

(301.7) (301.7) 751 75.1

Unrecognised gan/{loss}

Excludes dervatives
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Basis for determining fair values
The Group measures fair values in respect of financial Instruments in accordance with IFRS 13, using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements

Level 1 Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.
Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs.

The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial nstruments,

Derivatives (level 2)

The farr value of forward exchange contracts Is based on therr isted market price, if avallable If a listed market price 1s not available,
then fair value 1s estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for
the residual matunity of the contract using a risk free interest (based on government bonds).

Non-derivatives financial liabilities {level 2)
Fair value 1s calculated based on the present value of future pnincipal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest
at the reporting date.

Interest rates used for determining fair value
The interest rates used to discount estmated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the government yield curve at the reporting
i date plus an adequate constant credit spread, and were as follows

2017 2016
per cent per cent
Borrowings 1.0-3.3 0.9-2.7

At both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 there was no difference between the carrying value and fair value
of financial instruments.

22. OPERATING LEASES

2017 2018
$million Smullior
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense In the year 4.5 4.1

Al the balance sheet date, the Group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows.

2017 2016

$million $milion

Within 1 year 42 3.9
In the secend to fifth years inclusive 9.5 10.0
After 5 years 9.9 12.6
23.6 26.5

Operating lease payments represent rentats payable by the Group for certain of its properties, plant and machinery Leases have
varying terms and renewal rights.

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group has a number of contnibutory and non-contributory post retirement benefil plans providing retirement benefits for

the majarity of employees and Executive Directors. At 31 December 2017 the main schemes in the UK and US were of the defined
benefil type, the benefil being based on number of years of service and either the employee's final remuneration or the employee's
average remuneration during a penod of years before retirement The assets of these schemes are held in separale trustee
administered funds or are unfunded but provided for an the Group balance sheet.

In addition the Group operates an unfunded post retirement medical benefit (PRMB') scheme in the US. The entitlement to these
benefits 1s usually based on the employee remaining In service until retirement age and completion of a minimum service period.

Other employee benefit schemes included in the table overleaf at 1 January 2017 relate to 2 unfunded pension schemes, a long term
service award scheme in Germany and a special benefits programme for a small number of former employees of the Eaglescliffe
plant. During 2017 with the acguisition of SummiRehers the Greup also acquired 2 further unfunded pension schemes and two

long term service award schemes all in Germany. These have also been included within this category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Net defined benefit liability
The net lability was as follows:

UK penslon US pensien US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Other Total
$miillion $rmudlion $million $mifion $million
2017
Total market value of assets 778.7 120.3 - - 899.0
Present value of scheme lhabiliies (756.8) {135.2) {6.2) (11.3) (909.5)
Net asset/{iability) recognised in the balance sheet 219 {14.9) (6.2) {11.3} {10.5)
UK pension US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Other Total
Smulion $million $mllion $million $milhon
2016
Total market value of assets 702.9 109.8 - 812.7
Present value of scheme labilities (698 6) {132.9} (6. (5.0 {842.8)
Net asset/(liability) recogmsed in the balance sheet 4.3 (23.1} 6 (5.0 (30.1)

Employer contnbutions in 2017 were $7.3m (2016: $3.3m} to the UK scheme and $2.6m (2016° $2.2m} to US schemes. Centributions
In 2018 are expected to be in the range $0-$15m predominantly dependent on the cutcome of the 2017 tnennial valuation. Further details

on agreed future payments to the UK pension scheme are included in the Finance report.

Movement in nat defined banafit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances te the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability

and 1ts components.

UK p US pensi US PRMB

scheme schemes scheme Other Total

$milllon $million $million $million $mitlion
2017
Balance at 1 January 4.3 (23.9 (6.3) (5.0} (30.1)
Liabifties assumed as part of the acquisttion of
SummitRehers - - - {4.7) {4.7)
Included in profit or loss
Curreny service cost (0.8) {0.5} {0.1) (0.2) {1.6}
Running costs 0.9) 0.3} - - (1.2}
Net interest expense 0.3 0.9) {0.2) {6.3) {1.1)

1.4 .n (0.3) {0.5) {3.9)
Included in other comprehensive income
Re-measurements:
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 234 13.2 - - 36.6
Actuanal gains/(losses) ansing from demographic
assumptions - 0.7 - - 0.7
Actuarial gans arising from financial assumptions (14.1) 8.4 (0.4) 0.3 (20.3)
Actuanal gains/{losses) ansing from experience
adjustment 11 0.3 - - 1.4
Exchange differences 13 - - {1.4) (0.1
11,7 81 (0.4) {1.1) 18.3

Contributions:
Employers 73 1.8 0.3 - 9.9
Deficit in schemes at 31 December 21.9 (14.9) (6.2) (11.3) (10.5)
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UK pension US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes s¢cheme Other Total
$million $millon $million $million $milion
2016
Balance at 1 January 6.7 (24.4) (6.3 {5.0) (29.0)
Included in profit cr loss
Current service cost {0.7) {0 5) 0.9 (0.1} (1.4)
Running costs {1.1) (C.3) - - (1.4}
Net interest expense 0.3 (1.0 {0.2) {C.1) (1.0}
{1.5) (1.8) {0.3) (0.2 (3.8}
Included in other comprehensive Income
Re-measurements.
Return on plan assets excluding interest mcome 107.5 4.3 - - 111.8
Actuanal gains/(losses) arising from demographic
assumptions - 0.9 - - 0.9
Actuanal gains ansing from financial assumptions (119.5) {3.5} (C.4) {0.5) (123.9)
Actuarial gains/{losses} arising from experience
adjustment 87 0.2 (0.3) - 8.6
EFxchange differences 09 - - 0.3 {0.6)
{4.2) 1.9 (0.7) (0.2) (3.2
Contributions:
Employers 33 1.2 1.0 04 5.9
Deficit n schemes at 31 December 4.3 {23.1) (6.3) {5.0} (301)
Plan assets
Plan assels compriser
UK pension US pension US PRMB
schame schemes scheme Total
$million $million $million $million
2017
Egquities 260.8 60.9 - 3217
Bonds* 421.8 7.6 - 429.4
Cash/liquidity funds 96.1 51.8 - 147.9
778.7 1203 - 899.0
UK pension US pensicn US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$millon Srmallion Emilllon $rillion
2018
Equiies 246.0 68.2 - 314.2
Bonds* 359.5 54 - 364.9
Cash/liquidity funds 974 36.2 - 133.6
702.9 109 8 - 812.7

* Including LDI repurchase agreement habilities

To reduce volatility risk a lability driven investment (LDI) strategy forms part of the Trustees’ management of the UK defined benefit
scheme's assets, Including government bonds, corporate bonds and denvatives, The bond assets category in the table above
includes gress assets of $557.6m (2016: $477.3m) and associated repurchase agreement liabilibies of $135.8m (2016 $117.8m).

Repurchase agreemenits are entered into with counterparties to better offset the scheme's exposure to interest and inflation rates,
whilst remaining Invested in assets of a similar risk profile. Interest rate 2nd iInflation rate derivatives are also empioyed to
complement the use of fixed and Indexed linked bonds in matching the profile of the schemes habilities.

All equities, bonds and iguidity funds have quoted prices in active markets. Other assets Include insured annuities, an Insurance
fund and various swap products.

Within the UK pensien scheme, the current asset allocation 1s approximately 30% in a iability matching fund consisting of gilts

{fixed interest and index inked), bonds, cash and swaps, 20% in a buy and mantain fund and 50% in an investment fund that
includes varicus equity and equity iike funds. The aim of the trustees is t0 manage the risk relative to the habililies associated with
the scheme's investments through a combination of diversification, nflation protection and hedging of risk (currency, interest rate
and inflation nsk) The US scheme currently has approximately 50% of its asset value invested in a range of equity funds designed
to target higher returns and thus reduce the pension deficit, with the balance invested In fixed income bonds and cash. The strategy
15 that as the deficit reduces, a greater proportien of investments will be made into lability matching funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Changes in the fair value of plan assets for the major schemes are as follows:

UK pension US pension Us PRMB
schems schemes scheme Total
$million $milhion Smillion $miflion
2017
Qpening farr value of plan assets 702.9 109.8 - 812.7
Expected return 18.7 41 - 22.8
Running costs {0.9) {0.3) - (1.2)
Actuarial gains 234 13.2 - 36.6
Contributions by employer 7.3 1.8 - 9.1
Contnibutions by employees 01 - - 0.1
Benefits paid {39.9) (8.3) - (48.2)
Exchange differences 6741 - - 67.1
Closing fair value of plan assets 778.7 120.3 - 899.0
UK pension US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$mulion $rmllon $million Srmillien
2016
Cpening fair value of plan assets 732.8 108.1 - 840.9
Expected return 24.6 4.2 - 28.8
Running costs (1.1} (0.3) - (1.4}
Actuarnal gan 1075 4.3 - 111.8
Contnbutions by employer 3.3 1.2 - 4.5
Contnbutions by employees a1 - - 04
Benefits paid (36.6) (7.7) - (44.3)
E£xchange differences (127.7) - - (127.7)
Closing farr value of plan assets 702.9 109.8 - 812.7
Defined benefit obligation
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the major schemes are as follows.
UK pension US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$million $mitign $milion Smilion
2017
Opening defined benefit obligation (698.6) {132.9} {6.3) (837.8)
Service cost {0.8) (0.5) {0.1) (1.4}
Interest cost {18.4) (5.0) (0.2) {23.6}
Contributions by employees 0.1) - - (0.1}
Actuarial losses (12.9) (5.1) (0.4) (18.4)
Benefits paid 39.8 8.3 .8 48.9
Exchange differences (65.8} - - {65.8)
Closing defined benefit obligation (756.8) (135.2} (6.2) (898.2)
UK pension US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$milhon $mullion $million $milion
2016
Opening defined benefit obligation {726.1) (132.5) (6.3} {864.9)
Service cost 0.7) (0.5) (0.1) (1.3)
Interest cost (24.2) (5.2) (0.2) (29.6)
Contrnibutiens by employees {0.1) - - 0.1
Actuarial losses {110.8) (2.4) (0.7) {(113.9)
Benefits paid 36.6 7 1.0 453
Exchange differences 126.7 - - 126.7
Closing defined benefit obligation (698.6) (132.9) (6.3) (837.8)
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Actuarial assumptions

A full actuarial valuation was carried out on 30 September 2014 for the /K scheme and at 31 December 2015 for the US schemes.

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries for the major schemes have been updated by the actuanes at the balance sheet

date and were as follows:

UK us
% %
2017
Rate of increase In salaries 4.2 3.00/3.45
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3 N/A
Discount rate 2.4 34
Inflation 3.2 2.0
2016
Rate of increase In salaries 4.30 3.00/3.45
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.10 N/A
Discount rate 2.60 3.85
Inflation 3.30 2.00
The assumed life expectancies on retirement are:
UK us

2017 2018 2017 2016

years years years years
Retiring at 31 December 2017
Males 23 23 21 21
Females 25 25 22 22
Retiring in 20 years
Males 25 25 21 21
Fermnales 26 26 23 23

The main assumptions for the PRMB scheme are a discount rate of 3.4% (2016: 3.85%) per annum and a health care cost trend

of 6.5% (2016 6.5%) per annum for clams pre age 65 reducing to 4.5% per annum by 2021 (2016: 4.5%). Actuanal valuations of
retirement benefit plans in other junisdictions have either not been updated for IAS 19 purposes or disclosed separately because
of the costs involved and the considerably smaller scheme sizes and numbers of employees involved.

Al 31 December 2017, the weighted average duration of the defined benefil obligations for the major schemes was as follows,

UK. 14 years
US. 10 years.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme habiliies are set out below

Assumption Change in assumption Impact en scheme habilties
Discount rate Increased/decreased by 0.5% Decreased/increased by 7%
Rate of inflation Increased/decreased by 0.5% Increased/decreased by 5%
Rate of salary growth Increased/decreased by 0.5% Increased/decreased by 0%
Rate of mortality Increased by 1 year Increased by 5%

. These sensitivities have been calculated o show the movement of the defined cbligation fellowing a change in a particular

assumption in sclation, assuming no other changes In market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

24, SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
The Company has several share incentive schemes for certain Directors and employees of the Group.

A Long Term Incentive Plan was adopted in 2008 (amended in 2010 and 2015} {‘LTIP"} for selected senior executives including the
Executive Directors, business presidents and general counsel. In 2017, LTIP awards were extended to include the members of the
Executive Leadership team (‘ELT'). A shadow LTIP was introduced for an ELT member based in China. This 1s structured in almost
all respects as the LTIP. Awards of nil cost share options or condiional share awards are normally made annually and the maximum
value of any grant to an individual 1s currently 2 times the CEO's basic salary. Awards vest afler 3 years and are subject to EPS and
TSR performance conditions over a 3 year period, Vested awards are then exercisable for up to 7 years, subject to the rules of the
plan. For US participants pnor to 2015 (for tax reasons), the default practice 1s for options to be exercised at the date of vesting.
From 2015, US partcipants receved awards structured as restricted stock units.

As reported in last year's annual report, buyout awards were made to the CEO and CFO 1in 2016 representing forfeited remuneration
when they left their previcus employer to join Elementis. Detall on vesting in 2017 can be found in the Directors’ remuneration report
on pages 71 and 72,

Atthe 2012 Annual General Meeting ('AGM’} shareholders approved an approved and unapproved executive share option scheme
('2012 ESQS’). This scheme replaced the previous approved and unapproved execulive share option scheme (‘2003 ESOS') which
expired (n 2013. The last awards made under the 2003 scheme were In 2012, Under the 2003 and 2012 ESOS, options were granted
annually to purchase shares in the Company at an exercise price per share based on the Company's average mid-market closing
share prnice on the dealing day preceding the date of grant with no discount applied, The number of optons granted were based

on a percentage of the participant’s basic salary. Options vested after 3 years and were subject 1o EPS and TSR performance
conditions, Vested options were then exercisable for up to 7 years, subject to the rules of the schemes, The Company operates

2 shadow executive share option schemes for a number of executives, who are employed or based in China, that are structured the
same in almost all respects as the 2003 and 2012 ESOS. As menticned above, it s propesed that the renewed 2018 LTIP will replace
the 2012 ESOS.

The Company also operates a 2008 UK Savings Related Share Option Scheme, which is & save as you earn {'SAYE") scheme, under
which UK employees can enter into contracts to save currently up to a maxmum of £600 per month with a bank or building society
for a peried of 3 or 5 years and use the proceeds from their savings accounts to purchase shares in the Company on the exercise

of their options. The aption price 1s the average mid-market closing share price over the 5 working days preceding the invitation date,
discounted by 20%,. Options may be exercised typically within 6 months following the enc of the savings period. A similar scheme
exists for US employees. Under the 2008 US Sharesave Scheme {'Sharesave’), US employees can enter into contracts to save up to
a maximum of $2,000 per month with a bank or similarly approved institution, for a peried of 2 years, and use the proceeds from therr
savings accounts te purchase shares in the Company on the exercise of their options. The option price is the average mid-market
closing share price on the date of the grant, discounted by 15%. Opticns may be exercised typically within 3 menths following the
end of the savings penod. Options granted under the 2 savings based schemes are held subject to the rules of the schemes.

Options were valued (as shown in the table below) using the binomial option pricing model. The fair value per option granted and the
assumptions used In the calculations are as follows:

2017 2016
Fair value per option {(pence) 145.0 142.6
Expected volatility {per cent) 29.0 28.0
Risk free rate {per cent) 0.2 0.5
Expected dvidend yield (per cent) 41 1.9
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Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histonical volatility of the Company's share price over the previous five years.
The expected life used in the model has been adjustad, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferablity,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. The Group recogrised total expenses of $2.8m (2016 $2.3m) related to share
based payment transactions during the year.

At 31 December 2017 the following options/awards to subscnbe for ordinary shares were outstanding.

Exercisable Al At
1 January 31 December
Exercise 207 Granted Exercised Expired 2017
Year of grant price (p} From To ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000

UK savings related share option scheme
2013 206.14 0111016 01/04/17 2 - {1) N -
2014 216.58 01/10/47 01/04/18 43 - (38) (1 4
2015 207.32 01/10M18 01/04/19 41 - - M 40
2016 175.81 0171019 01/04/20 175 - {5} 9 161
2017 226.63 01/10/20 01/04/21 - 64 - - 64
261 64 (44 (12} 269

US savings related share option scheme
2015 201.79 24/08/17 2411117 227 - {186} 41 -
2016 185.30 31/08/18 3111/18 363 - {1} (32} 330
2017 23732 0710919 071218 - 259 - - 259
590 259 {187} (73) 589

Executive share option schemes/awards granted under the Long term incentive plan*

2010+ 57200 06/04/13 06/04/20 257 - (20} - 237
2011+ 149.90 04104114 04/04/21 244 - (94) - 150
2012+ 184.30 27/66/15 27/06/22 433 - (98) (27) 308
2014+ 286.50 01/0417 01/04/24 526 - - (526) -
2014* Nit 01/0417 01704724 937 - - {937) -
2015+ 290.20 01/04118 01/04/25 554 - - (25) 529
2015* Nil 27104118 27/04/25 691 - - (252) 439
20164 Nil 07/0317 07/03/26 226 - (208) (20) -
20164 Nif 070318 07/03/26 226 - - - 226
2016+ 238.40 04/04/19 04/04/26 895 - - 42 853
2016* Nil 04/04/19 04/04/26 1,333 - - {419) 914
20164 Nil 04/0419 19/09/26 241 - - 241
20174 Nil 07/0317 07/03/27 - 84 - - 84
2017# Nil 07/03M19 07/03/27 - 50 - - 50
2017~ Nil 07/03/20 07/03/27 - 16 - - 16
2017+ 289.20 03/04/20 03/04/27 - 860 - (24) 836
2017* Nil 03/04/20 03/04/27 - 1,435 - - 1435
2017 Nil 01/08/19 01/08/27 - 58 - - 58
6,563 2,503 {418) (2,272) 6,376

+ These options include cash settled shadaw executive options granted to a number of executives on the same basis as the executive options (with the same
gerfermance condiiens and exercise provisions), These shadow options are inciuded in ths calculation of Ihe lotal expenses recogmised by he Group related
1o share based payments The closing balance of the 2010, 2011, 2012, 2044, 2015, 2016 and 2017 options shown above include approximately 68,000, 54,000,
58,000, nil, 87,000, 85,000 and 52,000 shadow oplions respectively

—+ >

Awards made as one-off agreements that borrow from the terms of the LTIF
These options include cash settled shadow LTIPs granted to a number of exacutives on the same basis as the LTIP {with the same performance conditions

and exercise provisions) These shadow LTIPs are included in the calculation of the total expenses recogmised by the Group related to share based payments
The closing balance of 2017 LTIP shown above include approximately 44,000 shadow LTIPs

# Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan,

~ Awards made as one-off agreements under the Deferrad Share Bonus Plan
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

24, SHARE BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
The weighted average exercise prices of options disclosed in the previous table were as follows

2017 2016

Average Average

exorcise exercise

price (p) price {p}

At 1.January 110.9 1214
Granted 114.8 91.8
Exercised 125.4 108.8
Expired 834 113.4
At 31 December 1201 110.9

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised during the year was 287 pence

(2016. 220 pence).
25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company 1S a guarantor to the UK pension scheme under which it guarantees all current and future obligations of UK

subsidianes currently participating in the pension scheme 1o make payments to the scheme, up to a specified maximum amount.
The maximum amount of the guarantee 1s that which is needed (at the time the guarantee 1s called on) to bring the scheme’s funding
level up to 105% of its liabilites, calculated in accordance with section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004. This is also sametimes known
as a Pension Protection Fund (‘PPF') guarantee, as having such a guarantee in place reduces the annual PPF levy on the scheme.

26. MOVEMENT IN NET CASH/{BORROWINGS)

2017

2016

Smillion $million
Change in net cash resulting from cash flows:
Increase In cash and cash equivalents (31.7) 6.3
Decrease In borrowings repayable within 1 year 2.8 {0.1)
Decrease In borrowings repayable after 1 year (338.8) 041

(387.7) 6.3
Currency translatien differences (0.9) {2.8)
Increase in net cash {368.6) 35
Net cash at beginning of year 775 74.0
Net cash at end of year (291.1} 775
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27. DIVIDENDS

Aninterim dividend of 2.70 cents per share {2016. 2.70 cents) was paid on 29 September 2017 and the Group 1s proposing a final
dividend of 6.10 cents per share (2016. 5.75 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2017. In 2016 a special dividend of 8.35 cents
per share was declared and paid. The total dividend for the year, 1s 8.80 cents per share (2016: normal dividend 8.45 cenits,

16.80 cents including the special dividend).

The amount payable for the final dividend, based on the anticipated number of qualifying crdinary shares registered on the record
date, is $28.3m

The payment of this dividend will not have any tax consequences for the Group.

28. KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

2017 2016

Smiilion $million

Salaries and short term employee benefits 4.7 34
Other long term benefits 0.6 0.4
Share based payments 17 16
7.0 54

The key management compensation given above 1s for the Board and the business president, Chromium. Directors’ remuneration
1s set outin the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 55 to 76.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As Is the case with other chemical companies, the Group occasionally receives natices of iigation relating to regulatory and legal
matters. A provision IS recognised when the Group believes it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and it I1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where it 15 deemed that an
obligation is merely possible and that the probability of 2 matenal outflow is not remote, the Group would disclose a contingent
hability.

In 2013 the British Government (through HMRC) introduced a UK tax incentive for certain group financing arrangements. In October
2017, the Eurcpean Commission opened a State aid investigation into the rules relating to this incentive under the UK controlled
foreign company reqime, HMRC has provided certain information and maintains that the exemption and the way it 1s applied does
not represent unfair State aid. Elementis could be impacted by the outcome of this inveshigation as it has, along with many other UK
based multinationals, benefiled from the arrangemenis. No provision for this potential lability has been provided in these financial
statements as the final putcome remains uncertain.

30. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

31. ACQUISITION

On 24 March 2017 the Group acquired all the shares SRLH Holdings, Inc. {SummitRehels’), for an iniial cash consideration of $370.3m,
rising to $370.9m after closing working capital adjustments. SummitReheis 1s a high guality, high margin specialty chemicals
platform that produces a range of critical active ingredients and materials tailored for use in personal care, pharmaceutical and
dental products. SummitReheis’ antiperspirant actives business (more than 60% of 1ts sales} 1s the global leader in the manufacture
and sale of active ingredients for antiperspirants and has lang standing relationships with key consumer product companies across
the Amenicas, Europe and Asia.

The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities-

Book value at Faur value Farr value of

acquisticn adjustments assets acquired

Note $million $Smillion Smilkon

Intangible assets 10 73.8 853 158.1
Property, plant and egquipment 1" 18.9 - 18.9
Inventories 18.7 30 217
Tracdle and other réceivables 271 {1.5) 25.6
Trade and other payables {10.9) 0.5) {11.4)
Cash and cash equivalents 9.1 - S
Provisions 15 - (0.5} {0.5}
Employee retirement benefits 23 47) - “@.7)
Corporation tax 2.6 - 2.6
Deferred tax 16 (22.9) (29.6) (52.5)
Total identifiable net assets acquired M1.7 56.2 167.9
Goodwill 203.0
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 370.9
Cash acquired (9.1)
Net cash outflow 361.8

The fair value adjustment to inventories of $3.0m 1s the net of an uphft due to fair value of $4.0m less an increase in proviston
for ohsolescence of $1.0m

The valuation techniques used for measunng the fair value of matenal assets acquired were as follows.

Assets acquired Valuation technigue

Property, plant ang A depreciated replacement cost was the primary method used to value the plant and equipment assets
equipment in the USA.

Assets in Germany were subject to a fair value exercise In 2015 and given the proximity of the previous
revised valuation to the Valuation Date, the assets in Germany will continue to be held at NBY

Intangible assets For reporting purposes intangible assets were categorised into 3 groups. customer related, technology
related and marketing related. These nave been valued through a combination of the income approach
{excess earnings), which is based on the forecasted future revenues and margins over the estimated
remaining useful Iife, the Relief from Royalty method ('RfR), and the replacement cost approach.,

Inventories The market approach has been used to determine the fair value based on the net realisable value
of the invenlory less costs to sell and a reasonable profit margin.

The consideration for the acquisitions has been allccated aganst identified net assets with the remaining balance recorded as
geodwill. The goodwill recogrised on acquisition reflects both the capabiliies of the acquired entities’ personnel and the synergistic
oppertunities going forward, neither of which can be allocated to an identifiable intangible assel.

There were a number of one-off costs associaled with the acquisition of SummitRehels — primarily the wnite off of the set-up costs
of the previous financing syndicate, now replaced by a new facility, bank and lawyers fees, retention bonuses for SummitReheis
employees, that have not been capitalised in accordance with IFRS 3. However, these have been reflected as adjusting items
within note 5 and recegnised in operating profit and operating cash.

Acquisitions made during 2017 contnbuted $102.0m to the Group's revenue, $16.6m 1o the operating profit.
The estimated contribution of SummitRehels to the results of the Group, had the acquisition been made on 1 January 2017, and
assuming that the fair value adjustments that arose on acquisition would have been the same at the earlier date, are as follows:

2017

$million
Revenue 131.0
Operating profit 20.8
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32. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

©Cn 11 December 2017, the Group entered inte a sale agreement to dispose of Elementis Specialties Netherlands BV, which carried
out all of the Group’s Surfactants aperations. The disposal 1s expected 1o close in the first quarter of 2018 and will generate cash flow
for the expansion of the Group's other businesses,

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2018

$million $mullion

Revenue 478 431
Expenses (42.0) (43.7)
Profit before tax 58 (0.6)
Attnbutable tax expense (0.9) (0.2)
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations (attnbutable to owners of the Company) 4.9 (0.8)

Revenue includes $0.2m related 1o inter-segment sales in 2017 {2016. $0.2m).

During the year, Elementis Specialties Netherlands BY contributed $7.2m (2016 S2.4m absorption) to the Group’s net operating
cash flows and paid $2.6m (2016. $3.0m} in respect of investing activities.

As the operations are expected to be sold within 12 months, they have been classified as a disposal group held for sale and
presented separately in the balance sheet The proceeds of disposal are expected to substantially exceed the book value of the
related net assets and accordingly no impairment losses have been recogrised on the classification of these operations as held
for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the operaticns classified as held for sale are as follows:

Year ended

2017

$milthon

Goodwill 31
Intangible assets 2.3
Property, plant and equipment 36.9
Inventories 6.8
Trade and other receivables 9.1
Cash and bank balances -
Total assets classified as held for sale 58.2
Trade and other payables (18.2)
Tax habilites (4.7}
Bank overdrafts and loans -
Tolal liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale (22.9)
Net assets of disposal group 35.3

33. PRICR YEAR RESTATEMENT

In previous years Elementis has not adjusted operating profit for the amertisation of intangibles arising on acquisition. Follow:ng

the acquisition of SummitRehers, the Directors reviewed this policy and concluded that excluding such a charge from the operating
profit will provide readers of the accounts with a better understanding of the Group's results on its operating activities and, as such,
this charge is now included within adjusting items.

Due to this change in accounting policy, the pricr year comparatives have therefore been restated to provide comparable nformation.
« The financial statement line items impacted have been set out below.

2016 2016
reported restated
$rnullion Restatement Fmillion
Operating profit after adjusting items 94.2 2.8 970
Adjusting ltems
Amortisabon of intangibles ansing on acguisition - (2.8) (2.8}
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PARENT COMPANY STATUTORY ACCOUNTS
ELEMENTIS PLC

BALANCE SHEET
at 31 December 2017
2017 2016

Note £million £millen
Fixed assets
Investments 8 769.7 767.8
Current assets
Debtors 9 12.7 12.7
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Creditors 10 (0.6) 0.6)
Net current assets 121 124
Total assets less current liabilities 781.8 7799
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings (333.7) (270.4)
Net assets 4481 5005
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1 231 2341
Share premium account 12.8 120
Capital redemption reserve B3.3 83.3
Other reserves 250.5 250.5
Share option reserve 29 2.8
Profit and loss account 755 137.8
Equity shareholders’ funds 4481 509.5

The Company recognised a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 of £3.6m {2016, £2m loss).

The financial statements of Elementis plc, registered number 3289608, on pages 130 to 136 were approved by the Board

on 27 February 2018 and signed on its behalf by

PAUL WATERMAN RALPH HEWINS
CEQO CFO

130  Elamentis plc Annual report and gecounts 2017




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Capital Share
Share Share redemphion Other options Retained

capital premium reserve reserves reserve earnngs Total

£million £enillion £milion Cmillion £million £million £million
Balance at 1 January 2016 231 15 83.3 250.5 29 191.2 562.5
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - {2.0) (2.0)
Transfer - - - - — -
Total other comprehensive income - - - - - (20) 2.0
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (2.0} (2.0
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares by the Company - 0.5 - - - — 0.5
Share based payments - - - - - 1.7 1.7
Transfer - - - — {0.1) 01 -
Dwidends paid - - - - - (53 2) {53.2)
Total transactions with owners - 0.5 - - - (51.4) {51.0}
Balance at 31 December 2016 231 12.0 83.3 250.5 2.8 137.8 509.5
Balance at 1 January 2017 234 12.0 83.3 250.5 2.8 137.8 509.5
Comprehensive Income
Profit for the year - - - - - (3.6} {3.6)
Transfer - - - - - - -
Total other comprehensive Income - - - - - (3.6) {3.6}
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (3.6) {3.6)
Transactions with cwners
Issue of shares by the Company - 0.8 - - - - 0.8
Share based payments - - - - - 1.9 1.9
Transier - - - - 01 (0.1) -
Dividends paid - - - - - (60.5) {60.5)
Total transactions with owners - 0.8 - - 01 {58.7) {57.8}
Balance at 31 December 2017 2341 12.8 83.3 250¢.5 29 75.5 4481

The above analysis 1s provided to demonstrate a greater level of transparency in relation to the Company’s distributable reserves,
which amount to £75.5m {2016: £137.8m) at the end of the penod.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELEMENTIS PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Elementis plc is a public company imited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in England The address of its registered
office 1s Caroline House, 55-57 High Halborn, London, WC1V 6DX. The pnincipal activity of the Company is to act as an investment
and holding company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in comphance with applicable United Kingdem accounting standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ~ 'Reduced disclosure framework — Disclosure exemptions from EU-adopted IFRS
for qualfying entties’ ((FRS 107'), and with the Companies Act 2006. The Company has presented its results under FRS 101.
The iast financial statements under the UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 December 2015,

As a consequence of the majority of the Company's assets, labilities and expenses originating in UK pound stering, the Company
has chosen the UK pound sterling as its reporting currency.

3. TRANSITION TO FRS 101

The date of fransition o FRS 101 was 31 Cecember 2013. Having considered the Company’s ability to recover any deferred tax
assets that might be associated with the share option reserve, it was determined that it would not be appropriate to recognise such
an asset. As such, there are no reconciling items between the previously disclosed accounts for 2014 and the restated accounts
prepared under FRS 101, The fransition to FRS 101 has not affected the reported financial position and financial performance.

As such no equity reconcifiations between UK GAAP and FRS 101 at the transition and comparative dates have been presented.

As a qualifying entity whose results are consalidated in the Elementis plc Consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 129,
the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemption requirements of FRS 101 regarding the requirement to prepare a
statement of cashflows and certain financial instrument, share based pay and key management personnel compensation disclosures

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set cut below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The Company has adopted FRS 101 in these
financial statements.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange rubng at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
habites denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the contracted rate or the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date and the gains and losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account,

Investments
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the balance sheet at cost less impairment,

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds
Dwvidends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a hability at that date to the extent that they are appropriately
authorised and are no lenger at the discretion of the Company.

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Company participates in the Elementis Group defined benefit pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Company. Detaills of the latest actuanal valuation carned out in September 2014 can be found in the 2016 Elementis
plc Annual report and accounts. Following the intreduction of the revised reporting standard. any surplus or deficit in the Elements
Group defined benefit pension scheme is 1o be reported in the financial statements of Elementis Holdings Ltd, which employs the
maijority of active members of the scheme and 1s responsible for making deficit contnbutions under the current funding plan.

Taxation

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, Advance corporation tax recoverable by deduction from future corporation
tax is carred forward within deferred taxation or as ACT recoverable within debtors as approprate.

There were ne significant judgements or estimates necessary in 2017,
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Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees I1s recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity.

Where the Company grants options over 1its own shares to the employees of its subsidiaries it recognises in its individual financial
statements an increase in the cost of Investment in its subsidianes equivalent to the equity settled share based payment charge
recognised in its subsidiares’ financial statements, with the carresponding credit being recognised directly in equity. The fair value
15 measured at grant date and spread over the period during which the employees become uncanditionally entitled to the options.
The fair value of the options granted 1s measured using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted The amount recognised as an expense 1s adjusied to reflect the actual number of share options that vest
except where forfeiture 1s only due 1o share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Company
Finangcial instruments 1ssued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions

a, They include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavouraple to the Company.

b. Where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, 1 is either a non-derivative that includes
no obligation to deliver a vanable number of the Company’s awn equity instruments or 1s a denvative that will be settled by the
Company's exchanging a fixed amount of cash or ather financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity Instruments.

Ta the extent that the definition is not met, the proceeds of 1ssue are classified as a financial labiity. Where the instrument so classified
takes the legal form of the Company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital
and share premium account exclude ameunts in relation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financial labihties are dealt with as part of interest payable and similar charges. Finance payments
assoclated with financial instruments that are classified as part of shareholders' funds, are dealt with as approprations in the
reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds.

5. PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own profit and loss account. A loss
of £3.6m (2016: £2.0m loss)

6. EMPLOYEES
The average number of employees for the Company for 2017 was 2 (2016: 2). See note 28 for details of the expense related to these
employees.

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Detalls of Directors’ remuneration for the Company are included in the Directors’ remuneration report within the Elementis plc
Annual report and accounts on pages 5510 76.

8. INVESTMENTS

Unhsted Capnal
shares at cost Unhsted loans contributions Total
£rmilhon £milicn £million £million
Cost at 1 January 2017 0.1 7590 87 767.8
Additions - - 1.9 19
Net book value 31 December 2017 01 759.0 10.6 769.7
Net book value 31 December 2016 0.1 752.0 8.7 767.8

The investment in unlisted loans 18 with Elementis Holdings Ltd, an indirect whaolly owned subsidiary. The investments in unlisted
shares are in Elementis Group BV and Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd, both whelly owned subsidianes. Capital contributions
relate to share based payment awards made to employees of subsidiary companies.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELEMENTIS PLC

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

8. INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

The trading subsidiznes of Elementis pic, all of which are wholly owned, excluding Alembic Manufacturing Limited, where the Group

holds a 25% interest, are as follows.

Subsidiary undertakings

Country of incarporation and operation

Adentac GmbH

Alembic Manufacturing Ltd
Deuchem Co., Ltd

Deuchem {(HK) Trading Co Ltd

Deuchem {Shanghal) Chemical Co. Ltd
Eisenbacher Dentalwaren ED GmbH
Elementis Chromium Inc

Elementis Chromium LLP

Elementis Deuchem {Shanghai) Chemical Ltd
Elementis LTP Inc

Elementis Specialties {An)) Ltd

Elementis Specialties {Changxing) Ltd
Elementis Specialties do Brasi Quimica Lida
Elementis Specialties Inc

Flementis Specialies Netherlands BV

Element:s SRL Inc

Elementis UK Limited trading as:
Elementis Specialties

SRL Dental GmbH
SRL Performance Lid
SRL Pharma GmbH

Personal Care products
Personal Care products
Additives and resins
Additives and resins

Additives and resins
Personal Care products
Chromium chemicals
Chroemium chemicals
Additives and resins
Chromium chemicals
Organoclays
Organoclays

Coatings additives

Rheological additives, colourants,
waxes, other specialty additives

Surfactants and coatings additives

Personal Care products

Rheological additives, colourants,
waxes, other specialty additves

Personal Care products
R&D for Personal Care
Personal Care products

Germany?
United Kingdom?
Taiwan?

People's Republic of China — Hong Kong
Specral Administrative Region4

People's Republic of Chinad
Germany®

United States of America?
United Kingdom®

Pecple’s Republic of China?
United States of America?
People's Republic of Chinalt
People's Republic of China™t
Brazil2

United States of America?

The Netherlands?3
United States of Americat4
United Kingdomé

Germany1s
United Kingdom®
Germany15

@@~ hwn

Registered office Konrad-Adenauer-StraBe 13, 50996 Koln Germany.
Registered office Uinit 8 Wimbourne Buildings, Atlantic Way, Barry Docks, Barry, South Glamorgan CF63 3RA UK,
Registered office 92, Kuang-Fu Road Nerth Read, Hsinchu Industnal Park, Hukou, Hsinchu County Tamwan 303
Registered office Flat P, 14/F, Haribest Industrial Building, 45-47 Ay Pui Wan Street, Fotan, Shatin N T Heng Kong
Registered office 98 Lianyang Road, Sengjang Industrial Zone, Shanghai China
Registered office Dr -Konrad-wiegand-Str. 9, 63939 Warth a Main Germany
Registered office 1209 Orange Strest, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801 US.
Registered office Carolne House, 55-57 High Holborn, London WC1V 6DX UK
Registered effice Room 223, No. 2 Lane 1000, Changta Road, Shihudang Town, Scngpiang District, $hanghar China
10 Registered office Huibutal, Mapadu Village, Dipu Town, Anj County, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province China

11 Registered office Sian Town, Changxing County, Zhejiang Province China

12 Regstered office Rodovia Nelson Leapolding, SP 375, Km 13.8, s/n, Baurro Rural, Palmital, S4o Paulo Brazil,

13 Registered office Langestraat 167, Delden, 7481 AE The Netherlands
14 Registered office 251 Little Falls Dnive, Wilmington, New Castle, Delaware, 19808 US
15 Registered office Giuhmstr 2, 67085 Ludwigshafen Germany

Non-trading and dormant subsidianes of Elementrs pic, all of which are wholly owned within the Group, are as follows

Subsidiary underlakings

Country of incorparation and operation

Agrichrome Lid

American Chrome & Chemicals Inc
Deuchem Holding Inc

Deuchem International Inc
Elementis America Shared Services inc
Elementis Australia Ltd

Elementis Benelux NV

Elementis BV

Elementis Catalysts Inc

Elementis Chemicals Inc

Elementis Chromium America Inc
Elementis Finance (Australia) Ltd
Elementis Finance (Germany} Ltd
Elementis Finance (reland) Lid
Elementis Finance (US) Ltd

Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Non-trading (in iquidation)
Dormant
Deormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Nan-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading

United Kingdom?1

United States of Amenica?
Samoa

Samoa

United States of America?
United Kingdom?1
Belgium3

Netherlands4

United States of America?
United States of America?
United States of America?
United Kingdom?

United Kingdom?

Irelands

United Kingdom'
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Subsidiary undertakings

Country of mcarperation and operaticn

Elementis Germany GmbH
Elementis Germany Lid
Elementis Global LLC

Elementis GmbH

Elementis Group (Finance} Ltd
Elementis Group BY

Elementis Group Lid

Elementis Holdings Ltd
Elementis London Lid

Elementis Nederland BV
Elementis New Zealand Ltd
Elementis NZ Ltd

Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd
Elementis Pigments Inc
Elementis S.E.A. (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Elementis Securibes Ltd
Elementis Service Centre NV
Elementis Services GmbH
Elementis Specialties {India) Private Ltd
Elementis US Holdings Inc
Elementis US Lid

H & C Acqguisitions Ltd

H & C Lumber Inc

Harcros Chemicals Canada Inc
Iron Oxides s.a.de. CV

NB Chrome Ltd

Reheis, Inc.

SRL Cooperatief LLA.

SRLH Holdings Inc

SRL International Holdings, LLC
WBS Carbons Acquistions Corp

Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Bormant
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Barmant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Darmant
Non-trading
Nen-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading

Germanyé

United Kingdom?

United States of Amenca?
Germany®

United Kingdom?
Netherlands4

United¢ Kingdom!?

United Kingdom!?

United Kingdom?
Netherlands4

United Kingdom?

New Zealand’

United Kingdom?

United States of Amernica?
Malaysia®

United Kingdom?
Belgium?

Germany®

Indiato

United States of Amenca?
United Kingdom?

United Kingdom?

United States of America?
Canada!

Mexico

United Kingdom?

United States of America?
Netherlands?2

United States of America?
United States of Americaz?
United States of Amernca?

1= JENE W RS AN I

Registered office Caroline House, 55-57 High Helborn, London WC1Y 60X UK
Registered office 1208 Orange Street, Wimington, Delaware, 19801 US
Registered office Regus Brussels Airport, Pegasuslaan 5,1631 Diegem Belgium,
Registered office Langestraat 167, Celden, 7491 AE The Netherlands
Registered office 8th Floor Block E, lveagh Court, Harcourt Rozd, Dubhin 2 ireland
Registered office Stolberger 5tr 370, 50833, Koln Germany
Registered office KPMG, P O Box 1584, 18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue, Maritime Square, Auckland New Zealand.
Registered office 10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia
Regsstered office Pegasuslaan 5, 1831 Machelen (Brab } Belgium,
10 Registered office 703, 7th Floor, Olympus, 5/C, Altamount Road, Mumbai 400026 India,

11 Registered office Cfo Stewart McKelvey Stirlng Scales,44 Chipman Hill, Suite 1000 ON E2L 456 Canada

12 Registered office Strawinskylaan 411, 1077XX Amsterdam Netherlands.

Notes

Other ihan Elementis Group BY and Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd, none of the undertakings s held directly by the Company

Equity capital 1s 1n ordinary shares and voting rights equate to equity ownership,
All undertakings isted above, with the axception of Elementis Specialties {India) Private Ltd for which the relevant date 1s 31 March, have accounting penods ending

31 December

Undertakings operating in the United Kingdom are incorperated in England and Wales, In the case of corporate undertakings other than in the United Kingdom therr
country of operation is also their country of incorporatior

All undertakings hsted above have been included in the Conschdated financial statements of the Group for the year

135  Elementis plc Annual report and accounts 2017

liodsl oBalens

aouewsanoh ajesedied

spusLuele)s (BIIUeLYy

UGIEWIGUI IOPIOUSIRYS



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELEMENTIS PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

9. DEBTORS
2017 2018
Emillien £milhon
Group relief receivable 127 12.7
10. CREDITORS: AMOUNT FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2017 2016
£million Lroifion
Accruals and deferred income 0.6 0.6
11. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2017 2016
Number 2017 Number 2016
‘000 £million ‘000 £rmillicn
Called-up allotted and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of 5 pence each
At 1 January 463,496 231 462,976 231
Issue of shares 442 - 520 -
At 31 December 463,938 231 463,496 231

During the year a total of 442,792 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £22,140 were allotted and 1ssued for cash
to various employees at subscription prices between 57 pence and 217 pence on the exercise of options under the Group's share
aption schemes. The total subscription morues receved by the Company for these shares was £0.8m. The holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to receive dividends and entitled to 1 vote per share at meetings of the Company.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company s a guarantor to the Elementis Group defined benefit pension scheme under which it guarantees all current and
future obligations of UK subsidianes currently participating in the pension scheme 1o make payments to the scheme, up tc a
specified maximum amount. The maximum amount of the guarantee is that which 1s needed (at the time the guarantee is calied on}
to bring the scheme's funding level up to 105% of its liabilities, calculated in accordance with section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004,
This is also sometimes known as a Pension Protection Fund ('PPF") guarantee, as having such a quarantee in place reduces the
annual PPF levy on the scheme.

13. UK REGISTERED SUBSIDIARIES EXEMPT FROM AUDIT

The following UK subsidianes will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
for the year ended 31 December 2017 Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings isted below are all 100% owned, either directly
or indirectly, by Elementis plc.

The Company will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the UK subsidiaries listed below at the balance sheet date in accordance
with section 479C of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has assessed the probability of loss under the guarantee as remote.

Proportion of shares held Proportion of shares held
Name by the Company (%) by subsidiary (%} Company Number
Agrnchrome Limited 100.0 - 02228826
Elementis Finance {Germany) Limited 100.0 - 05531634
Elementis Finance {US) Limited 100.0 - 08303101
Elementis Group (Finance) Limited 100.0 - 09303017
Eiementis Overseas Investments Limited 100.0 - 08008981
Elementis Securities Limited 100.0 - 00597303
Elementis US Limited 100.0 - 08005226
Elementis UK Limited 100.0 - 00656457
SRL Performance Limited 100.0 - 09622186
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GLOSSARY

ACC American Chemistry Council 1A Investment Association

ACT Advance Corporation Tax IFC Inside front cover

AGM Annual General Meeting IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

AWC Average working capital ISS institutional Shareholder Services

Board Board of Directors of Elementis plc KPI Key performance indicator

CEO Chief Executive Officer kWh Kilowatt hour

CFO Chief Financial Officer LDI Liakility driven instrument

CO: Carbon dioxide LTA Lost time accident

Company Elementis plc LTIP Long term incentive plan

CR Corporate respeonsibility NIC National Insurance Contributions

DB Scheme Defined benefit scheme OSHA Cceupational Safety and Health Administration

DEFRA Department for Environment and Rural Affairs PRMB Post retirement medical benetit

EBITDA Eamnings before interest, tax, depreciation REACh Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation
and amortisation and restriction of Chemicals

EPS Farmings per share RfR Relief from royalty

ESOS Execulive share option scheme ROCE Return on capital employed

ESOT Employee share ownership trust SAYE Save as yau earn

EU European Union SID Senior Indepengent Director

FRC Financial Reporting Council SummitReheis SRLH Holdings, Inc. and its subsidianes

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles TSR Total shareholder return

GDP Gross domestic preduct UK United Kingdom

GHG Greenhouse gases UN United Naticns

GJ Gigajoule us United States

Group Elementis ple and its subsidiaries voC Volatile erganic compound

HMRC HM Revenue and Customs

HSE Health. safety and environment
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FIVE YEAR RECORD

2016 2015
2017 restated? restated? 2014 2013
$rmilkion $millon $million $million Smulion
Turnover
Specialty Products 611.0 460.4 453.1 519.7 502.8
Chromium 171.7 156.2 170.3 2038 201.8
Continung operations 782.7 6166 623.4 7235 704.6
Discontinued operations 476 429 53.8 669 72.2
Group turnover 830.3 659.5 677.2 790.4 776.8
Operating profit after adjusting items
Specialty Products 109.0 816 82.7 98.5 99.1
Chromium 3041 271 48.0 58.3 551
Central costs {16.4) (11.1) (10.9) {11.6) (13.2)
Continuing operations 1227 97.6 119.8 145.2 141.0
Biscontinued operations 54 (0.6) 4.5 4.9 56
1281 970 124.3 150.1 146.6
Adjusting items (30.9) {12.5) 2.8 63 (1.7)
Profit before interest 97.2 84.5 1271 156.4 144.9
Other expenses (1.2) {1.4) 2.1 (1.9) (2.0
Net interest payable (1.7} (76) 4.2) (6.3) (8.8)
Profit before tax 843 75.5 120.8 148.2 134.3
Tax 333 (74) (26.2) 272 {27.6)
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent 117.6 68.1 94.6 1754 106.7
2016 2015
2017 restated? restated? 2012 2013
Smillien $milhion $mithon $million Smulhon
Basic
Earnings per ordinary share (cents) 254 14.7 205 38.1 23.3
Earnings per ordinary share after adjusting items
{cents) 19.8 17.6 214 251 23.3
Diluted
Earnings per ordinary share (cents) 25.0 14.6 203 377 23.0
Earnings per ordinary share after adjusting items
{cents) 19.5 17.4 21.2 24.8 23.0
Dividend per ordinary share (cents) 8.80 16.80 16.45 15.40 13.93
Interest cover (times): 13.3 134.6 121.5 115.5 6837
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent 702.3 6271 653.8 644.1 5439
Net cash (291.1) 7h 74.0 064.2 54.1
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year {(million) 4629 462.8 462.2 460.7 456.9

1 Ratio of operating profit after adjusting items to interest on net berrowings.

2 Restated following the adjustment for amortisation of intangibles 2016 and 2015 restated but nat prior years This s not expected te be maternal
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SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

ELEMENTIS CORPORATE WEBSITE

The Group operates a websiie which can be found at www.elementisplc.com. This ste 1s frequently updated 1o provide shareholders
with information about the Group. In particular, the Group’s press releases and announcements can be found on the site together
with copies of the Group's accounts.

REGISTRARS
Enquiries concerning shares or shareholdings, such as the loss of a share certificate, consolidation of share certificates,
amalgamation of holdings or dividend payments, should be made to the Company’s registrars:

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

Tel 0371 384 2379 or +44 (0)121 415 7043

Lines are open 8.30 am to 5.30 pm, Monday to Friday (excluding public hohdays in England and Wales).

In any correspondence with the registrars, please refer to Elementis plc and state ciearly the registered name and address
of the shareholder Please notify the registrars promptly of any change of address

PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

ltis in the best interests of shareholders and the Company for dividends to be pard directly into bank or bullding society accounts.
Any shareholder who wishes to receive dividends in this way should contact the Company’s registrars 1o abtain a dividend
mandate form.

REGISTRARS' TEXT PHONE

For shareholders with hearing dfficulties.

Callers inside the UK telephone: 0371 384 2255
Callers outside the UK telephene: +44 (0)121 415 7028

REGISTRAR’'S WEB BASED ENQUIRY SERVICE

Fquiniti provides a range of shareholders’ services online. The portfolio service provides access to information on share balances,

balance movements, indicative share prices and information on recent dividends and also enables address and dividend mandate
detalls to be amended cnline. For further information and practical help on transferning shares or updating your details, please visit
www.shareview.co uk.

Cquiniti also provides o share dealing service that enables shares to be bought or sold by UK shareholders by telephone or over

the internet For telephone share dealing please call 0345 603 7037 between 8.30 am and 4.30 pm (ines are open until 6.00 pm
for enguiries) and for internet share dealing please visit: www.shareview.co.uk/dealing.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY SECRETARY AUDITORS

Laura Higgins Deloitte LLP

REGISTERED OFFICE JOINT CORPORATE BROKERS

Caraline House UBS Investment Bank

55-57 High Halbarn N+1 Singer

London

WC1V BDX PUBLIC RELATIONS

UK Tulchan Communications

REGISTERED NUMBER

3299608

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

27 February 2018 Preliminary announcement of final results for the year ended 31 December 2017
26 Apni 2018 Annual General Meeting

26 Aprl 2018* Trading update

3 May 2018 Ex-dividend for final dwvidend for 2017 payable on ordinary shares

4 May 2018 Record date for final dividend for 2017 payable of ordinary shares

1 June 2018 Payment of final dwidend for 2017 on ordinary shares

31 July 2018* Interim results announcement for the half year ending 30 June 2018
6 September 2018* Ex-drvidend date for intenim dividend for 2018 payable on ordinary shares
7 September 2018* Record date for interm dividend for 2018 payable on ordinary shares
28 September 2018* Payment of interim dividend for 2018 on ordinary shares

* Prowisional date

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting of Elementis plc will be held on 26 April 2018 at 11.00 am at the offices of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP,
Exchange House, Primrase Street, London EC2A 2EG. The Notice of Meeting 1s included in & separate document.

PRINCIPAL OFFICES

Elementis plc Elementis Global
Caroline House 469 Old Trenton Road
55-57 High Holborn East Windsor

London NJ 08512

WCIV 6DX us

UK

Tel' +1 609 443 2000
Telk +44 ()20 7067 2999

Fax' +44 {0)20 7067 2998 Websites:
www.elementis.com
Emall company.secretanat@elementis.com (Specialty Products)

Website' www.elementisplc.com
www.elementischromium.com
{Chromium)
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Designed by Gather
+44 (0)20 7610 6140
www gather london

The paper used in this report s elemental chloring
free and 1s FSC® accredited Itis printed 10 1SC
14001 environmental procedures, using vegetable
based inks

The Forest Stewardship Council®
{FSC®)} s an international network
which promotes responsible
management of the warld's forests
Forest certification 1s combined
with a system of product labelling
that allows consumers to readily
dentify timber based products
from certfied sources
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